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Part 1: Business Operations
1. Policy and Business Overview

1.1 The Bank's vision, target and strategy
1.1.1 Background
TMB Bank Public Company Limited. (“TMB” or “the Bank”) was established on November 5, 1957 at Mansion 2,
Rajdamnern Avenue, Bangkok. At that time, Field Marshal Saridi Dhanarajata was Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr.
Chote Guna-Kasem was the Bank’s President, and the Bank had a total workforce of 26. TMB’s initial registered capital was
THB 10 million, divided into 100,000 shares, each with THB 100 par value. Most of the shareholders in the initial stage
were military personnel both in-service and out-of-service.
The year 1982 marked a milestone for the Bank as His Majesty King Bhumibol Adulyadej graciously bestowed the
Royal Garuda Emblem to TMB and its registered capital had its first increase, from THB 10 million to THB 100 million. To
expand the fund raising capability, the Bank was listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) on December 23, 1983
and transformed into a public company limited in 1994. As of December 31, 2013, the Bank’s registered capital was THB
41,903,301,555 of which THB 41,426,006,153 was paid up and 43,606,322,266 from common stock with par value of THB
0.95 per share.
Thai Military Bank Pcl., DBS Thai Danu Bank Pcl. and the Industrial Finance Corporation of Thailand legally merged
to become TMB Bank Pcl. on September 1, 2004. This merger enabled the Bank to operate as a universal bank, with total
assets of THB 673 billion as of December 31, 2004.
In December 2007, TMB underwent a share capital increase of THB 37,622 million by forming a new business
partnership with ING Group, a leading financial institution from The Netherlands. After recapitalization, the Ministry of
Finance held 26.1% and ING Group held 25.2% of the entire issued and offered shares of the Bank. ING Group also held
NVDRs (Non-Voting Depository Receipts) representing rights to TMB’s securities and/or ordinary shares for 4.92% of the
entire issued and offered shares of the Bank.
Currently, TMB is the sixth largest bank in Thailand in term of total assets, deposits and loans. The Bank has total
assets of THB 1,808.0 billion, deposits of THB 1,373.4 billion and net loans of THB 1,348.5 billion as of December 31, 2020
(Consolidated Balance sheet included TBANK’s financial position).

1.1.2

The Bank's vision and strategy in business operations for the next 5 years
•
TMB Strategy
The Bank has formulated 7 Strategic Intents which will drive TMB to achieve the targets:

1. Customer Centricity
TMB places emphasis on the customer at a center of business operation by gathering and analysing customer’s
behaviour in order to develop financial products and services to meet their needs and provide better customer experience.
Moreover, TMB also measures customer satisfactory to continuously improve the Bank’s products and services. TMB will
continue to support our customers in need of help from the impact of the COVID-19.
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2. Build Deposit and transactional Banking Products Excellence
TMB has used Deposit-led strategy to differentiate customer value proposition in deposit products and
transactional banking services. With this strategy, TMB can deepen relationship with customers and understand customers
better which will result in TMB becoming main bank of customers.
3. Continue Leading in Auto Loan and Lending products
After the merger, the Bank has leveraged the strength of TBANK’s auto loan which equipped with available
personnel, car dealer network, and brand’s strength to further expand the business and to cater customer’s needs. For
example, the offering of TBANK’s auto loans to TMB’s customers. With comprehensive financial product offerings and
services, it enhances the Bank’s ability to cope with the change in market environment and competition, and to maintain its
leadership position in auto lending.
4. Build Sustainable and Recurring Non-interest Income
TMB continued to emphasis on building sustainable non-interest income capability. Building non-interest income
capability allows the Bank to effectively manage capital because of the minimal capital requirement compare to creditrelated income, for example, bancassurance products and mutual fund products. Moreover, non-interest income will help
ensure sustainable bottom line through business cycles. TMB applied business model of distributor and open architecture
by searching for suitable business partners and best product to be available on the Bank’s shelf. This is to ensure the best
offering which cater to variety needs of our customers.
5. Optimize Capital Utilization and Liquidity Management
TMB is strongly committed to delivering the level of profit expected by investors and has set the target to earn
same level of ROE with top bank performers within the next 3-5 years. To achieve this, the Bank continues to put our focus
on selectively growing balance sheet to generate incremental return.
6. Enhance Digital Capability and Solutions
The financial transaction on digital channel is continuously growing due to the shift in customer’s behaviour
toward digital channel and the rapid technological development. To be prompt for these changes, TMB has continually
investing in the development of IT infrastructure, cyber security system and customer data privacy system, as well as
developing staff’s competencies, build up corporate culture, digitize working procedure in alignment to the digital era to
speed up product and service development cycle and to enhance better customer experience. TMB will continue to revamp
its digital platform and expect to run under “Digital Frist” principle to allow better customer experience and to be line with
customers behaviour shift to online platform. This will not only help the Bank to be agile in driving innovation but also it will
lower the cost-to-serve for the Bank.
7. Capture Synergy Realization
After the merger, the Bank has realized benefits from Balance sheet synergies, Cost synergy and Revenue
synergy:
1) Balance sheet synergies through balance sheet optimization by allowing the Merged Bank to utilize its
assets and raise funds more efficiently.
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2) Cost synergies from a greater economy of scale, especially from the integration of key business support
areas such as IT infrastructure investment, operations, overlapped branch and redundant back-office employees.
3) Revenue synergies which would enhance ability to introduce more variety of financial products and services
to cater its customer’s need and to serve the enlarged customer base of more than 10 million customer, which enhance
the Merged bank’s ability to maximize its income generation.
The integration plan has been progressing and is on track for smooth business transition at EBT in July 2021.
The Bank has also leveraged on expertise and strength of both banks in each business to create value added for the
maximum benefits of the Merged bank. After the successful EBT, the Bank aims to maximize the potential of the Merged
bank’s customer base through Financial well-being as guiding principle, sharper proposition addressing banking and
beyond banking needs of our targeted customers, and through our top-tier digital platform. Also, the Bank will continue to
deepen our relationship with customers through multiple product and life-long customer engagement to engage our
customers to become main bank customers.

1.2 Significant changes and development in the past 5 years
1.2.1 Significant changes and development in the past 5 years
2015
• TMB had strong growth in deposit and loans including 20% increase in PPOP despite economic volatility. In
addition, TMB successfully issued Renminbi-denominated bond (Dim Sum Bond) worth RMB 600 mn with three-year
maturity, which is the first RMB benchmark bond issued from Thailand. TMB was also awarded “Best Local Currency Bond
2015” from The Asset Triple A Country Awards.
• TMB officially launched TMB Touch, a mobile banking application designed to help make daily banking
easier, more convenient and is highly secured. Moreover, TMB further enhanced the commercial internet banking platform
or TMB Business Click with the additions of the SMART and BAHTNET fund transfer to provide greater convenience for
commercial customers to manage their accounts. Additionally, TMB introduced TMB e-Guarantee, which is a tool for
business owners who would like to participate in the governmental auction. Business owners can easily and conveniently
request the letter of guarantee without the need to contact the branch.
• TMB All Free is a newly enhanced transactional deposit account that allows customers to perform unlimited
transactions within TMB and to make unlimited withdrawals at any bank’s ATM free of charge. Additionally, customers can
transfer to other bank’s account or pay bills including direct debit without charge up to 5 times a month without minimum
balance requirements. The success is shown in the strong growth of Transactional deposits that grew 10% in 2015.
• TMB launched ‘Talent Development Program’ because TMB believes that capable employees are the driving
force in improving customer experience and TMB’s competitiveness. Through the talent development program, employees
are given opportunities to strengthen their knowledge and experiences with a clear career development plan within TMB
and necessary supports to further enhance their capabilities.
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• Over 6 years of “FAI-FAH” program, TMB aims to give the opportunities and cultivate young people to create
value and return back to the community through various activities. Moreover, TMB introduced “FAI FAH in a box” which
allowed Branch staff to connect with local residents and to address the needs of surrounding communities. The initiative
aimed to help address local issues and to develop surrounding communities in a sustainable approach by truly understand
their needs and establishing “Make THE Difference”. In 2015, TMB was awarded “The Best Community Development for
“FAI FAH” CSR Program” and “CSR Practice in Banking and Finance in Asia” in the 5th Asia Best CSR Practice Awards.
2016
• TMB has successfully delivered transformation initiatives in 2016 and will continue to deliver transformation’s
success to Make THE Differences and to enable the bank to gain competitive edge against competitors.
• Achieved 10% Growth in Pre-Provision Operating Profit (PPOP) Despite Slow Economic Growth. There was a
strong growth in Bancassurance products as TMB has better understanding of customer needs, thus, TMB offered products
that easy to use at affordable price with “simple and affordable” concept.
• Moreover, TMB continued to deliver operational excellence in 2016. TMB improved turnaround time of retail
secure lending applications from submission to approval down from more than 30 days to 5 days.
• TMB is committed to deliver transactional banking efficiency and convenience that relieves banking pains
and allows customers to efficiently connect to their business partners and communities. In 2016, TMB enhanced TMB All
Free account in order to better address customers’ transactional needs. With the enhancement, not only customers
continued to unlimited transact within TMB and withdraw cash at any bank’s ATMs free of charge, the customers now can
make unlimited, not just 5 times a month, transfers to other bank’s accounts and bill payments including direct debit without
charge and without any minimum balance requirement.
• Since the official launch of TMB Touch, TMB’s mobile application that facilitates customers on their daily
financial transactions, in 2015, numbers of retail electronic transaction rapidly grew in 2016 and surpassed numbers of
transaction at branches.
• The National E-Payment Initiative, a collaborative effort between Thai Government and Private sectors in
laying the foundation of payments and economy of Thailand, gained tremendous traction with the announcement of
PromptPay, the first e-payment initiative that offers convenience for consumers to make payments and receive payments
from other individuals or government agencies quicker and easier, which TMB had enhanced our infrastructure and
services to accommodate the official launch in 2017.
• TMB was the first bank to launch a product that supports Business Security Act which was enforced on July
2nd, 2016. The product, named TMB Top-Up Credit, aims to provide Thai SMEs greater opportunities to access funding
and thereby start their businesses. SME customers can use “Asset with economic value” on top of land and building as
collateral for business loan.
• TMB believes that capable employees are critical in driving better customer experience which ultimately
TMB’s competitiveness. In 2016, TMB delinked remunerations and benefits from corporate titles in order to stimulate staff
to effectively improve their capabilities and to drive the organization forward. TMB also restructured the organization by
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reducing the corporate levels down from 6 to 5 to improve agility and to allow staff to effectively demonstrate their
capabilities.
2017
• Grow in customer base from primary banking benefits and right transactional products. With PromptPay’s
value proposition that offers receive payment free of charge together with All Free account that provide customers free
payment transaction, the customers could get complete free transactional account that allow them to manage their financial
transaction at better efficiency resulted in 50.9% growth in All Free account deposit.
• To build relationship with customers to use TMB as their main bank and increase digital channel transaction,
TMB launched loyalty program offering primary banking benefits called TMB WOW. There was a good response from the
market, over 40% of mobile banking customers joined the program. From continuous improvement in both marketing
benefits and customer experiences, TMB Touch, TMB’s mobile application has been rapidly adopted with over 1 million
users in 2017.
• Non-interest income continuously improved at 21.4% in 2017. TMB renew strategic collaboration with FWD
Life Insurance Public Company Limited for initial term 15 years, starting from January 1st, 2017. For this alliance with FWD,
TMB received an access fee approximately THB19,582 million, net of all taxes and expense, excluding commission and
profit sharing. TMB and FWD have been working closely for a long time in delivering life insurance products to TMB
customers. The renewal of the collaboration would support TMB in strengthening bancassurance business with the aim of
continuously serving the customers products and services that suit their needs.
• To strengthen Mutual Fund Open Architecture value proposition, TMB first introduced Mutual Fund
transaction available on mobile banking (TMB Touch) that provided customers convenience in both doing transaction and
monitoring their portfolio movement with high performance funds available for different risk profiles. To provide customers
advisory in sophisticated investment, TMB Advisory has been launched together with Advisory room at selective branches
that allowed customers to have access to investment expert from their nearby branches through video conference with
branch staff accompany and facilitating the meeting. The initiatives yielded a good result as Mutual fund fee income grew
76% in 2017.
2018
• Building primary customer base remained a key focus. “Get More with TMB” value proposition has been
launched to engage customers to use TMB as their main bank. Number of primary customers rose from 2017 by 20%. The
campaign also brought in new customers who wanted to enjoy the benefits. TMB grew new No-Fixed account at 0.54 million
accounts and All Free account at 0.53 million accounts in 2018.
• To continue and further enhance Open Architecture proposition, TMB announced partnership with Eastspring
Investment, lead asset management in Asia. This partnership not only brought in significant additional revenue to TMB that
resulted 85% increase in non-interest income from 65% stake in TMBAM, but it will also allow TMB to have access to global
fund management expertise from Prudential group. Eastspring has been successful in Asian markets with top funds
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available across Asia. TMBAM would be able to gain supports and bring in knowhow to develop more variety of products
and services. This would ultimately also benefit TMB and a key partner and shareholder.
• With IFRS9 approaching and additional revenue from TMBAM and Eastspring transaction, TMB took a
prudent strategy by setting up additional provision. Total provision therefore, increased to 16,100 million in 2018.
2019
• 2019 marked a significant milestone for TMB with the successful execution of the merger transaction with
Thanachart Bank, making it become one of the largest banks in Thailand. This merger is a perfect match for both banks
since they have different strengths that complement each other. While TMB has a strong proposition of transactional
banking, Thanachart Bank has a well-established retail lending business, particularly its leadership in the auto loan
business. The combined core strengths of both banks will truly create synergy for growth opportunities.
• TMB completed the acquisition of 6,062,438,397 TBANK’s shares, accounting for 99.96% of the total
outstanding shares in TBANK from TCAP and BNS on 3 December 2019 at the price of THB 27.55. As a result, TBANK is
currently a subsidiary of TMB. The entire business transfer from TBANK to TMB is expected to complete in 2021.
• In accordance to the merger plan, TMB has announced the completion of the sale by TBANK of shares in
Thanachart Fund (TFUND) to Prudential with regards to the agreement which signed on 30 September 2019. According to
the agreement, TBANK sold a first lot consisting of 25.1% of TFUND (out of its 75%holding) whereas GSB sold all of its 25%
of TFUND to Prudential. The total value of TFUND transaction is expected to be not less than THB8.4 billion. Currently, TMB
holds a 35% stake in TMBAM Eastspring. After having purchased Thanachart Bank’s shares, TMB will hold a 49.9% of
TFUND indirectly. Going forward, 49.9% of TFUND will represent in balance sheet as investment in associate and in income
statement as profit sharing from associated company. Both TMB and Eastspring have planned to merge TMBAM Eastspring
and TFUND in 2021. Within 5 years, TMB has an option to sell its entire stake in the new company to Prudential in order to
re-affirm its commitment toward mutual funds open architecture strategy.
• Both TMB and Thanachart Bank have developed an integration blueprint dedicated to ensure synergy
realization and smooth business transition. For example, both banks have already announced the benchmark lending rate
(M-Rate) calibration. TMB has also begun to adjust its loan structure to prepare liquidity for the hire purchase loan portfolio
and reaffirm its open architecture strategy by forming a partnership with Thanachart Fund. And as one of our top priorities,
TMB has prepared for Thanachart Bank’s customer transfer and planned to increase product coverage in order to smoothen
customer transfer process and ensure customer satisfaction will be achieved. Co-location branch strategy has been
employed to facilitate the customer onboarding plan and provide convenient services for customers of both banks prior to
the EBT.

1.2.2 Significant changes and development in year 2020
• After its share acquisition in TBANK on 3 December 2019, the integration process between TMB Bank and
Thanachart Bank has proceeded as planned and is expected to be completed by July 2021. The two banks’ services are
now connected seamlessly, including Co-Locations, bill payments, car loan payments and a surcharge-free ATM network.
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Both banks’ electronic service offerings have been connected seamlessly allowing TMB customers to make payments for
TBANK’s products, TMB customers can use TBANK’s ATMs for cardless withdrawal function, and customers of both banks
can access both TMB and TBANK’s 4,900 ATM/ADM kiosks across the country. Moreover, TMB and TBANK Co-Locations
have officially been launched since the beginning of this year and have received much positive feedback. In addition, TMB
branch staff are now eligible to recommend TBANK’s car loan products to customers. Human resource reorganization and
staff transfers have also proceeded as planned. TMB completed C-level setup and have had a single board government
with all of the new bank’s executives working together since the beginning of the year. During the year, the Bank has relocated some of the staff to join the new team, including senior management officers, as well as supervisory and operational
staff.
• TMB entered into a strategic bancassurance partnership with Prudential Life Assurance (Thailand) PCL.
(“Prudential Thailand”), a subsidiary of Prudential plc, for an initial term of 15 years. Following the merger, FWD Life
Insurance Public Company Limited (“FWD Thailand”), the previous bancassurance partner to TMB, and Prudential Thailand,
the previous bancassurance partner to Thanachart Bank, reached agreement that Prudential Thailand would become the
strategic bancassurance partner of the merged bank under TMB and will provide its best-in-class suite of life insurance
products to more than 10 million TMB and TBANK customers. For this transaction, TMB recorded income of THB 1.3 bn in
2020 and will gradually record revenue worth approximately THB 20.8 bn throughout the combined initial term and transition
period, starting April 2020. In addition, TMB will stop the recognition of revenue from FWD under the old bancassurance
agreement, starting from 1 April 2020 with no impact to TMB’s recognized revenue of THB 4.4 bn (during the period between
1 January 2017 and 31 March 2020 according to existing agreement).
• TMB was awarded from SET with “Deal of the Year Awards” from the merger transaction between TMB and
Thanachart Bank Public Company and also awarded with “Thailand Sustainability Investment” in Financials sector, a reward
which given to companies which manage economic, social and environmental management under the principles of good
governance as a mechanism for developing business towards sustainability.
• TMB was awarded with “Digital Transformation” and “Cloud-Native Development” from Red Hat APAC
Innovation Awards 2020 held by Red Hat Inc. which is the global leader in open source solution. “Digital Transformation”
reward is in recognition of organization which is successful in managing IT challenges and create business value for
competition as a digital organization and the “Cloud-Native Development” reward is based on agile working methods and
agile organization which are the most successful in the area of creativity, maintenance, and successful use of business
applications.
• TMB has developed the new digital banking business management platform for business customers, “Business
ONE”, which is more than just an internet banking. It allows business customers to transact via online channel and control
their business both financial and non-financial from one single touch point with lower costs through ONE Platform, ONE to
Control, One to Command. TMB believes Business ONE will be the key partner to help business customers both corporate
and SMEs customers nationwide.

Part 1 Page 7

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

1.3 Structure of Shareholders
1.3.1 Business Consolidation Policy
TMB segregates the business activities of its group companies in accordance with the Bank of Thailand’s
consolidated supervision regulation, which calls for a bank’s setting up of a financial business group. The financial business
group consists of companies divided into two categories, based on the Bank’s ownership portion and type of business, as
follows:
1. Solo consolidation is defined as a company which operates as a credit or the business like credit which has
the specific law regulated institution and the Bank holds at least 75% of its issued and paid-up share capital
and its management is under the Bank’s supervision.
2. Non-consolidation comprising companies engaging in the financial business and businesses supporting the
Bank’s operations, as follows:
• Financial business group is defined as a company which operates financial business and the Bank holds at
least 50% of its issued and paid-up share capital which such business has the specific law regulated such as
security business, life insurance business, non-life insurance business, credit card business, personal loan
under regulated, retail lending, and asset management business.
• Supporting business group is defined into 2 types:
(1) Operating company which engages in function tasks that are normal banking operation or tasks that are
directly support the operations of the Bank, provide service to the company in the same financial business group, or in
accordance with Bank of Thailand Notification re: Permission of Commercial Bank in provide service to the financial
business group or regulator (insourcing). However, if the support function is the company that doing in IT Infrastructure
then such company can provide service to public. In addition, the support function such as cash delivery is permitted to
provide its service to the other cash delivery operator during the crisis situation as per their Business Continuity Plan: (BCP).
(2) Fintech business that provide the supporting business or support the financial information for the customers
in requesting the lending from the financial institutions.
The supporting company is the company that the Bank holds at least 50% of its issued and paid-up share capital. The
Bank’s subsidiaries are classified based on this group structure as shown in the chart below:
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1.3.2 The Bank's Group Structure Chart

1.3.3 Business description of subsidiary and associated companies
As of December 31, 2020, TMB had invested in subsidiary and associated companies as described below:
Name
Subsidiary companies
1. Thanachart Bank Plc., Co., Ltd
2. Phahonyothin Asset Management Co., Ltd
3. Thanachart Broker Co., Ltd. 2/
4. Phayathai Asset Management Co., Ltd. 3/
Total investment in subsidiary companies
Associate Companies
1. TMB Asset Management Co., Ltd.
2. Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. 2/
Total investment in associated companies
Net investment in subsidiary and associates
companies

Type of business

Investment value by % of shareholding
cost method
by TMB
as of Dec 31, 2020
as
of
Dec 31, 2020
(THB million)

Bank
Asset management
Insurance brokerage
Asset management

167,930
25
167,955

99.98%1/
100.00%
100.00%
-

Fund management
Fund management

197
197
168,152

35.00%
49.90%

1/ The remaining 0.02% of the total share in TBANK is owned by minority shareholders.
2/ Investments in Thanachart Broker and Thanachart Fund Management are consolidated in an investment in Thanachart Bank.
3/ The company completed liquidation process on Oct 1, 2020 and was written off in Nov 2020.

•

Thanachart Bank Plc., Co., Ltd. – Operating commercial banking business and other businesses permitted
by the BOT, which include non-life brokerage, life insurance brokerage, and securities business consisting
of securities brokerage, securities trading and selling of units trusts, mutual fund supervisor, private fund
custodian, bond broker-dealer, securities registrar, and gold futures contract trader.

•

Phahonyothin Asset Management Co., Ltd. – Established by TMB to manage non-performing loans, nonperforming assets and relevant collateral transferred from the Bank to ensure optimum returns.
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•

Thanachart Broker Co., Ltd – Operating non-life insurance brokerage and life insurance brokerage business,
providing service for the car and motorcycle registration and annual registered tax to customers of
Thanachart Group, recommending financial products of TBANK, providing service for the annual motor
transportation tax and car insurance renewal to customers of hire-purchase from TBANK, providing service
for the tax reminder and collection, and insurance fee and any related fee provide services for, and services
the other businesses of non-life and life insurance businesses.

•

TMB Asset Management Co., Ltd. – Engaging in fund management in compliance with the Securities and
Exchange Act and in investment management under the permission of the Securities and Exchange
Commission. TMB Asset Management Company Limited (TMBAM) was established on October 16, 1996
with TMB Bank as the main shareholder. On September 27, 2018, Prudential Corporation Asia Limited has
joined TMB Bank and holds 65% of TMBAM shares together with TMB Bank which holds 35%. TMBAM has
been rebranded as TMBAM Eastspring on January 21, 2019.

•

Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. – A company held by Prudential Corporation Holdings Ltd. And
Prudential Holdings Ltd. (holding 50.1 percent of the total shares) and TBANK (holding 49.9 percent of the
total shares). As it operates businesses related to not only management of mutual funds, private funds, and
provident funds, but also investment advisory business, the company could be considered one with
integrated advisory services.
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2. Nature of Business
Income structure
Income structure of the Bank and its subsidiaries consist of interest income, fees and service income and other
operating income. Details are in the following income structure table for the years ended December 31, 2018-2020 :
(Unit: THB million)
Income structure
Interest income
Interbank and money market items
Investments and trading transactions
Investments in debt securities
Loans to customers
Hire purchase and finance leases
Others
Fees and service income
Gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions, net
Losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, net
Gains on financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Gains on investments, net
Share of profit from investment using equity method
Other operating income
Total income

2020
72,320
1,922
109
1,920
45,633
22,734
2
15,921
-

For the year ended December 31,
% 2019
% 2018
78.1 39,837
71.1 35,128
2.1 1,965
3.5
1,761
0.1
131
0.2
56
2.1 1,555
2.8
1,219
49.3 34,334
61.3 32,082
24.5 1,822
3.2
30
0.1
10
17.2 11,343
20.2 12,764
- 1,528
2.7
1,529

%
56.6
2.8
0.1
2.0
51.7
20.6
2.4

-

-

(22)

-

(11)

-

1,726
678
363
1,644
92,652

1.9
0.7
0.4
1.7
100.0

1,956
324
1,072
56,038

3.5
0.6
1.9
100.0

11,963
64
663
62,100

19.2
0.1
1.1
100.0

2.1 Products and services
TMB offers financial products and services, ranging from deposit, loans, investment product and bancassurance. However,
each customer segment has different financial needs. As a customer centric organization, understanding customer’s needs
is one of TMB key success factors. TMB business is organized into 2 key customer segments as follows:
1. Commercial Banking Group
2. Retail Banking Group
2.1.1 Product and services for Commercial Banking customers
• Multi-corporate Banking segment: Customer group with annual sales turnover more than THB5.0 billion.
• Corporate Banking segment: Customer group with annual sales turnover of THB1.0 billion – THB5.0 billion
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• Business Banking segment: Customer group with annual sales turnover of THB100 million – THB1.0 billion
• Small Enterprise: Customer group with annual sales per year up to THB100 million.
Type
Deposit
Loan and Financing

Payment and Collection

International Trade
Insurance
Others

Products and services
Business accounts (TMB One Bank)
SME account (TMB One Bank)
Working capital
Supply chain solutions
Letter of guarantee
Special funding program for SME (TMB SME Smart Biz)
Payment service
Collection service
Liquidity management
International trade finance service
Capital market risk management
Bancassurance & Business Protection
Corporate card
Agency service
Investment banking

2.1.2 Products and service for Retail customers
• Affluent for customers who have income from THB 100,000 and above
• Middle Income for customers who have income from THB15,000 to THB100,000
• Mass for customers who have income up to THB15,000
Type
Products and services
Deposit
Transactional account (All Free)
Savings account (No Fixed)
Loan
Personal loan
Home loan
Auto loan
Credit card loan
Mutual fund
TMB Open Architecture
Insurance
Savings towards future securities
Life and health protection
Properties protection
Wealth banking
Wealth banking
Superior banking
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TMB Open Architecture
TMB is considered as a first Thai bank that offer open architecture platform for all group of customers. The Bank set a
long-term strategy to distribute under an open-architecture platform and offer a wide variety of mutual fund products in
order to match various client needs and risk-return profiles. In 2020, TMB has strong 11 partners with leading asset
management both domestic and international asset managements including TMB Asset Management Co, Ltd., UOB Asset
Management (Thailand) Co., Ltd., Aberdeen Asset Management Co, Ltd., CIMB-Principal Co., Ltd., Manulife Asset
Management Co., Ltd, TISCO Asset Management Co., Ltd, One Asset Management Co., Ltd, Kasikorn Asset Management
Co., Ltd, Krungsri Asset Management Co., Ltd and Thanachart Asset Management Co., Ltd. This enables TMB to offer a
broader range of products and asset classes that suit different risk profiles of the customers.
Bancassurance
TMB entered into a strategic bancassurance partnership with Prudential Life Assurance (Thailand) Public Company Limited
(“Prudential Thailand”), a subsidiary of Prudential plc, for an initial term of 15 years which will take effect from Jan 1, 2021
to provide Prudential’s leading product offerings of health and wealth solutions to the whole enlarged network of the merged
entity under TMB. The remaining term of bancassurance contract with FWD Life Insurance, which is the Bank’s previous
bancassurance partnership, will be entirely transferred to Prudential Thailand on 31 December 2020. FWD will continue to
honour the obligations under, and to service customers who have bought, any FWD insurance policies through TMB for the
remainder of their policy terms.
Prudential Life Assurance (Thailand), a leading life insurer which has operated in Thailand for more than 24 years and is a
member of Prudential PCL. Prudential Life Insurance offers a comprehensive range of products, mainly life and health
insurance, to fulfill the customers’ needs throughout the different stages of their lives. Also, based on this partnership, TMB
and Prudential will be able to leverages on technology to better serve our customers.
For Non-life insurance business, TMB offers insurance for loan collateral in association with non-life insurance companies.
After the merger, the Bank has leveraged on TBANK’s strong auto loans customer base which has enhanced TMB’s nonlife insurance premiums substantially. TMB also provides other non-life insurance products such as personal accident,
health and motor insurance.
2.2 Market and Competition
2.2.1 Market policy for product and services in year 2020
In 2020, the Bank’s business units consisted of 1) Commercial Banking 2) Retail Banking and 3) Automotive Lending. The
summary of each business unit’s operation in 2020 is described as below.
1) Commercial Banking
In 2020, Commercial Banking continued to grow as a main operating bank for our customers through digital transactional
banking and supply chain solutions. In addition, we have advised our customers to unleased their potential and maximize
values during the COVID pandemic.
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As small and medium businesses were facing unprecedented challenges from the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19),
TMB had helped to reduce their burden with various customized Relief and Post-relief programs throughout the year,
including customized consultation workshops and industry-focused seminars for impacted small businesses. Moreover,
TMB has been working closely with strategic partners to minimize the financial burden for their entire supply chain
ecosystem through our TMB supply chain programs which includes extending account receivable terms to dealers,
shortening payment period to suppliers, and providing special soft loan packages to dealers and suppliers.
TMB has been leveraging on new technologies to helped businesses large and small to embrace the ‘new normal’. We
provide new digital tool called “Business ONE” which was launched in Dec 2020 to help our customers with digital payment
and collection services. Business ONE is equipped with various business applications such as generating Digital Invoices,
Online Payment Services, and unparallel Business Management Platform. Business ONE platform will revolutionize large
and small businesses to be able to do beyond basic transactional financial services. Some of the key features of Business
ONE are advanced credit loan request system, self-authorization, cash flow analysis, as well as the Open API or Open
Banking that links Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), Human Resources (HR) and Customer Relationship Management
(CRM) systems in one place.
2) Retail Banking
In 2020, TMB has worked diligently to prepare for the merger. We started to onboard Thanachart staff to TMB in order to
align skill as Trusted Advisor, providing professional financial consultation to customers. In parallel, we have prepared to
migrate and gradually implemented system change for EBT. All these activities were to provide excellent customer
experience, to respond to customers’ financial needs, and importantly to improve customers’ Financial Well-Being while
allowing bank to achieve sustainable business growth.
TMB has strived more to innovate variety of products and services to address customers’ financial needs. In the past year,
our financial offerings aiming to increase customers’ Financial Well-Being include; Investment – To assist customers to build
financial stability and wealth, No Fixed served as a saving product that provides both high interest rate and flexibility.
Additionally, we have wide selection of Mutual Fund, which we focused on providing most suitable investment advice to
customers. One of our innovations was TMB SMART PORT. A portfolio management product that offers asset allocation
service with fund selection to retail customers catering base on 5 levels of customers’ risk appetite, and automatically reallocate investment proportion every quarter to reflect market situation. This solution significantly improved the way
customers invest by having investment specialist selecting, allocating, and re-balancing portfolio for long-term wealth
growth. Lending Advisory – To serve as financial tool for customers to acquire asset and their business, we offer consultation
and recommend the most appropriate lending products (Home Loan, Auto Loan, Small Business Loan) to customers. Due
to COVID-19 in 2020, many lending customers faced a challenging situation. TMB worked diligently to address customers’
problem of not being able to pay in-full and on-time as before. In order to help customers impacted from the situation, we
launched new Cash Your Car product, and we also set up a special Debt Advisory Team to proactively reach out to
customers, provide advisory, and offer most suitable and beneficial options tailored to each customer. Development in
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retail lending did not limit to product and solution, but also how bank provide most suitable advice to each customer.
Transactional Banking – To provide convenience in doing daily transactions, our Credit Card provides 1% cash back for
every transaction or gives 1 reward points for every 10 Baht spending. TMB All Free is the country’s best in class
transactional service which offers various useful benefits at free of charge covering all-financial purposes one can possibly
gain for daily life. Last year, TMB All Free, well-known for its free banking transaction benefits, uplifted customers’ Financial
Well-Being to another level by offering a free personal accident medical protection of 3,000 Baht per accident (unlimited
times) when customers maintain 5,000 Baht balance. This benefit was added on top of existing TMB All Free benefits of
20X personal accident death protection, free overseas travel insurance, and special FX rate for overseas spending. TMB
aims to address protection needs of our customers through Bancassurance products. We innovated products to address
variety of protection needs, including wealth protection and transfer (Wealthy 3 Gen and The Treasure), life insurance with
high coverage (Pay Light High Protection 20/10+CI), health insurance, and protection of assets (car and home). TMB
focuses on ensuring customers’ Financial Well-Being is not confined to only wealth aspect, we aspire to develop solutions
for customers to use protection as a financial solution to protect themselves and love ones.
3) Automotive Lending
Thailand’s 2020 economy slowed down from both direct and indirect factors such as (1) the COVID-19 virus pandemic (2)
the historically high household debt (3) impact from international trade war (4) the instability of geo-politics; all factors
caused new car sales to drop 20% from 2019.
Against the backdrop of these challenges, the Automotive Lending Business Unit recognizes the importance of its role to
help customers and partners to overcome COVID-19 virus pandemic as well as preparing for the world after the pandemic
together. As such, the Bank issues debt relief programs called “Tang Lak” as the fast mitigation measure with
comprehensive coverage across the country and for all customers. The Automotive Lending Business Unit reached out to
all parts of the automotive eco-system, whether customers, partners, dealers, and corporate clients in order to ensure
necessary support and recovery for businesses and livelihood of the eco-system.
Moreover, the Unit has adapted its business and operations to be more resilient to the situation by providing more prudent
lending as well as focusing on developing digital platform to cope with changes in customer behavior. Overall of 2020, the
Automotive Lending Business Unit maintained leadership in Auto Finance with continued to grow its loan balance and
maintained its NPL lower than the industry’s average.
2.2.2 Distribution channel and network
In 2020, TMB has started integrating 2 banks service channels while continue to enhance our services to meet new
customer expectations. We focus on Omni-channel offering that combines digital, digital-human and human channels in
an interconnected way to provide customer a seamless experience anywhere, anytime with the greatest cost effectiveness.
Following are strategic focus by channels;
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1) Digital Channels
Digital Channels will bring customers to get the full benefit of Omni-Channel experience. We continue to introduce new
digital capabilities and redesign the customer journey to align with “Digital-First” operating model; customers will receive
superior banking experience using digital banking (more capability, most convenience and security). At the same time, we
are also in progress of consolidating Retail digital services from 3 platforms (TMB Touch, T-Connect and MEbyTMB) into 1
mobile platform TMB Touch per transition plan to new bank.
TMB Touch is the main Mobile Banking Platform for Retail Customers. We focus on building TMB Touch to be the main
channel for both customers as self-service banking and for our staffs as a tool for customer advisory and engagement.
Following is a list of the digital capabilities already available on TMB Touch;
▪

▪

▪

▪

Apply/Account Opening: Customers now can apply/open account from simple transactions accounts to
complex investment products via TMB Touch (apply Promptpay, issue Debit Card, apply Credit Card, apply
Personal Loan, open Mutual Fund account, open TMB Smart Port and purchase insurance)
Banking Services: Customers can withdraw cash at ATM using Cardless cash withdrawal function, make Fund
Transfer by account or mobile phone number, make International Fund Transfer, make QR payment/transfer,
pay Bill /Top Up, request Credit Card Installment Plan (TMB So GooOD) , block cards, preform Mutual Fund
transactions (Purchase, Sell, Switch)
Financial Well-Being Services: Customer can check all account balance online including Insurance accounts,
set auto direct debit for Bill payment (don’t miss any bill payment), Set up personalized Saving Goal and auto
saving on No Fixed and ME SAVE account, Set automatic investment plan to automate Mutual Purchase on the
timely basis, Change Credit Limit to manage spending,
Customer Benefits: TMB WOW points. Collect WOW point by making payment via ALL Free Debit Card and
check WOW point balance and activate pay with WOW via TMB Touch (1 WOW point = 1 baht).

We also in progress of building TMB Touch capability to have MEbyTMB and Thanachart T-Connect functions in transition
to have 1 Mobile Banking platform for retail customers in 2021. MEbyTMB products are now available on TMB Touch and
target to launch Thanachart T-Connect features on TMB Touch by July 2021.
The Internet Banking service through website www.tmbdirect.com. It’s an alternative digital banking channel. We focus on
maintaining the integrity and security of the Internet Banking system, giving our customers more confidence when
conducting financial transactions via all digital banking channels. This allowed us to maintain our online customer base in
a sustainable manner.
TMB Business One Launched in December 2020, it’s a new Internet Banking Platform for corporate customers. The new
platform is developed in Responsive Web Design allowing customers to use in a variety of devices and window or screen
sizes. It provides board range of banking services across cash management, international trade transactional services,
Foreign Exchange Service and Supply Chain Financing. The service enables digital transactions for more customer
convenience. Target to reach 100,000 users by the end of 2021.
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2) Branch Network
While digital banking has become the default for many customers as evidenced by the increasing usage of digital banking
services, our Branch network focus was on the development of people to become “trusted advisor” and the new branch
relationship service model to accommodate those customers who value the personal touch and those who prefer face-toface interactions for complex financial products.
At the same time, we continue to make a progress for readiness to serve customers as a one bank and consolidate both
bank branch network to reduce redundancy or those with relatively low traffic as well as expand our new services as follows:
▪

▪

▪

“TMB-Thanachart Co-Location” branches. The new branch model uplifted branch service standard offering
complete solution from both TMB and Thanachart to serves customers in one location. The Co-Location
branches represent the readiness to serve as one bank, to onboard customers before entire business transfer
(EBT) in July 2021 and to allow Bank to optimize branch network footprint; target to open 114 Co-Locations
Branches by the end of 2020.
The Bank launched Facial Recognition technology upon customer onboarding at branch raising security
standards to onboard customers from offline to secured online channel. We target to effectively combine digital
and human channels to create a seamless omni-channel offering by digitizing sales and service at branch in
response to customers’ diverse needs in the digital era. We’ve developed technology such as CRM and Big
Data to equip our people to deliver need-based/personalized solution.
Expand service through Banking agents to enhance accessibility to bank services: Customers can make cash
deposit into their account at more than 10,000 7-Eleven locations. After deposit service launch in January 2020,
the deposit transactions at 7-Eleven have continuously increasing. We also provide bill payment services at 4
main Banking Agents 7-Elevent, Big C, Lotus, Thai Post and continue to expand more services and more agents
in 2021 as alternative and convenient channels to serve.

3) Electronic Channels: ATMs and ADMs (Auto Deposit Machines)
We focus on customer convenience to support ATM/ADM role of quick cash accessibility while continue efficiency
improvement and service enhancement to serve customers as a one bank. We combined both bank electronic network in
2020 and now have more than 4000 machines to expand our coverage area nationwide. Following is the key service
enhancements and plan in the future for Electronic Channel service expansion;
▪

▪

We have successfully combined ATM functionality from both banks and provided services to both TMB and
Thanachart customers as one bank. Customers from both banks can use any TMB or Thanachart machines for
withdraw cash, make bill payment and deposit cash to TMB or Thanachart accounts without any fee charge.
Cardless withdrawal: Connecting 2 bank channels; mobile Banking customers can withdraw cash at ATM
without using ATM/Debit cards. Not only it’s more convenient, it’s also more secured transaction utilizing Mobile
banking security instead of using physical cards.
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Easy-Access Locations: With the focus on customer convenience and reduce area redundancy, we’ve
relocated 700-800 machines in repetitive areas and revised our service locations to cover in convenient area
such as major department stores, hypermarket and gas station.

4) Contact Center
Retail Customers: To deliver the best customer omni-channel experience and meet customer behavior in the digital era,
Contact Center is the key channel that interacts with our customers in order to provide information, and customer case
management both voice and non-voice channels. We focus on following key area.
▪

▪
▪

Seamless Transition and infrastructure enhancement to one bank service: we continue to serve both TMB and
Thanachart customers via TMB and Thanachart contact center. We are in process of upgrade contact center
infrastructure technology and service capability to support business growth. Telephone number of both banks
will remain in service until after entire business transfer (EBT) in July 2021 to ensure the smooth transition to
the one service number for new merged bank.
Non voice: we continue to expand our capacity and enhance capability to support non-voice channels to
support customer behavior shifted from call to chat.
Customer Case Management we focus on improving customer experience by developing bank-wide process
for handling customer complaints both voice and non-voice channels, while also preparing guidelines for
customer communication to ensure customer positive experience.

Distribution channel and network
TMB
1. Branches and Business Centers
Domestic branches
403 branches nation-wide (403 locations)
• 289 TMB only branches (289 locations)

Overseas Branches
Zone Offices

Foreign Currency
Exchange Service

Thanachart

443 branches nation-wide (443
locations)
• 329 Thanachart only branches (329
locations)
• Co-Location (TMB Thanachart Branch) 114 branches (114 locations)
• Cayman Islands branch, Cayman Islands branch
• Vientiane branch, Lao P.D.R.
• 23 zone offices for Small Business
• 43 zone offices for SME
• 12 zone offices for Business Banking
• 1 Booth at HQ
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2. Electronic Channels
ATMs and ADMs
• ATM 2,134 Machines
• ADMs 497 Machines
• All in Ones 63 Machines
3. Digital Banking
Mobile Banking
• TMB TOUCH mobile application.
Internet Banking

• Internet Banking service for retail customers
through the website www.tmbdirect.com
• Internet Banking service for business customers
through the website www.tmbizdirect.com

4. Contact Center
Contact Center

• 1558
International Call +66 2299 1558
Small Business
• 0-2828-2828 Service hours: 8.00 -20.00 on
Monday – Saturday
Corporate Call Center • 0-2643-7000 Service hours: 8.00 -18.00 on
working days
5. MEbyTMB
ME Place
• ME Place 5th floor, Central World
Call Center
• 0-2502-0000
Website
• www.mebytmb.com
Mobile Application
• TMB TOUCH mobile application.
• MEbyTMB Application.

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

• ATM 1,155 Machines
• All in Ones 234 Machines

• Thanachart T-Connect
• Internet Banking service for retail
customers through the website
www.thanachartbank.co.th

• 1770
International Call +66 2217 5770
• 1770
• 0-2217-5700 Service hours: 8.30 20.00 on working days

2.2.3

Banking Industry and Trends
1) Performance of Commercial banks in 2020
Commercial banks had weaker growth as loan expansion deaccelerated from the Covid-19 crisis that slowed down
Thai economy. Credit expanded at a slower pace than deposits. This caused L/D ratio to decrease from 96.5% to 87.0%.
Liquidity in Thai banking system at year-end stood at THB 4.2 trillion, growing from THB 3.8 trillion from the same period
last year. Total assets of domestically registered commercial banks rose 8.2% to THB 19.9 trillion.
Commercial banks’ total loans in 2020, stood at THB 14.2 trillion, expanding by 5.2%. Large corporate loan growth
expanded at 13.1%, mostly in services, commerce, and manufacturing, because weak bond market and low interest rate
induced corporates to move away from corporate debt market. Small and Medium Enterprises’ (SME) loan contracted due
to economic impacts from countrywide lockdown by 2.8%. Consumer loans in all portfolios grew at slower rates.

Part 1 Page 19

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

MLR of the five largest commercial banks were averaged at 5.42% at the end of 2020, dropping from the previous
year from rate cuts in which BOT lowered the policy rate from 1.25% to 0.50% at the end of December 2020 to support the
economy. Commercial banks lowered their lending rates to mitigate the interest burden of their customers especially for
SMEs, who were impacted the most from the economic slowdown. They also cut deposit rates as well. As a result, the
spread between MLR and 12-month time deposit rate increased to 495 basis points.
In 2020, commercial banks’ deposits grew 21.5% from last year to THB 16.3 trillion mainly from saving deposits.
Consequently, the share of current and saving deposits was significantly increased to 73% from 60% of total deposit last
year. Five largest banks’ average time, current, and saving deposits interest rates dropped following decreases in the
policy rate.
Total NPLs (gross NPLs) of commercial banks as of December 2020 increased from THB 465 billion to THB 523
billion from the same period last year. NPL ratio increased by 14 basis point and remained elevated at 3.12%. It was largely
driven by NPLs from SMEs loans, especially in manufacturing and service businesses as a result of the economic slowdown.
Retail’s NPL ratio dropped slightly to 2.8%. The decrease was from mortgage and hire purchase loans due to debt
restructuring and measures from commercial banks.
The net profit of commercial banks registered in Thailand stood at THB 132 billion in 2020, decreased by THB 121
billion or 48% from last year due to high provisions against economic risks that increased 42% from the previous year. Net
interest income increased from lowering interest payments. Fee and service income declined from money transfer and
commission fees.
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Thai Commercial Banks’ Assets, Deposits, and Net Loans (After Loan Loss Provision)
Assets
Deposits
Net Loans
Amount
Amount
Amount
Bank
Share (%)
Share (%)
Share (%)
(Billion Baht)
(Billion Baht)
(Billion Baht)
Bangkok Bank
3,385
17%
2,486
17%
1,896
15%
The Siam Commercial Bank
3,280
16%
2,430
17%
2,126
17%
Krung Thai Bank
3,227
16%
2,467
17%
2,124
17%
Kasikornbank
3,061
15%
2,340
16%
2,067
16%
Bank of Ayudhya
2,461
12%
1,819
12%
1,610
13%
Total 5 large banks
15,415
77%
11,542
79%
9,823
77%
Thanachart Bank
811
4%
558
4%
650
5%
TMB Bank
1,205
6%
816
6%
694
5%
United Overseas Bank (Thai)
632
3%
492
3%
422
3%
Total 3 medium banks
2,649
13%
1,865
13%
1,765
14%
CIMB Thai
404
2%
194
1%
218
2%
TISCO Bank
265
1%
205
1%
214
2%
Kiatnakin Bank
354
2%
252
1.7%
263
2%
Land and Houses Bank
240
1%
183
1.3%
156
1%
Standard Chartered Bank (Thai)
167
1%
84
0.6%
29
0.2%
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Thai)
225
1%
147
1.0%
112
0.9%
Total 6 small banks
1,656
8%
1,065
7%
991
8%
Bank of China (Thai)
69
0.3%
47
0.3%
45
0.4%
The Thai Credit Retail Bank
81
0.4%
65
0.4%
67
0.5%
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank (Thai)
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
ANZ (Thai)
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
0
0.0%
Mega International Commercial Bank
25
0.1%
16
0.1%
21
0.2%
Total
19,894 100%
14,600 100.0%
12,712 100%
Source: Bank of Thailand (as of December 2020)
Performance Summary:
• Loans
Commercial banks’ total loans in 2020, stood at THB 14.2 trillion, expanding by 5.2%. Large corporate loan
growth expanded at 13.1%, mostly in services, commerce, and manufacturing, because weak bond market and low
interest rate induced corporates to move away from corporate debt market. Small and Medium Enterprises’ (SME) loan
contracted due to economic impacts from countrywide lockdown by 2.8%. Consumer loans in all portfolios grew at slower
rates.
Part 1 Page 21

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Loan Growth by Customer Type

*( ) represents %share to total loans
Source: Bank of Thailand
Business Loan Growth by Industry

*( ) represents %share to business loans
Source: Bank of Thailand
Retail Loan Growth by Product

*( ) represents %share to retail loans
Source: Bank of Thailand
MLR of the five largest commercial banks were averaged at 5.42% at the end of 2020, dropping from the previous
year from rate cuts in which BOT lowered the policy rate from 1.25% to 0.50% at the end of December 2020 to support the
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economy. Commercial banks lowered their lending rates to mitigate the interest burden of their customers especially for
SMEs, who were impacted the most from the economic slowdown. They also cut deposit rates as well. As a result, the
spread between MLR and 12-month time deposit rate increased to 495 basis points.
Interest Rate Movement and Spread

*Average from 5 largest commercial banks’ rates
Source: CEIC
Deposits
In 2020, commercial banks’ deposits grew 21.5% from last year to THB 16.3 trillion mainly from saving deposits.
Consequently, the share of current and saving deposits was significantly increased to 73% from 60% of total deposit last
year. Five largest banks’ average time, current, and saving deposits interest rates dropped following decreases in the
policy rate.
•

Composition of Deposits by Maturity

Source: Bank of Thailand
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Average Deposit Rates by Maturity

*Average from 5 largest commercial banks’ rates
Source: CEIC
•

Non-performing loans (NPLs)

Total NPLs (gross NPLs) of commercial banks as of December 2020 increased from THB 465 billion to THB 523
billion from the same period last year. NPL ratio increased by 14 basis point and remained elevated at 3.12%. It was largely
driven by NPLs from SMEs loans, especially in manufacturing and service businesses as a result of the economic slowdown.
Retail’s NPL ratio dropped slightly to 2.8%. The decrease was from mortgage and hire purchase loans due to debt
restructuring and measures from commercial banks.
NPL Ratio by Customer Type

Source: Bank of Thailand
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NPL Ratio of Business Loan by Industry

Source: Bank of Thailand
NPL Ratio of Retail Loan by Product

Source: Bank of Thailand
Performances
The net profit of commercial banks registered in Thailand stood at THB 132 billion in 2020, decreased by THB 121
billion or 48% from last year due to high provisions against economic risks that increased 42% from the previous year. Net
interest income increased from lowering interest payments. Fee and service income declined from money transfer and
commission fees.
•
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Performances of Commercial Banks Registered in Thailand
Income-Expense (Billion Baht)
2020 2019
Change (%)
Interest income
660 713
-53 -7.4%
Interest expenses
161 233
-72 -31%
Net interest income
499 481
+19 +4%
Fees and service income
174 192
-18 -9%
Fees and service expenses
48
52
-4 -7%
Net fees and service income
126 140
-14 -10%
Gains on tradings and forex
37
39
-2 -4%
Gains on investment
0 122
-123 -100%
Others operation incomes
58
47
+11 +23%
Net non-interest income
221 349
-128 -37%
Other operation expenses
337 358
-21 -6%
Operating profit
383 472
-88 -19%
Impairment loss of loans and debt securities 225 159
+66 +42%
Profit before income tax
158 310
-152 -49%
Tax
26
56
-30 -54%
Net profit
132 254
-121 -48%
Source: Bank of Thailand
Composition of Fees and Services Income in 2020

Source: Bank of Thailand
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1) Trend of Commercial Banks in 2021
•
Loan and Deposit Trend
The commercial banking industry in 2021 is expected to recover in line with Thai economic recovery from Covid19 outbreak. This is due to growth in exports which should follow returning international demands. Private consumption
should resume this year with supports from government policies. However, tourisms might remain weak due to the closure
of Thai border, affecting tourism and service businesses.
Corporate loan tends to grow in alignment with demands for working capital, but at a slower rate than growth in
2020. Recovery in bond market should encourage large corporates to return to issue more corporate bonds this year.
Loan for SMEs will accelerate from the previous year from economic recovery. Credit quality continues to deteriorate from
tourism industry that still faced impacts from a closure of Thai border. Weak economic returns in service and tourism
industries cause commercial banks to be more cautious in loan approval especially for SMEs.
Consumer loan, credit card and personal loan are estimated to return this year. Changing behaviors during Covid19 outbreak and cautious loan approval caused weak loan growth last year. Economic recovery should support growing
households’ demands for liquidity. However, the credit standard could be tightened amid concerns over households’ debt
serviceability. In addition, the growth of mortgage loan and car loan should accelerate after a drop in previous year.
Deposits are likely to decelerate partly because of returning economic activities. Also, given a low interest rate
level, low returns from deposits will encourage depositors to allocate their savings to other financial products with higher
returns than term deposit, which offers low interest rate particularly after policy rate cuts in 2020. Additionally, the slow
increase in loan growth together with prevailing high liquidity will not lead to intense deposit competition.
•

Ongoing challenges in banking business in 2021

1. Digital Banking and Digital Lending
After commercial banks have invested in digital infrastructure to reduce operating costs and provide greater
opportunity of wider customer reach, banks now began to utilize detailed data extracted from digital platform to provide a
financial product that satisfy customer’s needs with prompt response as well as enhancing more efficiency in risk
management. The product is digital lending which continued to grow after Bank of Thailand allowed financial institutions
both bank and non-bank to acquire licenses to operate. Digital lending help customers with unreliable sources of income
to provide substantial supporting evidence to apply for loans. Digital information such as utility bills and online transactions
can be used as supporting evidence.
2. National Digital ID (NDID) platform
National Digital ID is a new online cross-bank identity verification which offers a new choice that the customers do
not have to present him/herself right at the bank. In other way, they can however request the original bank, which their
identification process with the bank had been already once done, to send the identification data to a new bank instead
(Authentication). This will significantly cut the numbers of related documents and redundant working process, especially
between the banks. Accordingly, it will reduce operating cost and provide more convenient financial services for people
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and businesses in a timely manner and with global-standard safety. This thus helps enhancing the ease of doing business
in Thailand in another way. In the first phase, the verification platform will be applied only in opening bank accounts and
loan approval. Later, in the second phase, it is expected to be wider used in opening portfolio account, mutual fund and
insurance services for those foreigners as well as corporate.
3. E-Marketplace Platform
Commercial banks and financial institutions are prone to expand their roles as online platform service providers,
whose the platform will be a place for exchanging goods and services as well as full digital payment service (e-Marketplace
Platform). This is in order to respond to the change in customers’ behaviors in online-shopping. The BOT has already
approved the guideline for the bank and financial institutions engaging in e-marketplace since 2019.
4. National e-Payment
National e-payment is a national agenda so as to promote standardized and modern electronic payment system
that will help cutting transaction costs in the economy. Thai commercial banks are therefore expected to continue promoting
Prompt Payment (PromptPay) services, EDC usage and expanding QR code payment. In most recent period, Thai
government has already utilized more e-Payment platform for tax rebating and cash transferring in welfare scheme for Thais
through Prompt Payment system. Moreover, the stock exchange of Thailand has introduced the initiated payment system
for capital market, supporting the payments in security transactions between investors and asset management firms. This
can satisfy the condition that the original account and the destination one are in different bank as well as help reducing the
systemic risk in payment system. In longer run, there will be further service launched for wider ranges of transactions such
as dividend payment for stockholders and security orders payment in mutual fund.
5. Financial technology
Fund raising through venture capital supports the setups of Fintech firms, which their figures have rose sharply
with the capacity of wider service offering ranging from money transfer, payment, investment to insurance services.
Incorporating new technology, this enable banks to satisfy their customers’ financial service needs with new products in a
more timely manner. Commercial banks are now interested to invest in blockchain and Defi (Decentralized Financial
system) which are considered as non-traditional competitors of the banking system in the future. Looking forwards, the
cooperation between bank and Fintech firms will accordingly be prominent. This would result in bringing together the
strength of bank in wide customers base and Fintech firm in advance technology capacity to offer better financial services
for customers with more efficiency.
6.
Regional Partnership and expansion
Thai commercia banks began to expand in the ASEAN region through acquisition of foreign banks and financial
services. Partnership building among ASEAN banks through the establishment of QABs (Qualified ASEAN Banks) along
with the guideline of financial services liberalization will help reducing obstacles for Thai commercial banks in doing
business in the region and for those Thai business sectors to gain more easy access in trade and investment within the
region.
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2.3 Source of funds
2.3.1 Sources of funds
Major sources of funds for TMB are deposits, interbank and money market items and borrowings. As of December 31,
2020, TMB had total deposits (Consolidated) of THB 1,373,408 million, where saving account, time deposits, and current
account represented 80.3%, 13.6% and 6.1% respectively.

Besides total deposits that were represented 89.3% of total funds. In addition, the Bank recorded interbank and money
market items of THB 75,909 million and borrowings of THB 88,965 million, making up 4.9% and 5.8% of total funds
respectively.
TMB’s sources of funds during the specified period are as follows:
As of December, 31
2020
2019
2018
(Consolidated)
Amount
As % of
Amount
As % of
Amount As % of
(THB million) total fund (THB million) total fund (THB million) total fund
Time Deposits
Saving Accounts
Current Accounts
Total deposits
Interbank and money market items
Borrowings
Total Borrowings

186,876
1,103,241
83,291
1,373,408
75,909
88,965
164,874

12.2
71.7
5.4
89.3
4.9
5.8
10.7

418,819
903,198
76,095
1,398,112
86,626
108,835
195,461

26.3
56.7
4.8
87.8
5.4
6.8
12.2

75,178
515,908
58,482
649,568
64,267
35,124
99,391

10.0
68.9
7.8
86.7
8.6
4.7
13.3

Total Funding

1,538,282

100.0

1,593,573

100.0

748,959

100.0
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2.3.2 Policy on funding and pricing
TMB has a policy to mobilize funds from the sources mentioned above with the amount and tenor that is most closely
aligned to its requirements. Other factors taken into account are proper liquidity for the Bank’s operation and comparison of
funding costs from various sources. Meanwhile, suitable deposit interest rates are determined based on liquidity in the money
market and of the Bank itself, together with external factors such as interest rate trends, the Bank of Thailand’s monetary policy,
competition in mobilizing deposits, national economic trends and other such factors.
2.3.3 Policy on liability management
The Bank manages its short- term and long-term liabilities both in Thai baht and foreign currencies to match with the asset
or clients’ demand for loans. In order to hedge both interest rate and FX risks, various financial instruments such as FX swap,
Interest rate swap and Cross currency swap are applied manage the above liabilities efficiently, which constitutes the alignment
of the Bank’s cash inflow and outflow.
2.3.4 Capital Adequacy
The Bank and its subsidiaries’ capital adequacy ratios consisted of the following:
(Unit: percentage)

Capital ratio (under Basel III framework)
Capital Adequacy Ratio/Total RiskWeighted Asset
Tier 1 Capital Ratio/Total Risk-Weighted
Asset
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio/Total
Risk-Weighted Asset

The BoT’s
regulation
minimum
requirement *

31 Dec 20

11.0

19.59

18.95

17.31

8.5

15.46

14.62

13.53

7.0

14.45

13.62

13.53

31 Dec 19

* Includes capital conservation buffer as required by the BoT commencing 1 January 2016.
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In TMB, risk management is of primary importance in order to create shareholder value by ensuring a sustainable
balance between risk and return whilst remaining in compliance with regulatory requirements. The general Risk
Management Framework consists of a clear Governance Structure, a consistent Risk Management Process and of the
embedding of a Risk Culture in the first Line of Defense. Moreover, Risk measurement is fully integrated in the strategic
planning. All of this translates into a straight forward Risk Management strategy in which:
•
Products and portfolios are structured, underwritten, priced, approved and managed appropriately and within
established risk appetites;
•
Compliance with internal and external regulations and guidelines is monitored continuously;
•
Our risk profile and risk appetite are transparent and consistent;
•
Delegated authorities are consistent with the Bank’s overall strategy and risk appetite;
•
Communication to internal and external stakeholders on risk management and value creation is transparent.
3.1.1 Risk Governance Structure
TMB maintains a risk governance structure that is intended to strengthen risk management by ensuring that risktaking authorities are properly cascaded down from the Board to the appropriate committees and functional levels. Risk
issues and the changing regulatory and business environment are managed in an efficient and effective manner. To maintain
the independence of the Compliance function, Compliance has a dual reporting line to the Audit Committee and Chief Risk
Officer.
TMB Risk Governance Structure
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The Board of Directors (BOD) holds ultimate responsibility of bank-wide risk management. and delegates authorities
to committees as follows:
The Risk Oversight Committee (ROC) is appointed as a sub-committee of the Board, with clear roles and
responsibilities as delegated by the Board. The Risk Oversight Committee’s role is to fulfill its oversight responsibilities in
relation to the bank’s risk management framework and to ensure alignment of that framework with the Bank’s overall
governance framework. To that end the Risk function, on a quarterly basis, compiles the ROC Risk Dashboard that
combines key insights from all risk areas into one overview which enables the ROC to perform its activities.
Several risk committees provide forums to discuss and decide about specific risk areas:
1. Risk Policy Committee
Ensures that credit risk is adequately controlled via a complete and up to date set of policies, frameworks, standards,
risk appetite, delegations of authority, procedures and models. In addition, the committee ensures that all inherent risks
directly related to Credit products and programs are properly addressed, reported and where possible mitigated.
2.

Portfolio Management Committees
Ensure that the portfolio performance is on track and properly managed to meet both business and risk related
strategic short and long term goals.
3. IFRS9 ECL Committee
Considers and approves the level, accuracy and adequacy of provisions under the IFRS9 guiding principles for
Expected Credit Loss and determines the necessity of additional management overlay to ensure proper coverage of the
portfolio.
4. Legal Risk Committee
Considers and approves the proposed legal matters related to ISDA schedules and derivative agreements.
5. Bank Non-Financial Risk Management Committee and IT Non-Financial Risk Management Committee
Manage the Non-Financial risks and IT risks of the Bank and its subsidiaries by establishing the Non-Financial Risk
strategy, policies and risk appetites and ensure that they are implemented effectively, with the appropriate level of
granularity. To ensure sufficient attention to non-financial risk issues across the businesses the bank set up three Business
Unit Non-Financial Risk Committees for Retail, Automotive and Commercial Banking that report into the Bank Non-Financial
Risk Committee
6. Financial Markets Control Committee
Serves as a cross-functional forum for business, operations, information technology and risk management functions
with a primary focus on business practices, risk and control environment and end-to-end value chain of the Bank’s Financial
Markets undertakings and its product approval and review. The Financial Markets Control Committee reports to Bank NonFinancial Risk Committee.
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7. Asset and Liability Management Committee
Assists the ROC in all matters related to the asset and liability management, balance sheet management and capital
management
All the risk management related functions are under the leadership of the Chief Risk Officer (CRO). The CRO, as a
member of the Bank’s Chief Executive Committee (CEC) and reporting directly to the Chief Executive Officer, oversees and
promotes the development and implementation of consistent bank-wide risk management. The ROC sets the CRO’s annual
targets and confirms his performance against these targets
3.1.2 Risk Management Process
Risk Management in TMB consists of 5 key risk management processes:
1) Risk appetite setting: TMB annually sets risk appetites for various risk domains (credit, market, fraud, IT). These
appetites are input for and aligned with the MTP process, are discussed in and endorsed by the relevant subcommittees,
and where appropriate approved by the board. Actual performance is measured against and reported on the basis of these
risk appetites.
2) Risk Identification: TMB classifies risks which are arising in daily business activities into 7 key risk areas: Credit
Risk, Market Risk (including but not limited to Foreign Exchange Risk and Interest Rate Risk), Liquidity Risk, Non-Financial
Risk (comprising Operational Risk, IT Risk, Compliance Risk, Market Conduct Risk and Legal Risk), Strategic Risk, Model
Risk and Reputational Risk
3) Risk Assessment & Measurement: TMB uses different methods and tools to measure various risk types in both
quantitative and qualitative aspects. In addition, TMB also conducts Stress Testing to measure the quality and resilience of
the Bank’s portfolio and the Bank’s capacity towards stress event scenarios.
4) Risk Monitoring and Control: TMB controls, mitigates and monitors risks by setting key risk indicators, as well as
risk appetite at bank-wide, portfolio, product and other levels as may be appropriate.
5) Risk Reporting & Communication: The status of various risk types as well as actions taken / to be taken are reported
to relevant parties / committees and top management on a regular basis. The risk reports cover product level, portfolio
level, functional level, and the bank-wide level.
Three lines of Defense:
Over the last years, TMB has invested significantly in further strengthening a risk management culture where the
employees in the Business Units (the 1st line of defense) identify risks, consider the impact, report if necessary and apply
appropriate risk mitigation strategies. Investments include training, tooling, processes and policies. Risk Management units
under the Chief Risk Officer perform the 2nd line of defense duties of formulating risk strategy and appetite, policies and
appropriate risk structures, provide oversight and monitor the 1st line of defense and actively challenge the risk – return
trade-off in the Business units. Internal audit as the 3rd line of defense provides independent and objective assurance on
the effectiveness of controls and recommends improvements to the governance, risk & control framework.
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3.2 Key Risk Factors
Key risk factors that could arise from the Bank’s business operation are as follows.
3.2.1 Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of potential loss as a result of borrowers and/or counterparties failing to meet their financial and
contractual obligations in accordance with agreed terms. It arises primarily from granting loans and undertaking contingent
liabilities, and also from certain off-balance sheet products such as credit derivatives.
TMB’s credit risk management objective is to maximize the Bank’s risk-adjusted return by maintaining the credit risk
exposure within acceptable levels and by building a sustainable competitive advantage by integrating risk management
into business activities and strategic planning.
In recent years, TMB has improved and continues to improve its credit risk management capabilities with investments
in people, risk management governance, processes, measurement tools and systems including the development of an
economic capital framework, improved risk measurement processes, credit assessment and origination as well as various
tools, such as risk rating models, application, behavioral and collection scorecards., The bank also established frameworks
which set out credit policies, procedures, and guidelines covering the measurement and management of credit risk. This
has been achieved whilst further building a stronger credit culture within TMB, based on thorough knowledge of our
borrowers and executed by well-trained staff according to our 3 lines of defense risk management framework. The 3 lines
of defense principle helps us to mitigate credit risk within TMB and consists of 3 principles:
• Management and staffs of TMB Bank business units have primary responsibility and accountability for the
effective control of credit risks incurred by their business units (“1st line of defense”).
• Credit Risk Management (“2nd line of defense”) supports and where necessary interferes in the 1st line of
defense’s risk management activities. The risk management functions are independent of the management and staff
that originate the credit risk exposures.
• Audit operates as the “3rd line of defense”. Audit is to provide an independent assurance of the design and
effectiveness of internal controls over the credit risks inherent to TMB’s business performance.
3.2.1.1 Credit Risk Factors
• Credit quality
Further improving the quality of TMB's assets remains an ongoing priority. Stage 3 loans (Non-Performing Loans)
arise when debtors fail to repay debts according to an agreed schedule. This may lead to loss of interest income but
sometimes also of the principal balance, whether in whole or in part, which thereby will affect TMB’s profitability and capital
adequacy.
TMB manages the quality of its credit portfolios by monitoring and reviewing the status of our borrowers and/or
counterparties constantly, both at an individual and at portfolio level. Also, here the 3 lines of defense approach is
applicable: dedicated Relationship Managers monitor their Commercial Customers at an individual level. For our Retail
portfolio, the focus is on portfolio management supported by portfolio management teams. Special attention is paid to
problem exposures, which are subject to more frequent reviews and reporting. Early warning triggers, Qualitative Risk
Score, and Behavioral Risk Level monitoring are in place to detect customers that may be moving towards an adverse
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stage or show further deterioration of their performance. Dedicated Credit Restructuring teams and Credit Restructuring
Committees are established to restructure problem loans in an effective manner and to provide advice on debt restructuring
conditions. TMB sets aside loan loss provision in accordance with guidelines from the Bank of Thailand (BOT). Expected
Credit Loss is calculated using PD (probability of default) based on risk level, EAD (exposure at default) based on loan
types or debtor types, and LGD (loss given default) based on collateral types.
The bank’s Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) expresses the type and level of Risk that the bank is willing to tolerate
in pursuit of its strategic objectives. The RAS ensures that the Bank’s actual risk exposure is consistent with its strategic
objectives and that exposures moving beyond tolerance risk levels are timely identified and acted upon. The RAS serves
as input towards TMB Bank’s financial plan. The RAS contains a set of qualitative and quantitative statements which are
measured and reported on a monthly basis towards ROC and Chiefs Executive Committee. This RAS also forms the basis
of the quarterly Portfolio Management Committees in order to timely address possible boundary breaches.
Impairment in value of physical collateral
A substantial portion of TMB’s loan portfolio is secured by physical collateral and other assets, the value of which
may be affected by the overall economic conditions of Thailand. For example, a downturn in the real estate market could
result in the principal amount of loans secured by real estate exceeding the loan-to-value proportion compared to that at
the time of origination. A decline in the value of collaterals securing loans may result in an increase in the Bank’s allowance
for expected credit loss. TMB manages collateral value impairment risk by through the collateral appraisal policy and
executes related procedures in accordance with BOT’s regulations. The reappraisal frequency is among other things also
driven by the level of risk measured by the borrower’s loan performance.
•

Credit Concentration
Concentration risk in credit portfolios is an important aspect of credit risk management. TMB manages and
monitors credit concentration with respect to industries, countries and customers by establishing and managing Bank-wide
industry diversification thresholds, country limits and customer concentration to manage both existing and potential
exposures within acceptable levels to ensure appropriate diversification of the portfolio and avoid excessive credit risk
exposure in certain industries, countries or customer groups. At customer level TMB has established a risk-based Single
Exposure Limit and Single Lending Limit to manage the maximum exposure and the maximum limit for single obligor and
related lending. Managing concentration risk is an ongoing area of attention in TMB’s Credit Risk Management prioritization.
•

3.2.1.2 Credit-Related Policy
1) Staging and provisioning policies
The Bank maintains a loan classification and provisioning framework in line with BOT’s notification which requires
all banks to set up clearly defined policies and guidelines to comply and align with the new International Financial Reporting
Standard 9 (IFRS9). Commercial loans are classified by debtors, whereas consumer or retail loans are classified by
accounts separately. If customers use both types of credits, the loans are classified by debtors based on the worst of all
accounts. Moreover, in addition to provisions made according to the above mentioned BOT’s notification, the Bank
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proactively reviews and sets aside management overlay when appropriate to cover both Probability of Default (PD) and Loss
Given Default (LGD) shifts.
2) Policy on provision for legal cases
TMB estimates provisions on off-balance sheet items to make appropriate provision in line with BOT’s notification
regarding Classification and Provision of the Financial Institutions when 1) Legal obligations that result from the Bank’s
activities and 2) It is likely that the Bank will be liable to make (re)payment for such obligations and 3) Obligations can be
reliably estimated.
3) Stage 3 Loans (Non-Performing Loans)
The Bank is aware that the management of stage 3 and stage 2 (Under-Performing) loans impact the overall bank
performance. To ensure independence, the Bank set up a Special Advisory Banking Services (SABS) team (in the 1st line
of Defense) which together with Credit Restructuring Underwriting (the 2nd line of Defense) work together towards the
objective of SABS to prevent viable clients from flowing to stage 3 based on the principle of proactive advisory and fast
track measures to restructure under-performing loans and convert to stage 1 – performing loans, with the objective of Credit
Underwriting to ensure quality of debt restructuring at all stages, as well as the accuracy of loan staging. SABS takes care
of debtors who start to be under-performing on their credit facilities and fall in “Early Warning Sign (EWS)” or show a
significant deterioration in their risk profile. The debtors who are classified as stage 2 require close monitoring. To be more
efficient, SABS Manager will co-ordinate/negotiate with debtors to identify debtors’ problems and to set appropriate solutions
based on the nature of their problem. For example, in case of short term liquidity problem, the bank may consider term
extension, restructuring loan facility, and etc. In case of long term problem such as higher competition or lower sale, the
bank may consider long-term restructuring (troubled debt restructuring, TDR) based on debt service ability.
To comply with the policy, Documentation Team and Legal & Strategy Team will co-ordinate with SABS team to
prepare any document or agreements to properly capture any such arrangements. To monitor the implementation, the
Monitoring Team will closely follow up on all actions related to contracts by working along with SABS to ensure that the risk
is controlled until the accounts are converted back to normal.
For stage 3 and to set Debt Restructuring Plans which comply with the Bank’s Policies and Regulations, all Credit
Restructuring Teams will work with the Legal Strategy Team to establish an appropriate plan before negotiating with Debtors,
In order to effectively manage the size of stage 3, the Bank may sell or write off stage 3 exposures that are not expected to
be able to finalize Debt Restructuring Plans, by portfolios or on a case by case basis.
3.2.2 Market Risk
Market risk is defined as the potential loss due to changes in the price of market parameters. The main parameters are
interest rates, foreign exchange (FX) rates, equity and commodity prices. For risk management purposes, the Bank has
established various market risk policies, which set standards and guidelines for market risk management. The business
units designated with the responsibility for market risk management accomplish this task under the standards set in the
policies, while Market Risk Management independently monitors the bank-wide market risk.
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The Bank controls the actual market risk exposures by setting limits within the Bank’s risk appetite approved by
the Board of Directors. The significant market risks are as follows:
3.2.2.1 Foreign Exchange Risk
Foreign Exchange Risk means the potential loss of earnings and/or shareholder value of the Bank resulting from
changes in foreign exchange rates arising from on- or off-balance-sheet exposures in the Trading or Banking Books. The
losses may arise from changes in the valuation of foreign currency positions, including losses from foreign exchange trading
transactions, or translations from one currency to another.
The Bank’s Global Markets and Transaction Banking department (1st Line of Defence) is responsible for managing
foreign exchange positions of the Bank’s Trading Book. In addition, Market Risk Management (2nd Line of Defence) puts
in place a framework of market risk management measures. These measures are designed to minimize any excessive risk
from unfavourable changes in market conditions which may adversely affect the prices or returns on the Bank’s trading
portfolios related to foreign currencies, with strict limits on:
1. Delta: Defined as the rate of change of the position value with respect to changes in the price of underlying asset.
2. Gamma - Defined as the rate of change of the delta with respect to changes in the price of the underlying asset.
3. Vega - Defined as the rate of change of the option value with respect to the volatility of the underlying asset.
Within these limits, Global Markets and Transaction Banking is responsible for trading and managing the portfolio and
optimizing the return on the funds invested. Adherence to the limits is monitored by Market Risk Management.
3.2.2.2 Interest rate risk
Interest rate movements directly affect the Bank’s earnings or economic value. Interest rate risk management is
undertaken in accordance with the policy framework as approved by the Bank’s Board of Directors, by establishing and
monitoring various risk curbing limits such as Earnings-at-Risk limit, Economic Value of Equity. The ALCO is delegated by
the Board of Directors to oversee the firm-wide structural interest rate risk to stay within the Bank’s aggregated interest rate
risk limit.
The Bank has adopted interest rate risk management measures to cushion the interest rate volatility, e.g.
rebalancing of assets and liabilities or setting of a proper mismatch by considering external and internal factors including
interest rate forecasted by TMB Analytics.
3.2.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank fails to meet its obligations as and when they fall due as a result of an inability to
liquidate assets into cash in time or is unable to raise funds deemed adequate for its operations causing damage to the
Bank. The Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO) is responsible for the oversight of liquidity management.
The primary aim is to provide liquidity to the Bank in order to ensure that the liquidity position in both domestic and foreign
currencies are sufficient for the Bank’s normal operations as well as for any crisis that may arise and that the Bank’s liquidity
level is to exceed the minimum as required by Bank of Thailand (BoT) and comply with the risk framework and risk appetite
approved by the Risk Oversight Committee and the Board of Directors. The Bank reviews its liquidity management plan
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and strategy for a normal and critical situation at least once a year, or under special situation due to material changes that
may impact the Bank’s position. This is to ensure the alignment with the Bank’s core policy, the organization structure, the
regulations, and the ever-changing market condition. The Bank and each company in the Bank’s financial group manage
liquidity risk separately.
The Balance Sheet Management (BSM) is the unit of the Bank responsible for overall liquidity management and Capital
Markets is responsible for day-to-day liquidity management. Balance Sheet Management is also responsible for liquidity
measurement, monitoring and reporting the performance of the liquidity management to the ALCO in order to ensure the
Bank’s liquidity in compliance with the approved risk appetite and limit. The Market Risk Management is responsible for
identifying, monitoring and controlling the liquidity risk. The Bank has a liquidity risk management policy, which is reviewed
at least once a year, or when necessary, to ensure that it is appropriate with the prevailing environment.
In order to manage liquidity, the Bank continuously monitors its funding sources and access to capital markets. The
Bank recognizes the importance of holding highly liquid assets that can be quickly converted into cash or used as collateral
for raising funds.
Most of the Bank’s funding was mainly from deposits. The Bank’s ongoing quality deposit strategy seeks to further
strengthen its financial position and operating results in order to boost depositors’ and customers’ confidence. Meanwhile,
priority is also given to liquidity risk management by maintaining the level of liquid assets, keeping abreast of risk levels on
a daily and monthly basis, setting risk indicators, and taking proactive steps to contain risks at an acceptable level. In
addition, the liquidity contingency plan is prepared for various crisis situations, whereby the roles of the relevant responsible
units are defined, as well as funding plans and communication plans to customers, etc.
3.2.4 Non-Financial Risk
Non-Financial risk is defined as the risk of financial impact and non-financial impact e.g. legal or regulatory sanctions,
or reputational damage due to inadequate or failing internal processes, people and systems, a failure to comply with laws,
regulations and standards, or external incidents.
TMB adopts the Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) by using gross income as a proxy in the calculation of value equivalent
to operational risk-weighted asset (RWA).
Non-Financial Risk Management at the Bank is managed through a governance structure where the Board of Directors
holds the ultimate responsibility for bank-wide risk management. The Board has delegated several non-financial risk
management related authorities to the Bank Non-Financial Risk Committee (BNFRC) and IT Non-Financial Risk Committee
(IT NFRC), both chaired by the CEO, whose responsibilities are to manage the non-financial risks and IT risks of the Bank
and its subsidiaries by establishing the Non-financial Risk strategy and policies and by ensuring that they are implemented
effectively at all levels with the proper degree of granularity and by overseeing any outstanding risk exposures, adequate
follow-up on outstanding risk mitigation actions and the compliance with NFR Policy and Minimum Standards.
The bank has applied the “Three Lines of Defense” risk governance model aligning with COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission). The bank has established 3 BUs (Retail Banking, Automotive
Lending and Commercial Banking) Non-Financial Risk Committees: BU NFRC, chaired by Business Chiefs, reporting to
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BNFRC, to emphasize the “Three Lines of Defense” Model at lower level in the organization and enable the management
from lower levels to steer the operational & compliance risk management in their respective Business Units.
Under “the Three Lines of Defense” principle, Business and Support Units (BU/SUs) as the 1st Line of Defense, are
primarily responsible and accountable for their own operational risk management and controls. Business Operational Risk
Management (BORM) is part of the first line of defense and supports Chiefs, product and process owners in performing
risk management related activities (e.g. RCSAs. Incident reporting and root cause analysis on incidents). BORM
independently test controls. Heads of BORM teams are functionally reporting to Head of CORM. The Bank has established
a dedicated Corporate Operational Risk Management (CORM) function, as the 2nd Line of Defense, reporting to the CRO,
to oversee specific non-financial risk management risks, including the following risk areas: processing risk, control risk,
unauthorized activity risk, employment practice risk, information (technology) risk, business continuity / disaster recovery
risk, (internal and external) fraud risk, personal & personal & physical security risk, and workplace safety risk. CORM
developed Non-financial Risk Management Policies (which have been approved by the Board of Directors) to ensure that
the non-financial risks are properly identified, assessed, monitored, reported, analyzed, and controlled in a systematic and
consistent manner. The policies provide the foundation and common infrastructure for delivering, maintaining, and
governing operational risk management.
Compliance is the 2nd Line of Defense function, reporting to the CRO, to oversee Compliance risk, one of the nonfinancial risk management. Compliance developed the Compliance Policy to ensure that the Compliance risk are properly
managed.
Legal and Financial Control are the 2nd Line of Defense function, reporting to the CRO and CFO respectively, to oversee
the legal risk and the financial control risk which are also under coverage of the non-financial risks.
Market Conduct Risk Management is the 2nd Line of Defense, reporting to CRO, to supervise and review as an
oversight function of business operations and services related to the Pillars of Market Conduct to identify potential risks
related to Market Conduct, via each of the business and control processes such as product and service approval,
Investment and Product Offering Committees for Mutual Fund, incentive setting, training and communication to staffs and
customers, and Risk and Control Self-Assessment (RCSA).
Audit operates as the "3rd Line of Defense". Their mission is to provide an independent assurance of the design and
effectiveness of internal controls established by the first (BU/SUs) and the second (CORM, Compliance, Legal, Financial
Control) line of defense. In carrying out this work, Audit provides specific recommendations for improving the governance
and the risk & control framework.
The Bank uses several tools and processes to manage the operational risk such as Risk & Control Self-Assessment
(RCSA), Risk Appetite Statement (RAS), Key Risk Indicators (KRI), Incident Management, Action Tracking, Product and
Service Approval Process (PSAP), Third-party Risk Management, Business Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery Plan
(BCP / DRP), and Key Control Testing (KCT). The Bank uses and implements the GRC system as a tool for incident
management and response and PTA identification and to keep track of the status of the actions which come from audit and
non-audit findings to ensure that they are monitored and managed efficiently by all relevant parties.
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RCSA is a process that helps to identify and assess key risks and controls as well as to determine the mitigating
actions. The Bank has also established KRI’s at corporate and business level to be a warning signal for all levels of
management, enabling them to proactively manage and control their non-financial risks. Incident management is
established to enable detection, resolution, analysis of non-financial risk incidents, as well as collection of loss data.
The RAS is determined based on strategy, objectives and historical incident data. The RAS contains a set of
quantitative and qualitative statements. The quantitative statements are measurable and are determined by the strategic
priorities of the organization. The qualitative expressions of non-financial risk appetite describe the acceptable and
unacceptable attitudes and behaviors of the organization as a whole. The process of measuring, monitoring and reporting
of RAS is done through the non-financial risk dashboard (NFRD) on a quarterly basis which aims to promote a pro-active
risk management response. In case the Bank moves towards or beyond the tolerance level, the responsible units will
highlight the issue during NFRD reporting on the Bank Non- Financial Risk Committee (BNFRC), the Risk Oversight
Committee (ROC), and the Board of Director (BOD), management and staff are expected to take actions to bring the risk
down to within its tolerance level.
To ensure that products and services are offered in a safe and responsible manner, the Product and Service Approval
Process (PSAP) is established to set guidelines for sign-off and approval of new products and services. This due diligence
process ensures that the potential risks created by the new products and services are properly identified and mitigated,
and that the necessary infrastructure and controls are in place to support the new business.
The Bank has established its Third-party Risk Management Policy to set out the principles and standards for the
effective identification of major risks created by outsourcing and management of such risks.
The Bank has established its Business Continuity Management (BCM) Policies and Standards to provide guidance
and standards for all units to develop a Business Continuity Plan. The Business Continuity Management under Information
Security Office (ISO) is set up to oversee the implementation of BCM Policies and Standards, monitor and lead the coordination of group-wide BCP initiatives to raise the overall BCP / DRP readiness of the Bank.
The Bank has established the Key Control Testing (KCT) minimum standard to provide guidance and standards for all
Business and Support Units in the area of mandatory control testing by BORM functions. KCT is the set of methods and
processes used for the key control testing in order to keep non-financial risks related to business activities actively within
TMB Bank’s risk appetite, ensure the effectiveness of controls and building proactive Risk Culture.
3.2.5 Reputational Risk
Reputation can be described as a strategic asset of the bank, which is embedded in its key stakeholders’ perceptions
towards the whole organization or its business practices or its employees’ behaviors and cannot be transferred to and
deployed by other banks and competitors.
Reputational risk can be described as the exposure incurred from unexpected incidents or from unanticipated
responses to the institution's initiatives, actions, and day-to-day activities, particularly the cases that catch public attention
and are negative news. Unexpected incidents range from activities of rogue employees, to questions regarding the
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suitability of sales practices, to the actions of disgruntled customers, to public regulatory sanctions - all of which can
generate negative public reactions.
Unanticipated responses range from negative public reactions (including liquidity implications) based on
announcements or activities of the institution, to organized public activities designed to impact institutional decisionmaking. Those incidents and responses will be result in bank’s negative images or are not confident in a bank or bank’s
products or services. Such events may negatively impact present and future revenue and/or capital of the bank.
Reputation is one of the impact factors described in the Non-Financial Risk (NFR) Footprint, which provides the
guideline on how the bank assesses the reputational impact to the bank’s brand/image based on the non-financial risk
events. Reputational risk is a key area discussed as part of RCSA activities resulting in risk statements and mitigating
controls, documented in control frameworks.
At the end of each year, CORM gathers information based on GRC system looking at reputational risk identified during
the year and presents the consolidated result of reputational risk assessment to Bank Non-Financial Risk Committee (Bank
NFRC) for acknowledgement in the 1st quarter of the following year.
3.2.6 Strategic Risk
TMB is aware of the possible strategic risk that results from the strategic plans, business plans, strategic
implementations and controls which may be inappropriate and/or inconsistent with both internal and external business
environments.
TMB’s vision is, “To become the recommended bank of choice by our customers”. In order to achieve this vision,
TMB developed a 5-year rolling strategic plan focusing on a Deposit-Led Strategy and Transactional Banking Excellence.
This will create a strong foundation for sustainable growth whilst TMB builds towards achieving market leadership. In
addition, realizing synergy value from the merger with Thanachart Bank will also be the strategic priorities of TMB going
forward.
The crystallization of our strategy and implementation of both Business As Usual (BAU) and integration activities are
reflected in continuous improvements of key financial performances. In order to better manage the strategic risk, TMB
improved the processes of performance tracking and strategic risk control. Regular meetings of the management team and
business units are held to review performance results together with remedial planning in case of target shortfalls. A strategic
risk dashboard has been developed and is updated regularly to keep management informed and aware of the changing
strategic risk status. A self-assessment of strategic risk is also regularly evaluated by management.
In all, TMB strongly determined to maintain a high level of strategic risk management. Starting from the process of
strategic planning, organization restructuring, staffing and project implementation as well as performance monitoring, all
must be in line with the Bank’s key strategies. In addition, the strategic plan itself is reviewed regularly to ensure it stays
relevant with the changing business environment.
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3.2.7 Other Risk Factors
1)
Risk from Economic condition
In 2020, Thai economy faced severe impacts from COVID-10 outbreak, causing the sharpest contraction at 6.1
percent from 1997 Asian financial crisis. Economic activities received negative effects in several aspects, especially
tourism sector and merchandise export sector. However, economic activities improved in the second half of the year after
easing lockdown measure and gaining supports from government’s relief measures and economic stimulus programs.
These actions help sustaining Thai economy and preventing it from a severe decline. At the end of 2020, however, there
was a new round of domestic outbreak, causing the recovery path in 2021 to face even heightened uncertainty and ongoing
challenges. Regarding that the outbreak controlling measures being less restricted than in the first round, still they have
posed a deceleration in economic recovery path in the first quarter of 2021. The economy is projected to gradually rebound
later in the year under the conditions of better outbreak situation and much progress in vaccination in foreign countries.
With respect to Thailand, the inoculating target is at 50 percent of population within 2021. Overall for 2021, TMB Analytics
forecasted Thai economy to grow by 2.4 percent with all components being able to greater fuel the economic growth,
though not reach the pre-crisis level yet. About domestic economic activities, private consumption would gain positive
factors from relief measures and economic stimulus packages. They would help shoring up private consumption to a
positive territory but not able to accelerate the recovering pace due to remaining weak purchasing powers and fragile labor
market. For public investments, they are expected to continue, led by EEC infrastructure projects which most of them are
about to begin the construction phase within this year, yielding supports for the further rebound in private investment. About
external sectors, merchandise export would turn to be a positive figure, with a limited extent at 3.4 percent in accordance
with uncertainties in trading partners’ recoveries and Thai baht appreciation trend. Meanwhile, tourism sector would still
encounter the main challenges in foreign tourist rebounds, significantly depending on border openness of Thailand and
the original countries. Accordingly, inbound foreign tourists are projected to be only 3.5 million persons for 2021, causing
employment and tourism-related businesses to remain in fragile condition.
Regarding financial market, the Monetary policy committee would maintain the policy rate at 0.5% throughout the
year to provide supports for Thailand’s economic recovery, which is under high uncertainty and deteriorating qualities in
household debts. For Thai baht, it is projected to continue in an appreciating trend due to US dollar’ depreciation, foreign
capital inflows and economic structural issues, arising from persisting current account surplus partly due to low domestic
investment. TMB Analytics thus projected Thai baht to move between 29.5 to 30.5 baht per dollar in 2021.
Still, there are some risk factors putting pressure on Thailand’s economic recovery path in 2021 such as 1) the
distribution of vaccination globally failed to meet the expectation, causing slower-than-expected tourism recovery 2) the
sharp rises of unemployment rate and households’ debts, posing negative impact on purchasing powers and households’
ability-to-pay as well as business recovery, especially those SMEs, after terminations in debt relief programs 3) volatility in
global financial markets, affecting international capital flows and Thai baht movement 4) new trade and investment policies
under new US president’s regime, probably posing negative impact on Thailand’ export sector and 5) Domestic political
uncertainties with demonstrations, possibly deteriorating business sentiments and foreign investments.
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The Bank is fully aware of economic uncertainties and recognizes the importance of comprehensive risk management
framework and its execution. TMB Analytics, the Bank’s in-house economic research unit, has played an important role in
closely monitoring and assessing the economic conditions as well as cooperating with responsible business units on
regular basis. This is to ensure that the Bank’s operation is resilient and ready against any unexpected uncertainties. We
also regularly publish economic and financial articles as well as industry outlooks for all of our clients including corporates,
SMEs and retails.
2) Risk from Material Changes in Regulations
It is the Bank’s obligation to comply with statutory rules and regulations issued by relevant authorities, e.g., Financial
Institutions’ Businesses Act, Bank of Thailand’s Regulations and Notifications, the Securities and Exchanges Act, the
Securities Laws and Regulations as issued by the Stock Exchange of Thailand, the Securities and Exchange Commission,
Life Insurance Act and Non-Life Insurance Act, Office of Insurance Commission’s Regulations and Notifications, the Anti
Money Laundering Act, Counter-Terrorism and Proliferation of Weapon of Mass Destruction Financing Act and their Royal
Decrees. In addition, foreign act which substantial impact to the banking industry has also in place.
Compliance has been established in which responsible for providing advice, recommendations and opinions on
various issues, cooperative with the relevant functions within the Bank in order to ensure that the Bank and its subsidiaries
are in compliance with applicable statutory laws, rules and regulations as well as the Bank’s internal policies and
procedures. Substantial issues shall be escalated to the Bank’s management and committees to effectively manage
compliance risk.
In the year 2020, the Regulators who regulated Financial Institutions have issued guidelines including several
regulations for the Financial Institutions. The summary of the significant regulations are as follows:
The Bank of Thailand (“BOT”) has issued announcements to revise regulations on interest charge, default on debt
and debt amortization in order to ensure that the debtor is in a position to be able to pay the debt. As a result, the Non
Performing Loans (NPL) will not be accelerated. As per loans with installment payments, bank will use the money received
from debtor to write off the debt according to the debt amount each period by reducing the interest fee and the principal
of the debt that the debtor owed the longest first and then gradually write off the remaining outstanding debt, respectively
(Horizontal debt cut), scheduled to take effect next year from July 1, 2021 onwards. In addition, the BOT has issued
announcements to revise regulations on Market Conduct by defining the roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of
Directors and senior management of the service provider to be more clear, to make the management more efficient. For
example, there are reports on service problems and complaints to the Bank’s management, adjust the guidelines for
obtaining consent from customers in case of changing conditions of use of products or services that increase the customer
burden or risk. The customer wishing to accept the change must give consent to the service provider.
Previously, it was assumed that the customer accepted the change if the service provider did not receive a rejection
from the customer within a specified period in order to reduce complaints about offering products or services. In addition,
bank will disclose information about comparison, fines or impunity in case of directors or manager or the management
authority of the service provider who violates or fails to comply with the official criteria
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In terms of exchange regulation policy, BOT has revised the regulation of foreign exchange controls to make the
management of foreign currency more convenient by allowing exporters with income below 1,000,000 US dollars to deposit
money abroad for an unlimited period including the liberalization for individual investors to invest in foreign securities by
themselves in the amount of 5,000 USD and invest through an unlimited number of local agents, including downgraded the
Foreign Currency Deposit Account (FCD) to only one type.
The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) has established guidelines for opening accounts for conducting
capital market transactions to have a standard form (Single Form) to be the same standard. In addition, there will be an
increase in digital adaptation by changing the method of opening accounts and getting to know customers (Know Your
Client: KYC) electronically ("e-KYC") before providing services to customers. Bank shall collect and evaluate a variety of
customer data to determine who the customer is. This includes getting to know our clients in depth (Client Due Diligence
(CDD) to know their income and sources of income, financial position, knowledge and understanding investment
experience and objectives, including the client's acceptable risk profile in order to provide the service efficiently and can
use the digital identity verification and verification system (Digital ID).
The Office of Insurance Commission (OIC) has set rules for the insured to receive fair service (market conduct) since
policy development and issuance selection of sellers, distribution channels, measures for the offering process, providing
information for purchasing policy, after-sales service, complaint management Indemnity with a system that controls sales
quality in every channel and a hedging instrument is set to be used in market risk management in order to cope with the
fluctuation of financial markets under uncertain economic conditions. It also revised the criteria for maintaining capital funds
according to risk based capital (RBC) in line with international standards.
3) Shareholder Risk
Shareholder risk may arise if the return from investment is not as initially expected. Returns from the investment in
shares either in the form of capital gains and/or dividend income, might not materialize. Dividend income are dependent
upon the Bank’s profits. Capital gains are determined solely by TMB’s share price, which is influenced by a variety of
factors.
However, TMB provides broad guidance on its financial targets in the beginning of each year and shareholder may
face the risk that these financial targets might not be met in a particular year, which would affect both dividend and share
price. However, the Bank aims to consistently maintain its operating performance and prudent risk management in order
to generate sustainable returns for shareholders in the long run. Nevertheless, there are other external factors, which are
beyond the Bank’s control, that have the potential to affect the TMB performance and dividend payments e.g. domestic
and global economic trends, domestic political stability, capital movements, changes in BOT’s supervision which impact
banking system including the unpredictable circumstances in particular we faced with COVID-19 pandemic in 2020. Hence,
shareholders must be aware of all risk factors in which out of the Bank’s control and decide on investment to suit their
acceptable risk levels.
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4)
Emerging Risk
Integration
Integration inevitably brings with it significant changes to many aspects of business. Shifts in the direction of
businesses and ways of working can cause unease and confusion among workforces. The bank, therefore, needs to focus
on the smooth transition and integration of employees as much as the business aspects. During 2020, the bank aligned
the policies and procedures of the two banks, established a new corporate culture called ‘I CARE’ that changes the way
we work, and captured quick win synergies.
This integration proceeded as planned despite the disruptions caused by COVID-19 and is expected to be completed by
July 2021 (EBT: entire business transfer). The bank has put in place key measures and a medium-term strategic direction
to ensure business growth during the post-EBT/COVID-19 recovery, with a view to becoming the recommended bank of
choice by our customers.
Cyber resilience
Cybercrime is evolving rapidly and is now an everyday challenge for the finance industry. In addition, cyber criminals
see crisis events such as COVID-19 as an opportunity to launch more attacks in a variety of forms, with email, web and
SMS phishing being the top threats. To overcome these, we operate a 3 lines of defense model that ensures robust oversight
of our cybersecurity capabilities and priorities. The bank invests in IT infrastructure in a variety of forms to establish a
reliable system and technical controls to help prevent, detect and react to these threats. Also, the bank extensively shares
and collaborates with the cyber threat intelligence community to combat attacks. The bank also has a framework for remote
working (working from home) and regularly communicates with employees and customers to build awareness about cyber
security during the pandemic.
Technological innovations
While innovation and digitization provide financial institutions with new growth opportunities, banks can be impacted
by a lack of preparation for new technologies and financial innovation. New players such as startups, fintech, neobanks
and neoinsurers are contributing to a new competitive landscape that in turn is generating fresh ways of collaborating and
encouraging further innovations. Moreover, despite the many advancements in terms of technological innovations,
regulatory frameworks and guidance are still much needed both to prevent ethical dilemmas and to verify the effectiveness
of these models.
The bank is moving towards a digital centric approach through the implementation of a Digital Transformation program.
This encompasses the development of digital branding, agile organization, IT infrastructure and data analytics, as well as
the search for suitable digital partnerships that will enhance competitive advantage by keeping up with the rapid pace of
the digital era. TMB proactively analyzes and identifies the potential risks and opportunities of technological innovations,
such as machine learning, that can help us to better serve value-added solutions to our customers and identify risky
customers.
Financial stability
Black swan events such as the COVID-19 pandemic can have a huge impact on businesses across the world. To
withstand such events, the bank must have financial resilience to operate without business disruption despite the
economics strains. Since the 2008 financial crisis, the bank has maintained strong liquidity and capital so that it can operate
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as normal and absorb volatility and unexpected events in the near term. Going forward, the bank must prepare and closely
monitor its readiness for black swan events to face the dual challenges of sustaining the flow of finance and preserving
financial resilience. At the same time, the bank will continue to assist customers in need of help while navigating moral
hazards and managing the overall asset quality of the bank.
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Business Assets

4.1

Core fixed assets used in business operations
Premises & equipment and right-of-use assets
Net book value of premises & equipment and right-of-use assets of the Bank and its subsidiaries as at December 31,
2018-2020 are as follows:
(Unit: THB million)
As at December 31,
Item
2020
2019
2018
1. Land
12,315
13,763
6,137
2. Building
12,855
13,736
8,880
3. Right-of-use assets-premise
1,808
4. Leasehold improvements
1,169
1,373
1,362
5. Equipment
7,185
7,963
6,585
6. Right-of-use assets-equipment
1,816
Total
37,148
36,835
22,964
Less Accumulated depreciation
12,957
13,029
10,823
Allowance for impairment losses
152
164
265
Premises & equipment and right-of-use assets, net
24,039
23,642
11,876
4.2 Leasehold rights
1. Long-term lease
The Bank has leased office spaces, buildings, and commercial buildings from government agencies, state enterprises and
private entities to locate regional offices, branches, sub-branches, car parking and ATMs, numbering 1,622 for rental-terms
ranging from 1 year to 30 years, with total rentals payable of about THB 772 million per year.
2. Leasehold
The Bank owns leasehold on 4 branch offices amounting to THB 67.5 million for rental-terms ranging from 10 years to 30
years.
Details of the long-term lease contracts, land and office buildings
As of December 31, 2020, TMB leased a total of 1,622 plots of land and buildings from government agencies, state
enterprises and private entities, of which 597 are located in Bangkok and its vicinities and 1,025 in other provinces, as
detailed:
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1. Land (ATM)
1.1 Outsiders
1.2 Related parties
- Bureau of the Crown Property
- The Treasury Department
- Government agencies/State enterprises
Total (1)
2. Buildings (branch offices)
2.1 Outsiders
2.2 Related parties
- Bureau of the Crown Property
- University
- The Treasury Department
- Government agencies/State enterprises
Total (2)
Grand total (1)+(2)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Location
Bangkok & its vicinities Other provinces

Contract term

543

895

1-3 years

43
18
491

69
23
942

1-3 years
1-3 years
1-3 years
1,433

107

82

1-30 years

2
3
12
3
106
597

2
0
9
4
83
1,025

1-3 years
1-5 years
1-24 years
1-30 years
189
1,622

4.3

Intangible assets
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank’s service marks and trademarks registered with Department of Intellectual
Property, Ministry of Commerce, with the registration valid for 10 years from the registration date and renewable every 10
years, are as follows:
Symbol
Type
Product/Service
Registration date
Renew
Expiry date
Service mark Commercial bank
November 4, 2005
July 21, 2015
November 3, 2025
Trademark Magnetic stripe card November 4, 2005 August 26, 2015 November 3, 2025
Service mark Commercial bank
October 19, 2005 August 26, 2015 October 18, 2025
Trademark
Service mark Magnetic stripe card January 15, 2007 December 8, 2016 January 14, 2027
Website, internet
banking, mobile
Device mark Service mark banking, customer
September 2, 2010 August, 21, 2020 September 1, 2020
relationship
management center
Website, internet
banking, mobile
Service mark banking, customer
September 2, 2010 August, 21, 2020 September 1, 2020
relationship
management center
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Product/Service
Registration date
Renew
Website, internet
banking, mobile
banking, customer
September 2, 2010 August, 21, 2020
relationship
management center
Website, internet
banking, mobile
banking, customer
September 13, 2010 August, 21, 2020
relationship
management center
Umbrellas, fabric
bags, travelling bags,
briefcases, vanity
cases, sold empty,
June 5, 2014
taffeta backpacks,
name card cases of
leather, fabric totes.
Tents.

June 5, 2014

T-shirts, shirts (except
undershirts and
June 5, 2014
sports shirts), hats,
shirts.
Music boxes, melody
June 5, 2014
boxes.
Drinking water.
September 5, 2014
Umbrellas, fabric
bags; travelling bags,
briefcases, vanity
cases, sold empty,
September 5, 2014
taffeta backpacks,
name card cases of
leather, fabric totes.
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Type
Trademark
Trademark
Trademark
Trademark
Service mark

Trademark
Service mark

Trademark
Service mark

Trademark
Service mark

Trademark
Service mark

(Translation)

Product/Service
Tents.
Electric kettles,
flashlights.
Music boxes, melody
boxes.
Golf bags, golf balls,
dolls.
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Registration date
September 5, 2014

Renew

Expiry date
September 4, 2024

September 5, 2014

September 4, 2024

September 5, 2014

September 4, 2024

September 5, 2014

September 4, 2024

Calculators, hard
disks, USB data
carriers, computer
bags, radios,
telephone stands,
mobile phone cases, September 5, 2014
computer mouse
pads, application
software, videos and
data, video recording
discs.

September 4, 2024

shirts (except
undershirts and
September 5, 2014
sports shirts), hats.
Television advertising,
radio advertising,
newspaper
September 5, 2014
advertising, online
advertising, outdoor
advertising.
Financial services,
September 5, 2014
non-life insurance
services, credit
services, loan
services, credit card
services, debit card
services, surety
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Product/Service
Registration date
services, electronic
money transfer
services, safe deposit
services, currency
exchange services,
travelers’ check
issuance services,
internet banking
services, provision of
banking services
through telephone and
mobile phone, life
insurance brokerage
services, insurance
brokerage services,
life insurance services,
marine insurance
services, fire
insurance services,
accident insurance
services, provision of
installment loans,
mutual fund services,
hire-purchase
financing services,
leasing financing
services, savings
services, monetary
and financial analysis,
debit services,
provision of secured
loan, monetary and
financial consultancy.
Drinking water.

June 5, 2014
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Trademark
Service mark
Trademark
Service mark

Service mark
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Product/Service
Registration date
Electric kettles,
June 5, 2014
flashlights.
Golf bags, golf balls,
June 5, 2014
dolls.
Credit cards, encoded
June 5, 2014
magnetic, calculators,
hard disks, USB data
carriers, computer
bags, radios,
telephone stands,
mobile phone cases,
computer mouse
pads, application
software, videos and
data, video recording
discs.
Television advertising,
June 5, 2014
radio advertising,
newspaper
advertising, online
advertising, outdoor
advertising.
Financial services,
June 5, 2014
banking services, nonlife insurance services,
credit services, loan
services, credit card
services, debit card
services, surety
services, electronic
money transfer
services, safe deposit
services, currency
exchange services,
travelers’ check
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Product/Service
Registration date
issuance services,
internet banking
services, provision of
banking services
through telephone and
mobile phone, life
insurance brokerage
services, insurance
brokerage services,
life insurance services,
marine insurance
services, fire
insurance services,
accident insurance
services, provision of
installment loans,
mutual fund services,
hire-purchase
financing services,
leasing financing
services, savings
services, monetary
and financial analysis,
debit services,
provision of secured
loan, monetary and
financial consultancy.
Commercial bank
services

September 2, 2010

Renew

Expiry date

August, 21, 2020

September 1, 2020

Trademark
Service mark

Clocks, jewelry boxes,
souvenir key rings.

June 5, 2014

June 4, 2024

Trademark
Service mark

Notebooks, diaries,
pencils, pens,

June 5, 2014

June 4, 2024

Part 1 Page 53

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

Symbol

Type

Trademark
Service mark

Trademark
Service mark

(Translation)

Product/Service
Registration date
notepads, document
folders, letter paper,
letterhead paper,
drawing paper, writing
paper, envelopes,
memo paper, office
folders, self-adhesive
memo paper, articles,
publications for
advertising purposes,
advertising posters,
advertising flyers,
paper advertising
boards.
Picture frames,
June 5, 2014
umbrella hangers,
pillows, bean bags,
plastic advertising
boards, wooden
advertising boards,
advertising inflatables.
Glasses, coffee
June 5, 2014
serving sets, coasters,
beverage containers
for household use,
food containers for
household use, not of
precious metal, plastic
coasters.

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Renew

Expiry date

June 4, 2024

June 4, 2024

4.4 Investments in subsidiary and associated companies
4.4.1 Policy on investments in subsidiary and associated companies
The Bank has a policy to invest in related subsidiaries and associated companies, providing that such entities engage in
either financial businesses or businesses that will contribute to TMB’s core banking businesses and thereby enhance
financial service offerings to customers. The companies must have good prospects with an acceptable level of risk. In order
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to ensure that subsidiaries and associated companies have undertaken proper business practices in line with the Bank’s
investment policy, the Bank will participate in directing and determining their policies, business plans, and initiatives.
Investment size will not exceed the limits permitted by the BoT.
As of December 31, 2020, details of the Bank’s investments in subsidiaries and associated companies compared to its
total assets as shown in the financial statements (the Bank only) are tabulated below:
(Bank Only)
Subsidiaries
Associated companies
Subsidiary and associated companies
Total Assets

Total Net Investment by
TMB (THB million)
167,930
197
168,152
1,808,332

As % of total assets
9.29%
0.01%
9.30%
100.0

4.4.2 Policy on operations of subsidiaries and associated companies
The Policy is developed by using the guideline of BoT’s Consolidated Supervision Policy that requires commercial banks
under BoT’s supervision to comply with. The scope of the Bank’s supervision is divided into various aspects to cover the
implementation of the Financial Business Group. The Policy comprises 1 core policy and 7 supporting policies as follows:
Core Policy
1. Governance Structure
To determine the management and control structure of the Group Companies in aspect of generating strategic plan and
nominating representative directors to jointly manage the Group Companies and reorganize to take responsibility of the
Group Companies as appropriate. The Bank determines the guideline of representative director nomination covering
investment in other companies in financial business group and general investment.
Supporting Policy
1. Accounting Policy
To determine the accounting and financial report policy for the Bank to collect related information from the Group
Companies for generating consolidated financial report correctly, in the same direction and in compliance with the BoT’s
rule and regulation and analyzing performance and financial status of the Group Companies correctly and promptly for
controlling and monitoring.
2. Corporate Governance Policy and Policy on Confidential & Insider Information and Conflicts of Interest
2.1 Corporate Governance Policy
To determine the policy for the Group Companies to conduct under business ethic and the morality and the best
practices are concerning in good corporate governance and best practices which should be in line with Corporate
Governance Policy.
2.2 Policy on Confidential & Insider Information and Conflicts of Interest
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To determine the policy for the Group Companies to comply with the relevant policies and procedures in preventing
any transaction which might be considered as conflict of interest or bleach the bank regulation regarding insider trading.
3. Anti-Corruption Policy
This policy and the relevant policies are setting to manifests the Bank’s and the subsidiaries intention on anti-corruption.
Giving and accepting a bribe of improper benefit either from the officer / unit of the bureau office or private sector is
prohibited. In this regard, each subsidiary shall be notified in writing of the policy in order to complied with this AntiCorruption Policy and relevant policies included the relevant laws
4. Risk Management Policy
To determine the risk management policy of the Group Companies covering various aspects of risk relating to companies’
performance and impacting the stability of the Group Companies including:
4.1 Market Risk Management
4.2 Liquidity Risk Management
4.3 Operational Risk Management
4.4 Credit risk management
5. Compliance Policy
To determine the policy for the Group Companies to conduct under Compliance Policy and relevant Regulatory Policy such
as Regulatory Compliance, Related Parties or Connected Persons Policy, BoT’s Regulatory Compliance and Know Your
Customer and Anti-Money Laundering
6. Corporate Communication Policy
To determine the policy regarding the communication of information to outsider for the Group Companies to conduct in the
same way and promote the Bank image in aspect of name and brand and disclose information of the Group Companies.
7. Audit Policy
To determine the roles of Internal Audit (AUD) and Independent Credit Review (ICR) and the Audit Committee’s oversight
role in conjunction with the roles of the Bank management and external auditor on auditing, controlling and monitoring the
Group Companies. The ultimate objective is to ensure sound control culture and good governance throughout the Financial
Business Group.
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(Translation)
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Legal Disputes

On December 31, 2020 TMB does not have an unsettled legal dispute which has the potential to negatively impact
its assets, as the claimed amount is worth over 5% of net equity according to financial statements of bank.

Part 1 Page 57

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

6.

General and Other Significant Information

6.1

General Information

Name of the company
Nature of Business

:
:

Head Office
Registration No.
Telephone
TMB Phone Banking
Website
Registered capital
Paid-up capital
Common share

:
:
:
:
:
:
:
:

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Commercial bank’s businesses in accordance with Financial Institutions Businesses Act
and the businesses concerning financial services under the permission of the Ministry
of Finance, the Bank of Thailand, and other parties concerned.
3000 Phahon Yothin Road, Chomphon, Chatuchak, Bangkok 10900
0107537000017
0-2299-1111
1558
http://www.tmbbank.com
THB 100,912,374,754.35 (as of 31 December 2020)
THB 91,588,946,036.00
96,409,416,880 shares at par value 0.95 Baht
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TMB Bank Public Company Limited

6.2 Investment in other companies holding more than 10 % of the paid-up capital
Investment in other companies as of December 31, 2020 holding more than 10 % of the paid-up capital in each company
were as follows:

Company

Head Office

Type of

Type of

Paid-up

TMB's ownership

Location

Business

Capital

Capital

Amount

Percentage

Amount (Baht)

(Share)

(Share)

(Share)

(%)

(net of allowance for
diminution in value)

Strategic Investment in Financial Business
Companies
1 PHAHONYATHIN ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,LTD.
Tel. 0-2617-4068-70

Bangkok

FINANCE

COMMON STOCK

Bangkok
Bangkok

FINANCE
FINANCE

COMMON STOCK
COMMON STOCK

4 TMB PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT CO.,LTD.

Bangkok

REAL ESTATE

COMMON STOCK

10,000

Tel. 0-2299-1159, Fax 0-2242-3138-9
5 N D GROUP FEEDMILL CO.,LTD.

Lumphun

WHOLESALE,RETAI COMMON STOCK
L
SERVICES
COMMON STOCK

THANACHART BANK PUBLIC CO.,LTD.
2
3 TMB ASSET MANAGEMENT CO.,LTD.

2,500,000

2,500,000

100.00

25,000,000.00

6,064,862,170 6,063,411,688
10,000,000
3,500,000

99.9761
35.00

158,629,816,096.33
196,942,475.58

9,993

99.93

4,169,342.92

120,000

30,000

25.00

0.00

500,000

52,052

10.41

197,910,847.45

Tel. 0-2636-1800 Ext.1725 (customer service
center)
Other Companies

6 NATIONAL ITMX CO.,LTD.
Tel. 02558-7555, Fax 02558-7566

Bangkok

7 M_THAI ESTATE CO.,LTD.
Tel. 0-2261-1144, Fax 0-2261-1143

Bangkok

REAL ESTATE

COMMON STOCK

30,000,000

3,000,000

10.00

0.00

Phrae

PRODUCTION

COMMON STOCK

15,500

2,500

16.13

0.00

9 TRIS CORPORATION LIMITED
Tel. 0-2231-3011, Fax 0-2231-3681

Bangkok

SERVICES

COMMON STOCK

1,000,000

153,000

15.30

101,291,044.41

10 WHOLESALE TOWN CO.,LTD.
Tel. 0-2531-6860, Fax 0-2532-3009

Bangkok

TRANSPORTATION COMMON STOCK

22,000

2,200

10.00

2,390,442.36

9,000

2,250

25.00

0.00

8 THAI CHAREONPHOL INDUSTRY CO.,LTD.
Tel. 0-5458-1202, Fax 0-5458-1876

11 WING GROUP CO.,LTD.
Tel. 053-331315-6, Fax 053-331314, 053-331336

Chiang Mai

GARMENT
MANUFACTURER

COMMON STOCK
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Company

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Type of

Type of

Paid-up

TBANK's ownership

Business

Capital

Capital

Amount

Percentage

Amount (Baht)

(Share)

(Share)

(Share)

(%)

(net of allowance for
diminution in value)

Strategic Investment in Financial Business
Companies
1.Thanachart Broker Company Limited
2. Thanachart Fund Management Company
Limited
Other Companies
1. Metropolitan Industrial Leasing Company
Limited

2. Pue Pob Paet Company Limited

COMMON STOCK

10,000,000

9,999,000

99.99

104,156,331.27

COMMON STOCK

10,000,000

4,990,000

49.90

64,026,607.70

Financial Leasing for COMMON STOCK
consumer goods
(except motor vehicles
and motorcycles)
General medical
COMMON STOCK
practice activities

2,500,000

250,000

10.00%

792,500.00

100,000

9,998

10.00%

-

Insurance broker
business
Fund management
business
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6.3 Transactions with relating to investment
The Bank imposed the regulatory fine from BOT and SEC as detailed below.
Regulators
The Bank of Thailand

The Securities and
Exchange
Commission

2016-2019
Amount (Baht)
The Bank of Thailand has fined the bank None
according to the Financial Institutions’
Businesses Act B.E.2551 total amount of
4,903,125 baht which is categorized to:• Section 60 amount of 2,128,125 baht
• Section 71 amount of 2,775,000 baht
The Securities and Exchange Commission None
has fined the bank according to section 113
of the Securities and Exchanges Act
B.E.2535 amount of 5,086,000 baht.
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6.4

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Reference information
Other referral parties
•
Share Registrar:
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building,
Ratchadapisek Road, Dindaeng,
Bangkok 10400, Thailand
Tel. 0-2009-9000
•

Auditors :
Mr.Chanchai Sakulkoedsin
Or Miss Pantip Gulsantithamrong
Or Mrs.Wilai Buranakittisopon

CPA
CPA
CPA

KPMG Phoomchai Audit Ltd.
50th-51st Floors, Empire Tower
1 South Sathorn Road., Yannawa
Sathorn, Bangkok 10120
Tel. 0-2677-2000
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

6.5 Other Significant Information
6.5.1 Credit Rating on TMB
The table below shows credit ratings of TMB assigned by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s Investor Services and Fitch Rating
as of December 2018 and 2019.
Credit Rating
December 31, 2019
December 31, 2020
Standard & Poor’s (S&P)
Foreign Currency
Long-term : Debt instrument
Short-term : Deposits / Debt instrument
Stand-Alone Credit Profile (SACP)
Outlook
Moody’s Investors Service
Foreign Currency
Long-term : Deposits
Short-term : Deposits / Debt instrument
Baseline Credit Assessment (BCA)
Outlook
Fitch Ratings
Foreign Currency
Long-term IDR
Short-term IDR
National
Long-term
Short-term
Subordinated
Viability Rating
Support Rating
Supporting Rating Floor
Outlook
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BBBA-3
bb+
Positive

BBB
A-2
bb+
Negative

Baa2
Prime-2
baa3
Positive

Baa1
Prime-2
baa3
Stable

BBBF3

BBBF3

AA-(tha)
F1+(tha)
A+(tha)
bbb3
BB+
Positive

AA-(tha)
F1+(tha)
A(tha)
bbb2
BBBStable
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(Translation)
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Part 2: Management and Corporate Governance
7.

Bank’s Securities and Shareholders

7.1

Bank’s securities

7.1.1 Bank’s capital
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank’s registered capital was THB 100,912,374,754.35 of which THB 91,588,946,036 was paid
up, comprising Ordinary shares 96,409,416,880 shares at par value of THB 0.95/share.
7.1.2 Thai Trust Fund
As of December 31, 2020, Thai Trust Fund was no longer issued by the Bank.
7.1.3 The number of shares or impacts on shareholders’ voting rights from the issuance of Non-Voting
Depository Receipt (Non-Voting depository receipt - NVDR)
Non-Voting Depository Receipt (NVDR) is a trading instrument issued by Thai NVDR Co., Ltd., a subsidiary
wholly owned by Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). By investing in NVDRs, investors will receive all financial benefits
including dividends, right issues or warrants, as if they had invested in a company's ordinary shares. Unlike ordinary
shareholders, NVDR holders are not entitled to voting rights in a shareholders’ meeting except for the case of voting to
pass a resolution concerning the delisting of shares from the SET. If the Bank’s shares are issued as NVDRs in a great
number, its shares with voting rights will decrease and the voting rights of other shareholders will increase.
As of July 9, 2020, the latest share register closing date, Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. issued NVDRs with the Bank shares
as reference asset amounting to 4,155,143,413 shares or 4.31% of the Bank’s issued and paid-up ordinary shares.
However, the issuance of NVDR securities does not fall within the realm of the Bank’s control. Investors may check the
information on NVDR shares from website of the SET at www.set.or.th/nvdr.
7.1.4 Other securities
As of December 31, 2020, details of the Bank’s other securities are summarized as follows:
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Type

Interest rate (%)

1. Subordinated bond (TMB27NA) Fixed interest rate of
(Date of issue : May 29, 2017,
3.50% per annum, payable
worth THB 5,430 million)
quarterly.

(Translation)

Year of
redemption
November,
2027

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Collateral

Number and value Bondholder’s
Other conditions
not yet redeemed representative
(as of December 31,
2020)
The Bank may proceed an early redemption
Unsecured
5.43 million units
THB 5,430 million
of the whole amount of bond upon the
approval from the Bank of Thailand under
one of the following conditions:
1. On or after 5.5 years of the issue date.
2. Having any changes in Tax laws
affecting the issuer’s tax benefits.
3. Changing in regulations on the qualified
Tier II debt securities which disqualifies the
existing Tier II debt securities.
4. BOT’s supplementary conditions.
However, the redemption date must be
valued on interest payment date.
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(Translation)

Type

Interest rate (%)

Year of
redemption

2. Subordinated bond (TMB296A)
(Date of issue : June 28, 2019,
worth THB 30,000 million)

Fixed interest rate of
4.00% per annum, payable
quarterly.

June, 2029

3.Senior USD Bond
(Date of issue : April 1, 2016,
worth USD 250 million)

Fixed interest rate of
3.108% per annum, payable
semi- annually.

October,
2021

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Collateral

Number and value Bondholder’s
Other conditions
not yet redeemed representative
(as of December 31,
2020)
The Bank may proceed an early redemption
Unsecured
30 million units
THB 30,000 million
of the whole amount of bond upon the
approval from the Bank of Thailand under
one of the following conditions:
1. On or after 5 years of the issue date.
2. Having any changes in Tax laws
affecting the issuer’s tax benefits.
3. Changing in regulations on the qualified
Tier II debt securities which disqualifies the
existing Tier II debt securities.
4. BOT’s supplementary conditions.
However, the redemption date must be
valued on interest payment date
Unsecured 1,250 units
The
Issued under the Bank’s Euro Medium Term
USD 250 million
Hongkong Note Programme
(Equivalent to
and
THB 7,509 million)
Shanghai
Banking
Corporation
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Type

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Interest rate (%)

Year of
redemption

Collateral

Number and value Bondholder’s
Other conditions
not yet redeemed representative
(as of December 31,
2020)
Unsecured 1 unit
The proceeds from Green Bond issuance
USD 60 million
will be used to fund the green loan to
(Equivalent to
private sector.
THB 1,802 million)

4.Senior Bond (Green Bond)
(Date of issue : June 5, 2018,
worth USD 60 million)

Floating interest rate of 6M
Libor + 1.05% per annum,
payable semi-annually.

June,
2025

5.Senior Bond (SME Bond)
(Date of issue : December 17,
2018, worth USD 90 million)

Floating interest rate of 6M
Libor + 1.05% per annum,
payable semi-annually.

December,
2025

Unsecured

1 unit
USD 90 million
(Equivalent to
THB 2,703 million)

-

The proceeds from SME Bond issuance will
be used to support small and medium
sized enterprises.

6.Senior Euro Bond
(Date of issue : November 11,
2019, worth EUR 150 million)

Fixed interest rate of 0.22%
per annum, payable semiannually.

November,
2021

Unsecured

150 thousand units
EUR 150 million
(Equivalent to
THB 5,531 million)

-

Issued under the Bank’s FCY Medium
Term Note Programme

7.Senior Euro Bond
(Date of issue : November 11,
2019, worth EUR 70 million)

Fixed interest rate of 0.48%
per annum, payable semiannually.

November,
2022

Unsecured

70 thousand units
EUR 70 million
(Equivalent to
THB 2,581 million)

-

Issued under the Bank’s FCY Medium
Term Note Programme

Part 2 Page 67

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

Type

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Interest rate (%)

Year of
redemption

Collateral

Number and value Bondholder’s
Other conditions
not yet redeemed representative
(as of December 31,
2020)
Issued under the Bank’s FCY Medium
Unsecured 155 thousand units
EUR 155 million
Term Note Programme
(Equivalent to
THB 5,716 million)

8.Senior Euro Bond
(Date of issue : November 13,
2019, worth EUR 155 million)

Fixed interest rate of 0.85%
per annum, payable semiannually.

November,
2024

9. Senior Euro Bond
(Date of issue : March 24, 2020,
worth EUR 220 million)

Fixed interest rate of 0.25%
per annum, payable semiannually.

March,
2021

Unsecured

10. Senior Euro Bond
(Date of issue : March 25, 2020,
worth EUR 200 million)

Fixed interest rate of 0.25%
per annum, payable semiannually.

March,
2021

Unsecured

11. Additional Tier 1
(Date of issue : December 2,
2019, worth USD 400 million)

Fixed interest rate of 4.90%
per annum, payable semiannually.

Perpetual

Unsecured

220 thousand units
EUR 220 million
(Equivalent to
THB 8,113 million)
200 thousand units
EUR 200 million
(Equivalent to
THB 7,375 million)

-

Issued under the Bank’s FCY Medium
Term Note Programme

-

Issued under the Bank’s FCY Medium
Term Note Programme

400 thousand units
USD 400 million
(Equivalent to
THB 12,015 million)

The
Hongkong
and
Shanghai
Banking
Corporation
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7.2

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Major shareholders
7.2.1 List of 10 largest shareholders and proportion of shareholding
The list of the 10 largest shareholders at the latest share register closing date on July 9, 2020 was shown as

below,
Major shareholders

Number of ordinary shares

%

1. ING Bank N.V.

22,190,033,791

23.03

2. THANACHART CAPITAL PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

19,389,891,967

20.12

3. MINISTRY OF FINANCE

11,364,282,005

11.79

4. VAYUPAK FUND1*

9,852,811,315

10.23

5. THE BANK OF NOVA SCOTIA

5,023,611,111

5.21

6. THAI NVDR

4,155,143,413

4.31

7. SOUTH EAST ASIA UK (TYPE C) NOMINEES LIMITED

1,556,832,944

1.62

8. GIC PRIVATE LIMITED

842,598,099

0.87

9. STATE STREET EUROPE LIMITED

788,884,929

0.82

10. MILITARY GROUP **

784,612,673

0.81

Major shareholders consists of ING Bank N.V. 23.03%, Thanachart Capital PCL 20.12%, Ministry of Finance 11.79%
and Vayupak Fund1* 10.23% (Current unit holders of Vayupak Fund1 are Ministry of Finance and may also consist of
other government units)
**Included Royal Thai Army, Thai Navy, Thai Air Force, Military Units and RTA Entertainment Plc.
7.3 Agreements between the Bank and business alliance
7.3.1 Agreement between the Bank and FWD Life Insurance Plc (FWD Life)
In 2020, After negotiations between FWD Life Insurance Public Company Limited (FWD), the previous
bancassurance partner of TMB, and Prudential Life Assurance (Thailand) Public Company Limited (Prudential),
the previous bancassurance partner of TBANK, a mutual conclusion has been reached that Prudential agreed to
acquire the rights to sell the life insurance products through TMB from FWD and the bancassurance agreement
between has revised to reflect the new partnership. Prudential will have the exclusive rights to sell the life
insurance products through the network of TMB, TBANK and subsequently the merged bank after the entire
business transfer for an initial term of 15 years, with effect on and from 1 January 2021.
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For this transaction, TMB recorded income of THB 1.3 bn in 2020 and will gradually record revenue worth
approximately THB 20.8 bn throughout the combined initial term and transition period, starting April 2020. In
addition, TMB has stopped the recognition of revenue from FWD under the old bancassurance agreement,
started from 1 April 2020 with no impact to TMB’s recognized revenue of THB 4.4 bn (during the period between
1 January 2017 and 31 March 2020 according to previous agreement).
Strategic Collaboration
By virtue of this collaboration, TMB and Prudential, each having extensive expertise and experience in life
insurance business, strongly aim to jointly expand their bancassurance businesses in order to offer the best
quality life insurance products in the market and to ameliorate their customers’ financial position.
7.3.2 Agreement between the Bank and Asset Management Company
Since April 2014, the Bank has set a long-term policy to have an open-architecture platform which offers a wide
variety of mutual fund products in order to match various client needs and risk-return profiles. In July 2018, TMB
announced partnership with Eastspring Investment, lead asset management in Asia, and the Bank agreed to sell
65% stake in TMBAM for a partnership with Eastspring. Partnering with Eastspring is in line with the Bank mutual
fund open architecture strategy. It will also help enhance capabilities of TMBAM to provide with more variety of
products and and uplifted services to better serve customers. In 2019, TMB has added Thanachart Fund on
open-architecture platform as a result, the Bank is the selling agent of 11 Asset Management Companies
including TMB Asset Management Co. Ltd., UOB Asset Management Co. Ltd., Aberdeen Asset Management Co.
Ltd., CIMB-Principal Co. Ltd. , Manulife Asset Management Co. Ltd, Tisco Asset Management, One Asset
Management Ltd, Kasikorn Asset Management Co. Ltd, Krungsri Asset Management Co. Ltd, Krungthai Asset
Management Co. Ltd, and Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. This enables TMB to offer a broader range of
products and asset classes to its customers.
The Asset Management Company appoints the Bank as a Selling Agent for selling, repurchasing and switching
the unit trust and provides advisory service under the Distribution Agent Agreement following the SEC
regulations and other applicable laws.
7.4 Dividend payment
7.4.1 The Bank’s policy
The Bank has set out a policy on the dividend payment from financial statements (Bank only). The dividend
payment is subject to the Bank’s operating performance, the long term benefits to the Bank’s shareholders, the
Bank’s capital adequacy and reserve requirements as well as the relevant legal conditions and BOT’s
Notification. In addition, the dividend payment must comply with the Bank’s Articles of Association number 43
which states that dividend shall not be paid other than out of profits, and if the Company still has accumulated
losses, no dividend shall be paid.

Part 2 Page 70

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

7.4.2 Policy of subsidiary companies
Since April 2014, the Bank has set a long-term policy to have an open-architecture platform which offers a wide
variety of mutual fund products in order to match various client needs and risk-return profiles. In July 2018, TMB
announced partnership with Eastspring Investment, lead asset management in Asia, and the Bank agreed to sell
65% stake in TMBAM for a partnership with Eastspring. Partnering with Eastspring is in line with the Bank mutual
fund open architecture strategy. It will also help enhance capabilities of TMBAM to provide with more variety of
products and and uplifted services to better serve customers. In 2019, TMB has added Thanachart Fund on
open-architecture platform as a result, the Bank is the selling agent of 11 Asset Management Companies
including TMB Asset Management Co. Ltd., UOB Asset Management Co. Ltd., Aberdeen Asset Management Co.
Ltd., CIMB-Principal Co. Ltd. , Manulife Asset Management Co. Ltd, Tisco Asset Management, One Asset
Management Ltd, Kasikorn Asset Management Co. Ltd, Krungsri Asset Management Co. Ltd, Krungthai Asset
Management Co. Ltd, and Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd. This enables TMB to offer a broader range of
products and asset classes to its customers.
The Asset Management Company appoints the Bank as a Selling Agent for selling, repurchasing and switching
the unit trust and provides advisory service under the Distribution Agent Agreement following the SEC
regulations and other applicable laws.
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8.
Management
8.1 Organization Chart
As of December 31, 2020

8.2 Board of Directors
The Board of Directors as of December 31, 2020 consisted of 14members, 8 holding non-executive directors
positions (1 director* during replacement process), 5 independent directors, and 1 holding executive director
position.
Name

Position

1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas 1

Chairman of the Board

2. Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat

•
•

3. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas

•
•
•

4. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith

•
•

5. Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel

•
•

Date of
Appointment
February 13, 2020

Term of Office
(Year-Month)
11 months

Vice Chairman
December 3, 2019 1 year 1 month
Vice Chairman of the Board of
Executive Directors
Director
December 28,
13 years
Chairman of the Board of Executive
2007
Directors
Chairman of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Independent director
February 12, 2016 4 years 11 months
Chairman of the Audit Committee
Independent director
April 23, 2020
8 months
Chairman of the Risk Oversight
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Name

Position

•

•

6. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn

•
•
•
•

7. Mr. Teeranun Srihong

•
•
•
•

8. Mr.Yokporn Tantisawetrat

•
•
•

9. Mr. Somjate Moosirilert

•
•
•

10. Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek

•
•

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Date of
Appointment

Committee
Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
Director
April 7, 2017
Chairman of the Credit
Committee
Member of the Board of
Executive Directors
Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Independent director
December 17,
Chairman of the IT Oversight
2019
Committee
Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Director
June 1, 2015
Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
Member of the Credit Committee
Director
December 3, 2019
Member of the Board of
Executive Directors
Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
Director
December 17,
Member of the Board of
2019
Executive Directors
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Name

Position
•

11. Mr. Prinya Hom-anek

•
•
•
•

12. Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat

•
•
•

13. Mr. Piti Tantakasem

•
•
•
•
•
•

Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
Independent director
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
Independent director
Member of the Audit Committee
Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
Director
Member of the Board of
Executive Directors
Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
Member of Credit Committee
Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
Chief Executive Officer

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Date of
Appointment

Term of Office
(Year-Month)

December 17,
2019

1 year 0.5 month

April 1, 2020

9 months

January 1, 2018

3 years

Remark:
* The bank is under process to nominate person to replace General Nattaphon Nakphanit who resigned from director effective
from October 1, 2020

Average term of office for every director in Board of Directors is 2 Years 8 months
Mr. Kriangkrai Phurivitvattana is Secretary to the Board.
The Board meeting shall be held at least once a month, the meeting shall be held on the last Thursday of every
month. In case of an urgent case, the Board can arrange a special meeting as deemed necessary.
Amendment of Directors Authorized to Sign to Bind the Bank
Mr. Piti Tantakasem, Chief Executive Officer, authorized to sign with the Bank's seal affixed.
Principles for Directors
1. Understand and execute their oversight role, including understanding the Bank’s risk appetite.
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2. Exercise their fiduciary duty, duty of loyalty, and duty of care to the Bank under applicable Thai laws and
supervisory standards.
3. Avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance of such conflicts, and institute and enforce measures to
monitor and avoid potential conflicts by the Bank’s personnel in dealings with other persons and organizations.
4. Commit sufficient time and energy to fulfilling their responsibilities.
5. Avoid direct participation in day-to-day management of the Bank except executive director.
6. Secure information from management to enable the Board to fulfill its functions. It is the Board’s
responsibility to decide what information it wants.
7. Excuse themselves from decisions when they themselves or someone related to or connected with them
have a conflict of interest.
8. Provide oversight of the senior management of the Bank by exercising their duty and authority to question
and insist upon straightforward explanations from management and receive on a timely basis sufficient information to
judge the performance of management.
9. Ensure that the Bank’s confidential information and customer information is not given either inadvertently or
deliberately to third parties and shall not use the information to seek gains without the Bank’s consent or permission
by law.
Roles and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board has delegated the management and day to day running of the Bank to the Chief Executive Officer
including implementation of the strategy approved by the Board. The Board plays an important role in determining
policies and overseeing the Bank to ensure appropriate and adequacy process and resources to enable operations
in accordance with those policies, and to ensure monitoring, control, and audit of the implementation. In addition, The
Board approves vision, mission, and strategy and ensure that vision, mission, and strategy are implemented by
management. The Board shall review vision, mission, and strategy annually according to the change of economy and
business competition. The other authorities and duties of the Board are as follows:
1. Strategy and Policy
1. Approve, monitor and update the overall business strategies of the Bank, including on risk governance,
risk, sustainability and culture.
2. Approve overall budget, and risk appetite.
3. Safeguard the longer-term value of the Bank, which include the brand and corporate reputation.
4. Approve all credit limits for amounts in excess of the amount delegated to other board committees or
management , which delineates cascading levels of authorities.
5. Approve all other risk limits and policies as prescribed by the Bank of Thailand and other relevant
regulators.
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6. Determine a calendar each year that sets forth and schedules the issues to be discussed by the Board
during the year. Substantive issues such as strategy, financial performance and progress against budget and
operational plans, capital planning, actual risk profile, Chief Executive Officer’s performance evaluation and
operational oversight issues such as product approval process should be prioritized over formalistic issues.
7. Approve the authority or the delegation of authority to approve credit, market risk limits, acquisitions,
disposals, investments, or realization or creation of a new venture.
8. Ensure that the policies adopted by the Bank apply to and are implemented by each of its subsidiaries, or
that each subsidiary adopt and implement policies of equivalent effectiveness.
2. Compliance
1. Oversee management’s actions and consistency with Board policies as part of the checks and balances
embodied in sound corporate governance.
2. Oversee Bank operation to provide fair service to customers.
3. Ensure and oversee a proper and efficient whistleblowing policy and procedure.
4. Meet regularly with senior management to review policies, establish communication lines and monitor
progress toward corporate objectives.
5. Promote Bank safety and soundness, understand the regulatory environment and ensure the Bank
maintains an effective relationship with its regulators.
6. Provide sound advice to management and recommend sound practices gleaned from other situations.
7. Review and, where permissible or required under applicable regulations, consider approval of connected
transactions as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Commission and related party credit limits as prescribed
by the Bank of Thailand.
8. Oversee Bank disclosure of significant corporate governance to shareholder’s meeting and public in order
to strengthen the bank’s good corporate governance.
9. Preside over the business in compliance with the Bank Objectives, Articles of Association and follow the
shareholder’s resolution
10. Oversee a delegation of authority or the lower delegation to operate the bank’s business according to the
Board’s resolution
3. Organization
1. Organize the Board and its committees in a way that promotes efficiency and strategic discussion.
2. Establish certain specialized committees to assist the Board in its oversight function and to advise the
Board on issues requiring specific technical expertise.
3. Periodically assess the effectiveness of its own governance practices, including nomination and election of
Board members and management of conflicts of interest, determining where weaknesses exist, and making changes
as necessary.
4. Develop and maintain an appropriate level of expertise as the Bank grows in size and complexity.
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5. Select, monitor and where necessary replace key executives, while ensuring that the Bank has an
appropriate plan for executive succession and that any intended successor(s) will be qualified, fit and proper to
manage the affairs of the Bank.
6. Select, evaluate and determine the compensation of the Chief Executive Officer as well as certain key senior
executives.
7. Ensure that Bank’s compensation and benefits programs are appropriate and consistent with the strategic
objectives and are compliant with relevant regulations.
8. Continuously review the internal structure of the Bank to ensure that there are clear lines of accountability for
management throughout the organization.
8.3

Executives
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank’s executives as defined by the Bank and align with definition of SEC are
comprised of 39 persons as follows:
No

Name-Surname

Position

1

Mr. Piti Tantakasem

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

2

Mr. Praphan Anupongongarch(1)

President

3

Mr. Senathip Sripaipan

Chief Commercial Banking Officer (CCBO)

4

Mr. Anuwat Luengtaweekul(1)

Chief Retail Banking Officer (CRBO)

5

Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel

Chief Risk Officer (CRO)

6

Mrs. Prapasiri Kositthanakorn

Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

7

Mr. Markus Dolenga

Chief Technology and Operating Officer (CTOO)

8

Mrs. Vijitra Thumpothong(1)

Chief People Officer (CPO)

9

Mrs. Kanchana Rojvatunyu(1)

Chief Marketing Officer (CMO)

10 Mr. Pompet Rasanon(1)

Chief Automotive Lending Officer (CALO)

11 Mrs. Pitimart Sanguansook(2)

Chief Audit Officer (CAO)

12 Mr. Mate Kanokpibool

Financial Controller

13 Ms. Somkid Preechasammakul

Head of Finance Business Partner

14 Ms. Pimolwan Puarattana-Aroonkorn Head of Finance Business Partner - CCBO
15 Mr. Thawatchai Trongnamsukkij

Head of Finance Business Partner - CRO

16 Ms. Jittrawadee Srivichit

Head of Finance Business Partner - Retail

17 Ms. Preediorn Klungnark

Head of Financial Business Partner - CFO, Corporate Function

18 Mr. Charnwit Akkarapattanakoon(3)

Head of Finance Business Partner - Bank wide / Subsidiary and Managerial Report
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19 Ms. Tharinee Totab(3)

Head of Finance Business Partner - CALO

20 Ms. Somruetai Tantakitti(4)

Head of Finance Business Partner - CIO

21 Mr. Andrew Kent Jan

Head of Balance Sheet Management

22 Mr. Chalermchai Paisithmongkol

Head of Central Treasury

23 Mrs. Voraluck Chokchaitam

Head of Asset and Liability Management

24 Mrs. Kwanhatai Sukhumtammarat

Head of Financial Application and Data Management

25 Ms. Waree Thanmongkolswad

Head of Financial Regulatory Management

26 Mrs. Suphavadee Wuthithien

Head of Regulatory Analysis - BoT Reporting

27 Mrs. Kamolmarn Staworn

Head of Regulatory Analysis - Financial Reporting

28 Mr. Prayut Boonlerd

Head of Accounting Control

29 Ms. Rochana Ratant-Ubol

Head of Financial Payment and Control

30 Ms. Siriphon Rattanaumphawan

Head of Financial Governance and Policy

31 Ms. Maline Laoitthi

Head of Finance Business Intelligence and Data Management Centre

32 Mr. Pichan Ruechuzed(5)

Head of Tax Strategy & Compliance

33 Mr. Jaraschai Boworntammarat(6)

Head of Finance Business Intelligence

34 Mr. Pakpoom Visawameteekul(6)

Head of Capital and Balance Sheet Strategy

35 Mr. Surapong Chanthasittiporn(3)

Head of Business Intelligence Finance Business Intelligence and Data
Management Centre

36 Mrs. Pimchaya Thammasorn(7)

Executive Finance Business Partner

37 Ms. Veeraya Mahakhan

Executive Finance Business Partner

38 Ms. Pinyada Yamsiri(7)

Senior Finance Business Partner

39 Ms. Krittiya Rirklaunrit(8)

Professional - Finance Business Partner

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

Remark

Appointment effective on January 1, 2020
Appointment effective on May 1, 2020
Appointment effective on July 1, 2020
Appointment effective on October 16, 2020
Appointment effective on September 1, 2020
Appointment effective on April 1, 2020
Appointment effective on August 1, 2020
Appointment effective on September 16, 2020
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8.4 Company Secretary
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Naris Aruksakunwong to hold position of Company Secretary. (see more
detail about education, work experience, and training course related to company secretary’s function in attachment
1)
The Company Secretary’s roles and responsibilities are to perform duty in compliance with laws and follow up
activities of the Board of Directors and Board Committees, management, and the Bank’s to be in line with relevant
laws, regulations, and articles of association of the Bank. The Company Secretary is also to support the Board of
Directors, board committee, management, and the Bank to implement operation in line with good corporate
governance.
The Company Secretary has roles and responsibilities as follows:
1. For the Bank
1.1 To monitor and supervise the Bank’s overall operation to comply with relevant laws and regulatory
requirements including resolution of Board of Directors, resolution of annual general meeting of shareholders.
1.2 To file and keep the Bank’s important documentation such as certificate, memorandum & articles of
association, shareholder register, licenses and power of attorney, etc.
1.3 To push for guidelines so that the Bank shall formulate policies, comply with good corporate governance
and conduct regular review.
1.4 To act as contact person of the Bank.
2. For the Board
2.1 To advise the Board of Directors and management on laws and regulations relevant to their duties
2.2 To oversee meetings of the Board and board committees established by the Board of Directors to be in
line with laws, regulations, articles of association, charters, and best practices
2.3 To Manage to serve as the Board’s secretary and board committees’ secretary as assigned including
Chief Executive Committee, record accurate and complete minutes, inform to relevant management the resolution
and follow up the resolution implementation
2.4 To oversee the changes of directors and examine director’s qualifications in case of appointment of
new directors and director to replace director who resigned by rotation in line with regulatory requirements and the
bank’s strategy and business direction, including propose the issue to the Bank of Thailand for endorsement
2.5 To review director’s qualifications during the directorship period to ensure that the qualifications are
always in line with regulatory requirements
2.6 To oversee insider information and conflict of interest practices of directors
2.7 To facilitate directors’ training and development
2.8 To provide Board’s and Board Committees’ performance assessment
2.9 To arrange Directors and Officers Liability Insurance (D&O Insurance) for the directors and
management.
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3. For the Shareholders
3.1 To conduct shareholders’ meeting to be in line with laws, articles of association and good corporate
governance principle, including perform duty of secretary to the shareholders’ meeting.
3.2 To oversee the right of shareholders and create good relationship with shareholders.
8.5

Board of Directors’ Meeting
In 2020, details of the meeting attendance of the Board of Directors and board committee members are as
follows:

Name

Board of
Directors

Total no. of meetings in 2020

16

1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas(1)

15/15

2. Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat (2)

16/16

3. General Nattaphon Nakphanit (3)

6/10

4. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas(4)

14/16

Nomination,
Board of
Remuneration
Audit
Executive
Corporate
Committee
Directors
Governance
Committee

25

13

12

Risk
Oversight
Committee

Credit
Committee

IT
Oversight
Committee

14

21

10

25/25

25/25

12/12

5. Mr. Singha Nikornpun(5)

4/4

4/4

6. Mr. Prinya Hom-anek(6)

16/16

12/13

7. Mr. Teeranun Srihong(7)

16/16

8. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn(8)

16/16

24/25

9. Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek (9)

16/16

25/25

10. Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat(10)

16/16

11. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith(11)

16/16

12. Mr. Somjate Moosirilert (12)

16/16

13. Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel(13)

11/12

14. Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat(14)

11/12

15. Mr. Piti Tantakasem(15)

16/16

25/25

Average of 2020 meeting attendance (%)

95.39%

98.00%

12/12

14/14

10/10

14/14

10/10

12/12

21/21
10/10
14/14

20/21

13/13
23/25

12/12
6/8

8/8

5/7
7/8

9/9

98.08%
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Remarks: Directors who attended the meetings electronically were as detailed below:
(1)
Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas
• The Board of Directors Meeting No. 4/2020
(2)
Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 3/2020 - No. 6/2020
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings Special Session No. 1/2020, Special Session No. 2/2020, No. 5/2020 (Special
Session), No. 6/2020 - 13/2020, No. 22/2020
(3)
General Nattaphon Narkphanit (resigned from directorship, effective from 1 October 2020)
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 5/2020, No. 6/2020, No. 8/2020
(4)
Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas is a director who does not have residence in Thailand.
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 4/2020 - 12/2020, No. 2/2020 (Special Session), No. 3/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020
(Special Session)
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings No. 4/2020, Special Session No. 1/2020, Special Session No. 2/2020
No. 5/2020 (Special Session), No. 6/2020 - 23/2020
• The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Meetings No. 3/2020 - 12/2020
(5)
Mr. Singha Nikornpun (resigned from the independent director position, effective from 1 April 2020)
(6)
Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020, No. 5/2020, No. 7/2020, No. 8/2020, No.
3/2020 (Special Session), No. 11/2020
• The Audit Committee Meetings No. 4/2020 - 8/2020, No. 11/2020
• The Risk Oversight Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 2/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020 –
8/2020, No. 11/2020, No. 12/2020
• The IT Oversight Committee Meetings No. 3/2020, No. 4/2020, No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No.5/2020, No. 2/2020
(Special Session)
(7)
Mr. Teeranun Srihong
• The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Meetings No. 3/2020, No. 4/2020, No. 6/2020 8/2020, No. 10/2020 - 12/2020
• The Risk Oversight Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020, No. 7/2020 - 9/2020, No. 11/2020, No.
12/2020
• The IT Oversight Committee Meetings No. 5/2020
(8)
Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020 - 6/2020, No. 8/2020
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings Special Session No. 1/2020, No. 6/2020 - 15/2020
• The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Meetings No. 4/2020 - 8/2020
• The Credit Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020 - 12/2020
(9)
Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 3/2020, No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 4/2020, No. 3/2020 (Special Session), No.
11/2020
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings No. 4/2020, No. 6/2020, Special Session No. 1/2020, Special Session No.
2/2020, No. 7/2020, No. 8/2020, No. 11/2020, No. 16/2020, No. 22/2020
• The IT Oversight Committee Meetings No. 2/2020, No. 3/2020
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(10)

Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
• The Board of Directors Meeting No. 4/2020
• The Risk Oversight Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 2/2020 (Special Session), No. 3/2020
• The Credit Committee Meetings No. 3/2020, No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 2/2020 (Special Session), No. 15/2020
(11)
Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
• The Board of Directors Meeting No. 1/2020 (Special Session)
• The Audit Committee Meeting No. 3/2020
(12)
Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 4/2020, No. 5/2020
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings No. 5/2020 (Special Session), Special Session No. 1/2020, Special Session
No. 2/2020, No. 7/2020 - 12/2020
• The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Meetings No. 4/2020 - 7/2020
(13)
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel is a director who does not have residence in Thailand.
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 4/2020 - 12/2020, No. 2/2020 (Special Session), No. 3/2020 (Special Session)
• The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee Meetings No. 5/2020, No. 7/2020 - 11/2020
• The Risk Oversight Committee Meetings No. 5/2020 - 12/2020
• The IT Oversight Committee Meetings No. 4/2020, No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 5/2020, No. 2/2020 (Special
Session), No. 7/2020
(14)
Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 5/2020, No. 7/2020
• The Audit Committee Meeting No. 5/2020
• The IT Oversight Committee Meetings No. 4/2020, No. 5/2020, No. 7/2020
(15)
Mr. Piti Tantakasem
• The Board of Directors Meetings No. 3/2020, No. 1/2020 (Special Session)
• The Board of Executive Directors Meetings No. 6/2020, Special Session No. 2/2020, No. 7/2020
• The Risk Oversight Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 2/2020 (Special Session)
• The Credit Committee Meetings No. 1/2020 (Special Session), No. 2/2020 (Special Session)

8.6 Remuneration for directors and executives
8.6.1 Remuneration for directors
The Bank has fairly set the directors’ remuneration criteria, compositions and amounts based on Fiduciary
Duty at appropriate level. In addition, the directors’ remuneration shall be in accordance with accountability and
responsibility of the directors compared with the companies in the same industry and similar size.
In addition, directors’ remuneration must be sufficient and attractive to nominate qualified directors and retain
directors who has knowledge and capability to perform their duty and dedicate themselves to contribute to the Bank.
The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee has reviewed the directors’ remuneration on
an annual basis, and then propose to the Board for endorsement and also put it in agenda of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders for approval annually.
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Directors’ remuneration criteria
1. Monthly fee consist of
1.1 Retaining fee = Director is entitled to the retaining fee for one position only.
1.2 Committee fee = Director is entitled to the committee fee for every board and committee that he/she sits on.
2. Attendance fee = Director is entitled to the attendance fee for every meeting where he/she is present.
Cash remuneration by committee is as follows;
Remuneration (baht)
Retaining Fee
Committee Fee Attendance Fee
(Per Year)
(Per Year)
(Per Meeting)
Board of Directors
Chairman
1,800,000
1,800,000
40,000
Vice Chairman
420,000
420,000
35,000
Member
384,000
384,000
30,000
Board of Executive Directors
Chairman
1,440,000
1,440,000
40,000
Vice Chairman
420,000
420,000
35,000
Member
384,000
384,000
30,000
Audit Committee
Chairman
696,000
696,000
32,400
Member
374,400
374,400
24,600
Nomination, Remuneration and
Chairman
696,000
696,000
32,400
Corporate Governance Committee Member
374,400
374,400
24,600
Risk Oversight Committee
Chairman
696,000
696,000
32,400
Member
374,400
374,400
24,600
Credit Committee
Chairman
696,000
696,000
32,400
Member
374,400
374,400
24,600
IT Oversight Committee
Chairman
696,000
696,000
32,400
Member
374,400
374,400
24,600
The directors who are the Bank’s executives do not receive the remuneration according to the Bank’s
regulations. As well as, the representative directors who are the executives of ING Bank N.V. will not receive the
remuneration under ING’s policy.
In case additional remuneration is required for newly formed committees, the Board of Directors shall provide
such remuneration and ensure that the total remuneration for the directors shall not exceed THB 45 million as
approved by the shareholders’ meeting.
In 2020, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders has approved the distribution of directors’ bonus at the
rate 0.5 percent of dividend paid among the directors for 2019 operational performance and the Board be granted the
authority to set up detail of the allocation. In this regard, the director who is the Bank’s executive and the
representative directors who are the executives of ING Bank N.V. will not receive the directors’ bonus.
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In 2020, the directors received remuneration for serving on the Board of Directors and other committees in a
total amount of THB 38,711,000 and directors’ bonus amount of THB 15,503,174.10 The details are as follows:
Name of directors
1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas (2)
(From 13 February 2020)
2. Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
(From 3 December 2019)

Details
Received THB 3,900,000 for serving as the Chairman of the Board of Directors.

Received THB 2,695,000 for serving as a member of the Board of Directors and
the Board of Executive Directors.
Received THB 123,041.06 for directors’ bonus.
3. General Nattaphon Nakphanit (1) (3) Received THB 756,000 for serving as a member of Board of Director.
(From 30 May 2019 to 1 October Received THB 861,287.45 for directors’ bonus.
2020)
4. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
Received THB 5,768,800 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
of the Board of Executive Directors and the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee.
Received THB 1,476,492.77 for directors’ bonus.
(4)
5. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
Received THB 2,487,600 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
of the Audit Committee.
Received THB 1,476,492.77 for directors’ bonus.
6. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
Received THB 4,710,000 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
of the Credit Committee, member of the Board of Executive Directors and
member of the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee.
Received THB 1,476,492.77 for directors’ bonus.
7. Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Received THB 4,109,000 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
(From 17 December 2019)
of IT Oversight Committee, member of the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee and member of the Risk Oversight
Committee.
Received THB 61,520.53 for directors’ bonus.
8. Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
Received THB 2,833,200 for serving on the Board of Directors and as member
of the Risk Oversight Committee and member of the Credit Committee.
Received THB 1,476,492.77 for directors’ bonus.
9. Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
Received THB 2,991,600 for serving on the Board of Directors and as member
(From 3 December 2019)
of the Board of Executive Directors and member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee.
Received THB 123,041.06 for directors’ bonus.
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10. Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
(From 17 December 2019)

11. Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat (5)
(From 1 April 1 2020)
12. Mr. Singha Nikornpun (1) (6)
(To 31 March 2020)
13. Mr. Prasong Poontaneat (1)
(From June 20 2018 to 31
December 2019)
14. General Apirat Kongsompong (1)
(From 14 November 2018
To 3 May 2019)
15. Mr. Siripong Sombatsiri (1)
(To 16 December 2019)
16. Mr. Vaughn Nigel Richtor (1)
(To 3 December 2019)
17. Mr. Christopher John King (1)
(To 16 December 2019)
18. Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel (7)
(From April 23 2020)
19. Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
(From 17 December 2019)
20. Mr. Piti Tantakasem

(Translation)
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Details
Received THB 3,256,800 for serving on the Board of Directors and as member
of the Audit Committee, member of the Risk Oversight Committee and member
of the IT Oversight Committee.
Received THB 61,520.53 for directors’ bonus.
Received THB 1,861,200 for serving on the Board of Directors and as member
of the Audit Committee and member of the IT Oversight Committee.
Received THB 693,600 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
of the Audit Committee.
Received THB 1,476,492.77 for directors’ bonus.
Received THB 2,214,739.17 for directors’ bonus.

Received THB 492,164.26 for directors’ bonus.

Received THB 1,414,972.24 for directors’ bonus.
Received THB 1,353,451.71 for directors’ bonus.
Received THB 1,414,972.24 for directors’ bonus.
Received THB 2,648,200 for serving on the Board of Directors and as Chairman
of the Risk Oversight Committee, member of the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee, member of IT Oversight Committee.
Not entitled to receive the monetary remuneration and directors’ bonus as per
the criteria of ING Bank N.V.
Not entitled to receive the monetary remuneration and directors’ bonus as per
the criteria of the Bank.

Remark:
(1)

Not currently a board member
Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas was appointed as a director and the Chairman of the Board of Directors, effective from 13 February 2020.
(3)
General Nattaphon Nakphanit resigned from directorship, effective from 1 October 2020.
(4)
Mr. Praisun Wongsmith was appointed as the Chairman of the Audit Committee to replace Mr. Singha Nikornpun, effective from 1 April 2020.
(5)
Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat was appointed as an independent director of the Board of Directors, effective from 1 April 2020.
(6)
Mr. Singha Nikornpun resigned from an independent director position and the Chairman of the Audit Committee, effective from 1 April 2020.
(7)
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel was appointed as an independent director of the Board of Directors, effective from 23 April 2020.
(2)
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Other remuneration and benefits
No other benefits
8.6.2

Remuneration for Executive Officers

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020, the Bank’s 39 executives as defined by the Bank and align
with definition of SEC received remuneration in a total amount of THB 320 million, consisting of salary, bonus,
provident fund and other benefits. (“executives as defined by the Bank and align with definition of SEC” refer to
manager or the next four executives succeeding the manager, the persons holding equivalent position to the fourth
executive and shall include the persons holding the position of manager or equivalent in accounting or finance
department and staff who may know the financial information before public.)
8.7 Personnel
8.7.1 Number of Employees
As of December 31, 2020, the Bank has a total number of 17,012 employees in which 8,838 was TMB’s
employees and 8,174 was TBANK’s employees.
The Bank’s employees broken down by group as follows

Group
Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
President
Chief Automotive Lending Officer (CALO)
Chief Technology and Operating Officer (CTOO)
Chief Integration Officer (CIO)
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
Chief Retail Banking Officer (CRBO)
Chief Commercial Banking Officer (CCBO)
Chief Risk Officer (CRO)
Chief People Officer (CPO)
Chief Marketing Officer (CMO)
Chief Audit Officer (CAO)
Total
Staff’s total number during the past three years
Bank’s employees
As of December 31, 2020
Total number
17,012 persons

As of December 31, 2019
19,432 persons
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2020
No. of
employees
(persons)
337
1,161
1,659
2,604
23
291
8,694
1,165
645
146
158
129
17,012

As of December 31, 2018
8,373 persons
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Key labor disputes (TMB only)
Type of case

No. of cases

1. Lawsuit brought by the Bank against employees
1.1 Violated Employment Contract
- Case not yet finalized
- Case finalized

1
1
1
-

2. Lawsuit brought by employees against the Bank
2.1 Unfair termination of employment
- Case not yet finalized
- Case finalized
2.2 Change in employment conditions
- Cannot yet finalized
- Case finalized
2.3 Pay for annual leave
- Cannot yet finalized
- Case finalized

13
11
2
9
1
1
1
1
-

As of December 31, 2020
Status

Cases are under the Court's proceedings.

Cases are under the Court's proceedings.

Cases are under the Court's proceedings

Staff’s compensation
The Bank is well aware that employees are its valued resources and key contributors towards its success and
achievement. Therefore, the Bank gives priority to the boosting of the employees’ morale and ensure that they
receive compensation based on their performance, skills and competence, as well as other welfare and benefits that
are reasonable, fair and comparable to other financial institutions’.
Total compensation and types of compensation for employees
The Bank has compensation scheme in the form of base salary and variable pay depending on the business
achievement. The industry benchmarking is conducted among financial institutions to ensure the competitiveness.
The Bank has continued to review and update the information to ensure proper compensation package including the
required working tools to be aligned with the scope of work and responsibilities, regardless of the corporate title or
ranking. Corporate operational risk is also taken into consideration for total compensation. The overall compensation
scheme is designed to drive the “Pay for Performance” culture depending on the performance of the Bank and
employees.
In 2020, total compensation for the employees given in the forms of salary, cost of living allowance, other
allowance that related to work, variable pay by performance and others accounted for THB 8,576 million.
In 2020, the Bank received approval from the Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders No. 1/2019 on 23
September 2019 to issue newly issued ordinary shares for TMB Stock Retention Program, with the aim of talent
retention. The offer for sale of the newly issued shares in this structure would cover the span of 3 years (2020 – 2022).
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Other subsidies
The Bank provides other forms of subsidies to employees on several occasions, e.g. grants for staff’s wedding,
child’s birth, ordination, Islamic pilgrimage, and scholarship for staff’s children. The Bank also grants gratuity to the
employees in case they themselves or any of their family members have passed away.
Provident fund
The Bank and Employees have jointly established The Registered Provident Fund of TMB Bank Public Company
Limited which is managed by The Board of Directors of The Registered Provident Fund of TMB Bank Public Company
Limited that comprised of employers, which come from the appointment and employees which come from the
election from the member. The fund is managed with Employee’s Choice which contribution at 5% - 10% of the staff’s
salary is paid by the Bank into the Fund and The Bank’s employee may choose to pay their own portion into the Fund
at the rate of 2% - 15% of their salary.
Other welfares and fringe benefits
Medical care - The Bank provides medical services to staff through health insurance company with efficient and
convenient service standards, and cover dental treatment. The Bank also provides annual health checkup for all
levels of staffs in term of health preventive care. Since 2016 the medical check-up program was properly provided by
considering the range of ages and risk opportunity that might occur from work environment in some functions. The
Bank also provides in-house medical clinic at the Head Office and other office of the bank with many employees
operating with specialized physicians to give medical treatment and health consultancy, with a few beds for sick
staffs and initial medical care during the work hours.
Group life insurance, severe diseases insurance, personal accident insurance, and medical financial support
for accident from work -The Bank provides options for staffs to choose the health insurance program to suit with their
needs. These insurance programs are aimed at strengthening the employees’ security while working with the Bank.
The insurance is also covered 24 hours for both working hours and over time. Including the preparation of life
insurance to staffs who work in areas including four most risky southern provinces namely Yala, Pattani, Narathiwat
and Songkhla, as well as the medical financial support in case of accident that might be occurred from work.
Welfare loans – The Bank has been providing staff welfare loans that are referred to processes and product
which are provided to customers, as well as encourage employees to adhere to the financial discipline. Besides,
emergency loan is provided to ease staff's difficulty.
Canteen– The Bank has provided the canteen at its Head Office where employees can enjoy quality food and
drinks in a low price and nice environment.
Fitness – The Bank supports and provides a fitness facility free of charge at Head Office, this will help to
improve their health and well-being and promote a healthy workplace.
Human Resources Development with the Business Plan Alignment
Training roadmap for the Bank’s staffs has been designed to strengthen Core and Leadership Competency
for our people. We customized training contents and topics to fit staff and executive at all levels through analyzing
key behaviors and skills required for the Bank’s employees at different proficiency levels.
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As of December 2020 the Bank provided training courses for staff in various course for developing their
knowledge and skill. The training course classified as below.
Overall staff training 2020
Men
Women
Overall training by average hour

Average hour
12
16
15

Overall staff training 2020

Average hour
Women
5
7
23
15

Men
4
12
17
11

Top management
Middle management
First management
Officer
Overall staff training 2020
Internal
External
E-Learning
Total

Number of courses
33
16
93

Number of training
63
16
112

142
45
2
58

191
56
3
90

37

42

Branch area
Commercial area
License related area (Securities
and Bancassurance)
Other
Average training hours 15 hours per person.

Detail of the training is disclosed in Sustainability Report.
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Number of staff attend
2,069
53
142,222
144,344
34,189
850
43,634
65,678
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Corporate Governance

9.1

Corporate Governance Policy
The Board of Directors is well aware of the importance and benefits of good Corporate Governance and thereby
set out the written Corporate Governance Policy which applied SEC’s Corporate Governance Code for Listed
Companies. In this regard, the relevant regulations and industry code of conduct also incorporated in. The policy
content focus on the good corporate governance and international standard, proper conduct the Bank business with
efficiency, integrity, absence of fraud and corruption, transparency and accountability to enhance confidence of
shareholders, investors, stakeholders, society and all related parties. The policy is posted on the Bank’s website for
information of the Bank’s employees and for public.
(Detail is indicated in topic “Other Corporate Governance Practice”)
The policy covers in key principles as following.
Part 1 Rights of shareholders
The Bank places importance on protection of the rights of the shareholders and encourages the shareholders
to fully exercise their rights. This covers the shareholders’ basic rights, i.e. sale/purchase or transfer of shares,
business profit sharing, receipt of relevant and adequate information of the Bank. The shareholders are also
encouraged to exercise their rights to attend the shareholders’ meeting and vote on appointment or discharge of
directors, appointment of auditor and on other issues affecting the Bank such as dividend allocation, capital
increase/decrease, approval of connected transactions, and determination or adjustment of Articles of Association
and Memorandum of Association, etc. In this regard, the Bank shall not commit any conduct infringing or
undermining shareholders’ rights.
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
The Bank has policy to encourage all groups of shareholders including minority shareholders, institutional
shareholders, and foreign shareholders to attend the annual general meeting of shareholders. In 2020, the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders was postponed from the original schedule on April 29, 2020 to be held on Monday,
August 17, 2020 at 14.00 hrs. at the Auditorium, 7th Floor, TMB Head Office, 3000 Phahon Yothin Road, Chom Phon,
Chatuchak, Bangkok. This meeting was arranged during the outbreak of the novel coronavirus 2019 (COVID-19)
therefore the Bank set up the preventive measures as per the recommendations of the relevant organizations,
Department of Disease Control, such as diagnose an individual person with a body temperature, using the fill out of
COVID-19 Health declaration form for screening the history of participants if they has been in contact with any risky
person, and request the participants to register application “Thai Chana”. The date, time and venue of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders were set and conformed to the good corporate governance principles as
summarized below:
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Before the Meeting Date
For the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the shareholders were informed of the date and agenda of
the meeting via SET’s communication system on July 9, 2020 or 38 days prior to the meeting date. The Bank also
disclosed the invitation letter as well as related documents in both languages, Thai and English, on the Bank’s
website (www.tmbbank.com) in the section “Investor Relations” under the title of “Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders” July 14, 2020 or 33 days prior to the meeting date to enable the shareholders to have sufficient time to
study the information. The Bank also assigned its registrar, Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (TSD), to deliver
the said documents in printed copies to the shareholders via the registered mail on July 24, 2020 or 23 days before
the meeting date, which was align with policy and longer than the legal requirement.
The invitation letter contained objectives and rationale as well as the opinions of the Board of Directors on each
agenda item, accompanied by complete and sufficient details of each item for consideration. The shareholders were
clearly informed which item would be for consideration and which one for acknowledgement. Moreover, in the invitation
letter, the shareholders were informed of the details regarding necessary evidence documents to be brought to the
meeting as well as meeting procedure, voting rules with a QR Code of the Bank’s annual report (the shareholders can
request for the annual report in printed form) and other relevant information attached thereto. In addition, the invitation
letter was also published in the newspaper for 3 consecutive days in accordance with the law.
A proxy form was also enclosed to allow the shareholders to appoint any independent directors or other
persons as their proxies in case they could not attend the meeting. A foreign shareholder who has appointed a
custodian in Thailand to be share depository and trustee has to use the Proxy Form C. which can be printed form the
Bank’s website.
For convenience of registration, the Bank coordinated with institutional investors on preparation of proxy prior to
the meeting date.
On the Meeting Date
The meeting was carried out with transparency, fairness, and equitable treatment of all shareholders.
Appropriate registration procedure was prepared by the Bank, with facilities provided by Bank staff, classified by
type of attendees, i.e. shareholders attending in person and proxies attending on shareholders’ behalf. The barcode
system was used to ensure rapid and accurate registration procedure. Voting card was available for each attendee
to vote on each item of the agenda. Moreover, the Bank also provided shuttle bus service at various spots and
sufficient parking space to serve the shareholders.
Before starting the meeting, the Chairman assigned the Company Secretary to clearly inform the meeting of the
voting and counting methods. For more convenience of foreign shareholders, a simultaneous English translation was
provided by the Bank’s staff. In this regard, the shareholders’ rights to study the Bank’s information memorandum
would not be undermined, such as no abrupt distribution of additional document with key information during the
meeting, no addition of new items on the agenda or change in the key information without prior notice to the
shareholders, no prohibition of meeting attendance of late attendees, and so on.
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During the meeting, the Chairman proceeded with the meeting in order of the items on the agenda. The
Chairman also encouraged the shareholders to cast votes and raise questions and comments. Importance was given
to all the recommendations or comments made by the shareholders, with all questions comprehensively clarified and
all useful suggestions brought into account.
The vote casting and vote counting were undertaken openly and transparently. Allen & Overy (Thailand)
Co.Ltd,, external legal consultant represented by Mr. Chunhapak Taechakumtornkij, and volunteers for shareholders,
namely Mr. Sakol Jitchobtham, Mr. Prinya Chatametheewong, were invited to be inspectors of the voting method,
collection of ballots, counting and validation of the voting results on all agenda items. The Company Secretary
announced the voting result of all agenda items.
The meeting minutes and detailed votes on all items, as well as essence of shareholders’ inquiries,
clarifications of the Board of Directors & CEO and resolutions were recorded completely and accurately by the
Company Secretary.
After the Meeting
After the meeting, resolutions of the meeting were disclosed via the SET system on Monday, August 17, 2020,
with voting details, i.e. approved, disapproved and abstain, of each agenda item. Minutes of the meeting which
contained complete details including attendance record of the directors, clarification on key items, summary of
questions, answers and comments during the meeting were submitted to the SET and related agencies within 14
days after the meeting date, and posted on the Bank’s website (www.tmbbank.com), both Thai and English version,
for verification by the shareholders. The Bank also arranged systematic filing for the minutes of the shareholders’
meeting.
Furthermore, the Bank provided a video recording of the meeting for the shareholders who could not attend
the meeting. Interested shareholders can contact the Bank for details.
Part 2 Equitable Treatment of Shareholders
The Bank places importance on and assures all shareholders of their rights to fair and equitable treatment, i.e.
major shareholders, minority shareholders, institutional investors, and foreign shareholders. All shareholders are
treated with fairness and equality as summarized below:
Rights to purchase, sale, or transfer the Bank’s shares
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd. (TSD) has been appointed as the Bank’s registrar to facilitate all services
for all transactions related to registration of the Bank’s shares, namely sale/purchase or transfer of shares.
Rights to profit sharing
The Bank allocates profit to its shareholders in form of dividend payment also interim dividend payment, taking
into account sustainable long-term growth built upon the Bank’s full potential and capability. The dividend payment is
also in line with the capital adequacy, reserve allocation and conditions of relevant laws, timeframe of dividend and
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interim dividend payment as well as the detail of dividend payment and dividend amount was disclosed for the
shareholders acknowledgement via SET system.
Rights to regularly and timely obtain adequate information on business performance
The Bank ensures that the shareholders are provided with complete news and information apart from those
disclosed via the SET’s communication system. All significant and updated information are posted on the Bank’s
website (www.tmbbank.com).
Rights to attend the shareholders’ meeting
All shareholders have equitable right to attend the meeting. Opportunity is opened to those who are unable to
attend the meeting in person to appoint proxies to attend at the meeting on their behalf. The Bank has arranged to
have available for appointment as proxies its directors/ independent directors who do not have interests in the business on
the agenda.
Right to vote at the shareholders’ meeting
At each meeting of shareholders, the Bank specifies that the rights to vote shall be accordance with the
amount of shares held by the shareholders, with one share equivalent to one vote. The vote counting will be carried
out openly and accurately. The majority votes will be considered as the resolution except for special resolutions of
certain cases set forth by the laws requiring the votes of at least three-fourths of the votes of all the shareholders
attending the meeting and having the rights to vote. With regards to the voting method, the shareholders can vote to
approved, disapproved, or abstain from on each agenda in the voting card.
The Bank collects the voting cards from the shareholders on every agenda item that needs to be voted for
resolution. The shareholders shall be requested to mark the voting cards, according to their own opinions, indicating
whether to not approve or abstain on each agenda. The barcode system is used for vote counting to facilitate fast
and accurate process. The Bank will notify the shareholders of the voting result on every item once the counting is
finished, divided into approval votes, dissenting votes and abstentions, as well as invalid ballots. The resolutions of
the meeting according to the voting result on each item will be recorded in writing and all ballots will be kept for
further examination.
Right to Propose Agenda, Director Nominees, and Question for AGM by Minority
The Bank allows the shareholders to propose agenda items and nominate persons to be elected as directors in
advance, as well as allows the shareholder to propose Question for AGM in advance. The shareholders must comply
with criteria specified by the Bank. At the 2020 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Bank allowed the
minority shareholders to propose agenda items and nominate persons to be elected as directors 3 months in advance,
prior to the ending date of the fiscal year or from October 1 onwards. Details, procedures and methods of the
proposal and nomination were provided on the Bank’s website (www.tmbbank.com) in “Investor Relations” section
under the title of “Propose Agenda, Director Nominees, and Question for AGM by Minority” and to notify via the SET
system.

Part 2 Page 93

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Right to appoint directors individually and determine directors’ remuneration
At every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, one-third of the total number of the directors of the Bank
shall retire. The Bank has set an agenda item concerning election of the Bank’s directors. The shareholders are
allowed to vote for election of individual directors. The shareholders have the right to choose the person (s) that they
deem having proper qualifications to perform duties as directors so as to safeguard the shareholders’ interests. This
will enable the Bank to have directors from diversified fields to represent the shareholders. Detail of qualified person
such as name, age, education, experience, position in other listed companies, type of directorship, number of
attendant, tenor of directorship etc. would be disclosed for the shareholders’ consideration via the invitation letter for
such agenda.
In addition, the shareholders have the rights to consider and approve the directors’ remuneration. Adequate
information on directors’ remuneration is also provided to support the shareholders’ consideration.
Right to appoint Auditors and determine audit fees
At every Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the Bank has set an agenda on appointment of the Bank’s
auditors and consideration of the audit fees. The Bank also provides sufficient details of the proposed auditors and
audit fees for consideration of the shareholders.
Part 3 Role of Stakeholders
The Bank gives priority to equal treatment to all stakeholders to ensure they fully enjoy their rights with fairness
and appropriate treatment. The Bank puts in place the system to handle customers’ complaints and resolve their
problems with prudence and fairness. Customer information shall be kept confidential and conditions under the
agreements made with business partners shall be strictly complied. The Bank‘s business operations shall be based on
fair, free from corruption and ethical competition. All employees shall be treated fairly and equally. They shall act with
integrity and create trust in working together, dare to do different things and challenge status quo, be forwardlooking, embrace changes and be ready to start new initiatives. They shall also collaborate, pay attention to
difference of opinions, treat each other with respect, aim for the best results, have discipline in everything they do
and pursue accomplishments.
In 2020 the Bank reviewed the laid down relevant policies in 17 areas for all stakeholders as follows:
Policy for Shareholders
The Bank has policy to protect interest of shareholders and equitable treatment of all shareholders including
major shareholders, minority shareholders, institutional investors and foreign shareholders, e.g. right to attend and
vote at the shareholders’ meeting, right to express their opinion independently at the shareholders’ meeting, right to
propose agenda items and nominate persons to be elected as directors in advance, right to profit sharing, and right to
completely, transparently, regularly and timely obtain adequate information on business performance.
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The Bank’s guidelines for shareholders
The Bank ensure that business operation is transparent and free from corruption, taking into account sustainable
and long-term growth based on the Bank’s full potential and capability. This is to enhance the Bank’s value in terms of
both share price and attractive dividend payment.
Policy for Employees
The Bank supports and develops capability of employees for highest performance capacity. The employment
shall be fair and appropriate for employees with career advancement opportunities and returns that reflect their
ability. The Bank shall welcome employees’ opinions and promote team work spirit. Employees shall be treated with
politeness and their individuality shall be respected no double standard criteria. The Bank shall provide good welfare
and good work environment and standard with occupational safety standard and shall concern for all employees’
well-being. Consideration of employment, promotion, rotation, and punishment of employees shall be based on fair
treatment. In addition, the Bank provides plan to use human resources for the Bank’s optimum benefits.
The Bank’s guidelines for employees
The Bank shall provide good benefits and favorable work environment by determining occupational health and
safety standard and assure comprehensive well-being of all employees. For instance, nurse(s) are stationed at the
infirmary every day at the Bank’s office building, and doctor is available for treatment of ill employees. The Bank also
provides medical treatment welfare for employees (in case of out-patient) who are treated at government and private
hospitals. The Bank offers loans to help alleviate employees’ difficulties, i.e. staff welfare loans, etc.
The Bank has the internal procedures which align with the human right principal and Audit Committee has the
regular report for oversight on thus relevant control procedures. Detail of Human right policy was disclosed via the
bank’s website. (www.tmbbank.com)
The Bank has established a Safety, Occupational Health and Working Environment Committee and appointed
a safety officer to work in accordance with the rules and procedures prescribed by the law to comply with the Safety
Act. Occupational Health and Working Environment
In addition, the Bank continuously develops employees’ capability by offering development programs for all
levels of employees. In order to prepare the employee’s readiness for the business goal and culture – I CARE, the
bank provide the internal training course such as Market Conduct, Code of Conduct, Personal Information Protection
Act, Promotion Risk Awareness etc. In addition, the Bank places importance on Anti- Corruption, the Bank provides
training programs on policy and guideline of Anti-Corruption for employees by setting of classroom training for new
employees and providing of digital training (E-Learning) for employees.
In addition, the Bank provided the non-monetary benefits such as by granting the Bank’s newly-issued
ordinary shares to the executives and staff under TMB Stock Retention Program during 2020 – 2022.
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Policy for Customers
The Bank has policy to apply customer centricity strategy in its business operations to provide the customers
with diversified services and products that can well respond to their needs and to create maximum customer
satisfaction and to create maximum customer satisfaction.
Market Conduct
The Bank emphasizes and supports customers to have financial well-being by up-lifting its end-to-end
process for ensuring fair market conduct. In managing financial services fairly based on the minimum standard of
Market Conduct 9 pillars, customers can be confident that 1) the Bank focuses on providing suitable products with
fair and sincere services, and that customers will not be taken advantage of, 2) customers receive appropriate and
clear advice from the Bank, 3) customers receive fair and reasonable prices for products and services 4) customers
are able to access the Bank’s services conveniently and receive appropriate support and 5) customers understand
their rights and obligations when obtaining services from the Bank. An example of main market conduct pillars are as
follows:
Corporate culture and roles and responsibilities of board of directors and senior management are to drive and
support market conduct culture. A Market Conduct Committee is established to oversight the management and
execution of business and actions in accordance with the 9 market conduct pillars. In order to ensure effectiveness
of concrete practices promoting fair market conduct by staff at all level which would in tern becomes corporate
culture, the management team are required to periodically and continuously report the progress to the Board of
Executive Directors and Board of Directors.
Product development and client segmentation, the Bank is committed to develop and offer products that are
appropriate to the needs, financial capability and understandability of each category of customers, while these
products must also be appropriate to the sales skills of bank staff, operating systems as well as the capability to
control the sales quality and fair treatment of customers, in which customers are offered with fair products, in respect
of prices and conditions.
Sale process that support customers to completely receive valuable information, not overstated, not distorted,
enabling customers to make decision with the correct understanding of products and services driving the customers
to reach financial well-being.
Apart from how the Bank aims to provide products and services in the best interest of customers, the Bank is
committed to delivering our services to meet satisfaction at all times. In this event, the Bank provide customers with
access to a problem and complaint management process based on which customers’ problems and complaints are
handled by independent team to ensure fair and efficient process for resolving complaints. This also allow the Bank
the manage its reputational risk and improve customers’ experience.
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The Bank believes in fair and responsible market conduct arrangement which is a fundamental right of customers
resulting in customers having better financial well-being and is the major key for the Bank to operate responsibly and
sustainably.
The Bank’s guidelines for customers
The Bank has cultivated organizational culture “I CARE” comprising 5 core values namely Integrity – integrity
and trust in working together, Challenge Status Quo - dare to do different things and start new initiatives, Agility –
forward-looking, and embracing changes, initiating new ideas, Respect - collaborate, and treat each other with
respect, Execution – aim for the best results with discipline in everything we do and pursue accomplishments.
Policy for Business Partners
The Bank operates business operation with partners sustainably and in long term and as good business
alliances. The Bank has criteria for partner treatment, for example, in term of procurement, employment, leasing and
high purchase. Qualified business partners are included in the Vendor List and price comparison is carried out
before any procurement, employment, leasing and hire purchase. In addition, The Bank carefully and strictly
complies with the criteria for fairness to all parties and transparent, free from corruption, auditable practice so as to
maximize mutual benefits.
The Bank’s guidelines for business partners:
The Bank establish Procurement policy that sets out the criteria for selecting partners who incorporate the
social and environmental issues as their consideration, this also including human rights issues. The Bank also
conducts risk assessment and internal control procedures through Risk Control Self-Assessment (RCSA) process.
Key Control testing is regular perform after RCSA processes
The Bank has set out guidelines for employees responsible for procurement, employment, leasing and hire
purchase as follows:
1 . Procurement officers and those related to procurement process shall perform duty impartially, honestly,
independently and transparently regarding contact and coordination with suppliers, The supplier list and information
related to the bidding shall not be disclosed to other parties except for the public information of the supplier.
2 . Procurement officers and relevant persons, including their direct family members, who have direct or
indirect interest with procurement and employment, for example, employee, director, partner or advisor of the sale
company, shall not participate in considering the specific procurement whether there is remuneration or not. The
Bank has provided the in-house training regarding NO GIFTS POLICY to encourage the transparency.
3 . Procurement officers and relevant persons, including their direct family members, should not be the one
borrowing from or lending to the existing suppliers or suppliers who are making an offer to the Bank.
4. Procurement officers and persons related to procurement shall prepare self-declaration when the person
related to procurement receives is considered under the selection process. This is to promote the transparency and
avoid any conflicts of interest or corruption issues.
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The Bank’s guidelines for selection partners:
For selection partners, the Bank will not select partners who is broker but the Bank will select partner who are
manufacturer, distributors, or distributing agent that there are goods itself as well as consider other important factors
including type of goods or services, expertise and experience of business, financial status, history of business,
faithfulness and experience of executive management, and information of goods’ safety.
1. Selection process involve in the due diligence and KYC shall ensure that all candidates have the complete
qualifications and the bank shall review and screen the supplier list regularly every 6 months to ensure that
the bank has the proper supplier list with the good record according to the bank policy especially the AntiCorruption and align with the Thai Private Sector Collective Action Coalition: CAC.
2. The bank also screens the supplier to ensure no conflict of interest issue between the supplies as well as
the bank’s officer.
3. The procurement committee is appointed to validate the supplier at a specified value of the transaction.
The committee also certified the supplier selection is transparent arranged. The supplier contract is usually
review by Legal department for fairness of both the bank and the suppliers.
Policy for Creditors
The Bank has policy to honor and strictly conform to contact and commitment with creditor includes condition,
guarantee, cash management, not default of debt, and other matter that has made agreement with creditors. Loan
and interest repayment are completely and timely made to all creditors. Loan condition are rigorously complied with
and no misuse of the loans is allowed.
The Bank’s guidelines for creditors:
The Bank shall operate business based on its full potential and capability to build creditors’ confidence in the
Bank’s good financial status and debt service capacity. Balance Sheet Management also prepare the accurate
financial status and financial information and report to the creditors with loyalty all along. In addition, the Bank operates
efficient cash management to ensure that financial status of the Bank is stable and strong as well as good liquidity
management to be in order payment debts to creditors timely.
Policy for Competitors
The Bank has code of conduct and policy to conduct business based on fair and free competition with
honesty and integrity as well as fairness for services providing to the customers and rejection of corruption in all its
forms, and not to damage, sabotage, destroy or restrict the business of the competitors.
The Bank’s guidelines for competitors:
The Bank shall offer the products and services which suit for the customer’s needs based on the fair
treatment, the customers also freely select their satisfied product and services. The Bank shall not engage in any
dishonest or inappropriate action in order to obtain the competitors’ confidential information and shall refrain from
attacking the competitors’ reputation with false allegations.
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Policy for Investors
The Bank shall disclose correct, complete and sufficient information for investors’ decision in a timely and
appropriate manner.
The Bank’s guidelines for investors:
See more details in “Disclosure and Transparency”.
Policy for Government Agencies
The Bank has policy to conduct its business to ensure strict compliance with the laws, rules and regulations
and relevant regulatory requirements, in addition the employee would be communicated on such regulations for their
strict implementation, the Bank also provide good cooperation to the regulators such as to comply with Thai law the
national anti-corruption law, etc.
Policy on Social and Environmental Responsibility
The Bank operates its business as well as encourage the employee’s awareness based on Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) principles, supporting various activities and managing for efficiency of the energy consumption
to promote sustainable quality development of the society and environment.
Policy on Compliance with International Human Rights Principle
The Bank places importance on equality of all stakeholders and shall not commit any conduct that violates
human rights, including discrimination on grounds of the difference in origin, race, language, age, education,
institution, gender, disability, physical or health condition, personal status, economic or social standing. These
practical policies have been specified in the Code of Conduct of the Bank. The Bank determines hiring of any
persons based on fair employment and respect human rights by considering from a person's caliber, the bank
proceed appropriate compensation according to the position structure as well as market rate.
The Bank’s guidelines for violation of human rights
All employees must treat all stakeholders with politeness, respect and honor, not behave inappropriately or
violation of human rights regarding discriminate via verbal, ground of the difference in origin, race, religion, language,
age, education, gender, disability, physical or health condition, personal status, and economic or social standing.
Policy on Non-Violation Against Intellectual Property Rights or Copyrights
The Bank operates its business without violating or exploiting copyrighted works or intellectual property,
unless legal permission is granted by the copyright owners. The Bank has specified the policy on usage of
information technology system and software program of the employee shall be inspected to prevent any usage of
piracy software and software which is unrelated to work.
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The Bank’s guidelines on non-violation against intellectual property rights or copyrights:
In aspect of information technology, system development, procurement of IT program and equipment, the
Bank complies with the Copyright Act and supports the legal protection of the Department of Intellectual Property.
The Bank also welcomes inspection by the copyright owner. In addition, the Bank ensures that the employees do not,
either in part or whole, copy, modify or publicize the copy or original material. Programs which are not licensed to the
Bank/ .exe file/ songs/ games/ and other links to automatic installation are prohibited.
Anti-Fraud Policy, Anti-corruption Policy, and Gift ,Entertainment, Donation and Sponsorship Policy
The Bank emphasizes on prevention and suppression of fraud, bribery, and corruption within the Bank. The Bank
sets out policies, standards and procedures with strict measures for fraud and corruption detection in order to reduce
fraud and corruption-related losses and to enhance efficiency and effectiveness in fraud prevention and suppression
within the Bank.
The Bank provides preventive measures prohibiting an outsider to use the Bank to commit illegal actions as
well as measures protecting persons who deny corruption or make complaints on fraud, corruption, and bribe from
harassment, harm, penalty, demotion or threats such as Anti- Fraud Policy, Anti-Corruption Policy and TMB AntiMoney Laundering/Combating of Financing Terrorism (AML/ FTC) Policy, etc.
The Bank places importance on anti-bribery for the Bank’s business benefits or anti-bribery in any business
agreement with government and private organizations. The Bank also determines Gift ,Entertainment , Donation and
Sponsorship Policy for use as guideline by the employees. The bank shall not accept gifts or endorsements, while
any providing gifts or entertainment shall be arranged according to the context of business with the clear guideline,
on necessary or traditions practices.
The Bank’s guidelines on anti-fraud, gift & anti-bribery:
All employees shall comply with the Gift, Entertainment, Donation, and Sponsorship Policy. Employees must
report the offered gift or the entertainment transaction, the gift or entertainment transaction must be aligned with
detail stated in Gift, Entertainment, Donation and Sponsorship Policy.
Policy on Whistle Blowing or Complaints
The Bank has whistle blowing policy and guideline for employees and all stakeholders’ complaints to ensure
that all stakeholders are able to communicate, report, or complain about improper actions such as violations of laws
and regulations, misconduct and unethical behaviors, embezzlement, frauds, corruption, violation of rights, and any
matter that lead to the Bank’s damage.
The Bank provides channels to enable the stakeholders to report or make complaints either in writing or
through the Bank’s website. Policies and procedures are in place to ensure that the complaints will be forwarded to
the concerned work units for quick investigation and correction as well as reporting to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and the Chairman of the Audit Committee for acknowledgement on quarterly basis. The whistleblowers will
be notified of the Bank’s action.
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In addition, the Bank has measured to protect whistleblowers from harassment, harm, penalty, demotion or
threats from the whistle blowing.
The Bank’s guidelines on Whistle Blowing or Complaints:
Bank provides the channel for the stakeholder to report any violation or complaint case either written via email
or the bank’s website. The reporter will be protected from harassment, harm, penalty, demotion or threats from the
whistle blowing. Compliance monitor the corrective actions regarding complaint cases to ensure that the actions
were rapidly processed.
Policy on Management of Conflict of Interest
The Bank imposes strict measures on management of conflict of interest or related transaction or connected
transaction. The important transactions that may pose a conflict of interest are considered and approved by the
Board of Directors and in accordance with the rules and regulations of the related agencies. These transactions are
treated in the same manner as those made with the outsiders (an arm’s length basis) and the stakeholders shall not
participate in the approval process.
The Bank has policy on transactions with persons who having conflict of interest for directors, employees in
order to treat such transactions with fairness, transparency and in accordance with the relevant regulatory
requirement. The Bank also discloses accurate and complete information on such transactions in Form 56-1 and
annual report.
Furthermore, at the Board of Directors’ meeting, directors shall inform the Board of their conflict of interest
before consideration of such particular agenda item. Such conflicts of interest shall be minutes by Secretary to the
Board. The director with conflict of interest shall also abstain from participating in the discussion of such particular
agenda item.
The Bank’s guidelines on Manage conflict of interest:
All management and employee shall report, avoid, and prevent any conflict of interest issues by informing the
management in higher level or the relevant party regarding the beneficial of interest under their areas and they will
not participate or attend the meeting for such transaction. The approval or consideration on such transaction shall be
conducted by other person or the management in higher level in order to prevent the conflict of interest issue. In
addition, directors and managements, under SEC definition, must prepare the disclosure regarding the share equity
held in other companies in order to prevent any conflict of interest or misuse of internal information issues.
Policy on Internal Control
The Bank sets out internal control policy for both managing and operational levels and puts in place the
efficient, appropriate and adequate internal control systems with regular assessment. The Audit Committee of which
all members are the Independent Directors is assigned to oversee the internal control system. The Audit Department,
which directly reports to the Audit Committee, has duty to audit performance of all units such as accounting, finance,
management to ensure that the operations are in accordance with the related rules, regulations and laws as well as
the annual audit plan, and that the benefits of the Bank and the stakeholders are best protected.
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Business Ethics and Code of Conduct
The Board of Directors realizes that good practice enables the Bank to conserve and uplift its honor and
reputation. The Business Ethics and Code of Conduct, that align with the banking industry code of conduct and the
good corporate governance, are thus prepared as guidelines for the directors, executives and employees and both
directors, executives and employees has signed off for acknowledgement the code of conduct. The strict compliance
which is reflected in their daily work will enhance reliability and trust among the stakeholders.
Anti-Corruption Policy
The Bank give important to operate the Bank with fairness and adhere responsibility for all stakeholders. The
Bank operate align with principle of good corporate governance and code of conduct to ensure that the operation’ of
the Bank is transparency and absent all aspect of corruption. The Bank attained certified membership status in the
Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption (CAC).
The Bank provides anti-corruption policy in order that directors and employees use to be guideline for
operation to ensure that the Bank acts as organization with full transparency. The Bank oversees directors and
employees to abide by this policy strictly and also provide penalty to employees in case of violation of the policy as
well as provide awareness of the participation and responsibility of the Bank to prevent corruption and also make
organization’s culture to be a zero-tolerance on anti-corruption. In addition, the Bank has measured to protect and
give fairness to employees who deny or inform clue action on corruption from harassment, harm, penalty, demotion or
threats.
In addition, the Bank provides risk management process on corruption in Risk & Control Self-Assessment –
RCSA process, regular perform on key control testing according to RCSA by business units under 3 Lines of Defense
and Market Conduct bank wide, to protect and monitor risk from corruption, monitoring result of assessment from
policy’s implementation as well as provide training to employees to ensure that they have knowledge on anticorruption policy and guideline.
See more details in “Anti-Corruption”.
The Bank’s guidelines on anti-corruption:
Bank communicates to all employees to acknowledge and understand the policy via infahNet every year. The
training course regarding Anti-Corruption is set as the mandatory course for everyone which the training is provided
via e-learning system every year. Anti-Corruption course is the mandatory course for new employees. In addition, the
Risk & Control Self-Assessment process also incorporate the anti-corruption as one topic for considering the risk
mitigation action.
Part 4 Disclosure and Transparency
Disclosure
The Bank’s financial and non-financial information relevant to the business and operating results are disclosed
in both Thai and English correctly, completely, sufficiently, transparency, and timely, which reflects its actual
business operation and financial status. All stakeholders have equal access to the information. The significant
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information is disclosed to the public in accordance with the criteria and regulations concerning the disclosure of
information of the SET and SEC, and the good corporate governance principles such as to submit the financial report
to the SET and SEC within the specified timeframe. The Bank’s financial statements did not contain any transactions
to which the auditor had qualified opinion. The financial statements have never been revised under the order of the
SET and SEC. In addition, the Bank performs Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) on a quarterly basis and
discloses such information on the Bank’s website to inform the investors and enable them to better understand
changes in the Bank’s financial position and operating results in each quarter. The Bank also discloses remuneration
for the directors and executives in Form 56-1 as well as annual report, and the shareholding of the Bank’s securities
by the directors and executives in Form 56-1 as well as annual report.
Investor Relations
The Bank places importance on management of investor relations, both institutional and individual investors,
domestic and overseas, taking into account the quality, correctness, completeness, transparency, adequacy and
timeliness of information disclosed to investors, securities analysts, etc. The Bank’s management team arranges
meetings with investors and securities analysts on a regular basis to present the quarter and annual operating results
of the Bank. The management team also regularly participates in seminar and non-deal roadshow with local and
foreign investors, including securities analysts both domestic and overseas. This is to build their confidence in the
Bank’s performance and establish long-term relationship.
The Bank has established Investor Relations unit to correspond and communicate with investors, securities
analytics, etc. as well as to provide them with accurate and complete information of the Bank, both financial and
general information, in a timely manner and in accordance with the relevant laws or regulations. This is to support the
decision-making, create confidence and enhance good image of the Bank. The Bank’s Investor Relations could be
contacted at Floor 30, TMB Head Office Tel. 02-242-3475, Fax. 02-299-1211, website: http://www.tmbbank.com/ir
Besides, shareholder services can be contacted at Company Counselor Floor 28, TMB Head Office Tel. 02-299-2729
Fax. 02-299-2758.
In 2020, the Bank provided information to analysts and investors regularly as summarized in the table below:
Types of meeting
Number of
Number of
Number of
investors
companies
meetings
One-on-one Meeting and conference calls
Analyst Meeting and Live Webcast
Investor Conference
Site visit
Non-deal Roadshow
Total

48
335
196
99
24
702
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The Bank’s website
At present, disclosure of information on the website is a fast and convenient way that allows easy and
equitable access to information by shareholders and the public. The Bank therefore provides information about the
Bank on the its website (www.tmbbank.com) in both languages, Thai and English. The information can also
download.
The Board of Directors’ Responsibility for Financial Report
The board has presented responsibilities concerning the company’s financial reports alongside the auditor’s
report in the company’s annual report.
Protection against abuse of inside information
The Bank has written policy and guidelines for keeping and preventing abuse of inside information, and
information that the Bank not yet disclose to public which significant to change of price or value of share. The Bank
has regulation on the use of inside information and also ensure strict compliance to prevent any director, executive or
employee in the position or status having opportunity to access to the Bank’s inside information or related persons
which defined by government agencies from exploiting such information for his/her own benefits or for others’
benefits such as trading share before insider information are disclosed to public, using details or confidential
information of the Bank/customers to operate business competing with the Bank’s/customers’ businesses or exploit
any benefit from his/her authority and responsibility.
The Bank require that the directors, Chief Executive Officer, Chiefs, Senior Executive Vice President, Executive
Vice President or Heads (or equivalent), and Team Heads (or equivalent), in Finance Control, Financial Planning and
Analysis, Balance Sheet Management, and other persons defined by Chief Financial Officer shall disclose and report
to the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) the Bank-issued securities held by them, their spouses and minor
children, as well as any changes thereof, such as sale, purchase, transfer or acceptance of transfer of those
securities in the report format and within the period of time specified by the SEC.
In addition, the management is required to report on a monthly basis the Bank-issued securities held by
directors, management, their spouses, and minor children to the Board for acknowledgement, and to prepare a
summary report on any changes of the Bank-issued securities held by directors, management, their spouses, and
minor children and disclose such information in the annual report.
Part 5 Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Bank requires that the Board of Directors’ structure has diversity of necessary experiences, professional
skills, expertise and gender. The Board shall contain proper composition of members according to the resolution of
annual general meeting. The Board shall also establish a clear scope of responsibilities with balance of management
power without allowing any person or group of persons to have unlimited power. For recruitment of directors, the
qualification of directors must be aligned with the Bank’s strategy. In some case, the Bank recruit’s new directors
form Director Pool data base. (see item Nomination of independent director and non-executive director)
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Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board shall comprise non-executive directors, executive directors and independent directors. The
independent directors shall have at least the number set by the Capital Market Supervisory Board. Each independent
director must have qualifications as prescribed by the Bank which are more stringent than the criteria set by the
Capital Market Supervisory Board.
The Board of Directors consists of 14 directors who have knowledge, experience, professional skill, and
expertise in diversified fields as follows:
5 Independent Directors,
8 Non-Executive Directors (1 director is under nomination process)
1 Executive Director
The shareholders can be assured that the directors as representatives of the shareholders could perform their
duty independently and there is appropriate balance of power.
Board Meeting
The Board meeting shall be held at least once a month. In an urgent case, the Board may arrange a special
meeting as deemed necessary. The meeting date shall be scheduled in advance so that the Board members are
able to plan the attendance of every meeting. The meeting agenda shall be endorsed by the Chief Executive Officer
and approved by the Board Chairman.
The Bank sends the meeting documents and invitation letter to directors at least 5 business days in advance
so that the directors will have sufficient time to study and consider in advance the information to support their
decision making on each agenda. The directors can additionally request necessary information regarding the
meeting agenda from the management. The average length of the meeting is approximately 3 hours. The Chairman
shall declare the meeting open and proceed with the business on the agenda. The time shall be adequately
allocated for the management to present the information and for the Board members to make careful consideration
before decision making. The voting of each agenda, the Board almost pass unanimously. The Chairman shall
summarize issues as the meeting resolution. Directors who have conflict of interest on that agenda shall leave the
meeting and shall have no right to vote.
The Board Secretary is responsible for preparation of written minutes of the meeting, arrangement of
systematic filing for inspection and submission of the minutes to the government agencies within the specified period.
See more detail of the meeting attendance of the Board of Directors and board committee members in “Board of
Directors’ meeting”.
In 2020 Directors in Board of Directors had attend the meeting by average at 9 5 .3 9 % of the total meetings
arranged during the year, in the meeting all directors had participated and provided the useful recommendation for
the bank business.
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors’ Meeting (without Executive Directors)
Non-executive directors and independent directors shall arrange meeting without presence of the executive
directors to consider and discuss important issues. Normally the meeting shall be arranged after the Board of
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Director’s meeting. The meeting among the independent director, and meeting among the non-executive director
was arranged 2 meetings on July 22, 2020 and October 28, 2020.
In addition, the meeting between Audit Committee Chairman and Risk Oversight Committee Chairman for
discussion the efficiency of the risk management was also arranged on 22 December 2020.
Segregation of Duties and Balance of Power of Non-Executive Directors
Chairman of the Board of Directors, and Chief Executive Officer shall not be the same person to prevent any
person or group of persons to have unlimited power and to ensure balance of power. The Chairman of the Board of
Directors shall not serve in any position of the committees.
Segregation of Duties, Roles, and Responsibilities between the Board of Directors and Executive
Member of the Board (except the executive directors) shall not be the Bank’s staff and shall not involve in
normal daily executive activities of the Bank. The Board of Directors has the Charter or the Corporate Governance
Policy which indicate the authority, role, and responsibility of the Board of Director that specified the framework of
role that will be referred when supervision.
Terms of Directorship
The terms of directorship shall be in accordance with Clause 17 of the Bank’s Article of Association which
states that at each annual general shareholders’ meeting, at least one third of the directors shall retire. Should the
total number of directors cannot be divided exactly by 3, the number of directors closest to the 1/3 ratio shall apply.
Retiring directors may be re-elected.
Term of directorship for independent director was indicated in the bank policy that each independent director
shall have term of directorship not longer than 9 consecutive years starting from the appointed date. If any
independent director has its term of directorship for 9 consecutive years, he or she is required to retire for at least 2
years prior to be re-elected as independent director. (see item 9 .3 : Independent director and director nomination
criteria)
Role Assumption of Directorship in Other Companies
To ensure that the directors have adequate time to perform their duties for the Bank, the Board limits directors
from assuming a position in other companies as per regulations of the SET, the SEC and the Bank of Thailand, taking
into account the effectiveness of the directors assuming position in companies. Details are as follows:
1. A director of the Bank may assume directorship in not more than 5 listed companies * (both domestic and
offshore).
2. Directors of the Bank are able to assume a position or several positions, including chairman of the board,
executive director, or an authorized signatory director in other companies in not more than 3 business groups (both
domestic and offshore). A company that is not a part of a business group shall be treated as one business group.
3. Directors shall disclose the information regarding assumption of directorship in other companies to the Bank
as per regulatory requirements and the Bank’s regulation.
Remark * included TMB i.e. TMB and other four listed companies.
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Assumption of Position in Other Companies by Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer of the Bank shall perform full-time duties for the Bank. An assumption by the Chief
Executive Officer of any position in other companies or organization shall require approval by the Board.
Roles and Responsibilities of Chairman of the Board of Directors
The chairman is responsible for leading the board. The chairman’s duties should at least cover the following matters
(1) Oversee, monitor, and ensure that the board efficiently carries out its duties to achieve the company’s
objectives.
(2) Ensure that all directors contribute to the company’s ethical culture and good corporate governance, joint
consider with Chief Executive Officer in determine the board of director’s meeting agenda and oversee that
significant issues were incorporated in the agenda.
(3) Promote a culture of openness and debate through ensuring constructive relations between executive and
non-executive directors, and between the board and management.
Chairman shall be chairperson in the board of director meeting and the bank’s shareholders’ meeting.
Chairman of the Board of Director is non-executive director which in line with the Corporate Governance Notification
which stated that Chairman could be independent director or non-executive director.
Roles and Responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer
The Chief Executive Officer’s principal duties are to implement the Bank’s strategies, plan, and ensure the
smooth functioning of the Bank according to the policies set by the Board. The Chief Executive Officer has ultimate
responsibility for the performance of the Bank.
Directors’ Remuneration
The Board has fairly set the directors’ remuneration criteria, compositions and amounts based on Fiduciary Duty
at appropriate level. In addition, the directors’ remuneration shall be in accordance with accountability and
responsibility of the directors compared with the companies in the listed companies as well as the companies in the
same industry and similar size. See more details in “Directors’ Remuneration”.
Directors’ Bonus
The Board has important role in policy’s setting, oversee the Bank’s performance, and there are strong and
sustain performance. The Board fairly set the directors’ bonus in proper rate and consistent with the Bank’s performance
as well as comparable to that of the industry in which the Bank operates. The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate
Governance shall consider the directors’ bonus, and then propose it to the Board for endorsement, and also include it in
the agenda of the annual general meeting of shareholders for approval. The Board shall ensure that the Bank discloses
the bonus of each individual director in the reports such as Form 56-1 and annual report in compliance with the
regulatory requirements. See more details in “Directors’ Remuneration”.
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Directors’ Performance Assessment
The NRCC had made consideration of the method, scope, criteria of assessment of directors’ performance of
duties in Board and Board Committees as well as individual director by applying self-evaluation and cross evaluation
before submission to the Board meeting for approval. This is to reflect their performance efficiency and problems and
obstacles during the year, the recommendation will be gathered for improvement consideration, and will send the
assessment form that is approved by the NRCC to all directors.
Assessment’s Criteria
The criteria for assessment cover various areas including Structure of the Board, Board meeting, the Board’s
and Board Committees’ performance of duties, Relationship with management, Self-development of directors, and
Board’s practice of Roles and responsibilities of the Board.
Assessment’s Process
The self-assessment is undertaken as follows:
1. Assessment of the whole Board of Directors’ performance, the performance of each board committee (i.e.
Board of Executive Directors, Audit Committee, NRCC, Risk Oversight Committee, Credit Committee, IT Oversight
Committee)
2. Self-assessment of individual Board member
3. Cross assessment
Assessment’s Method
1. The self-assessment of the Board of Directors shall be made by all Board members.
2. The self-assessment of the board committees shall be made by all members of the board committees,
member of the Board (by volunteer) and the Bank’s executives who take position in the board committees on an
individual committee basis.
3. The self-assessment of individual board members shall be made by all board members.
4. Cross assessment which the member of Board of Directors shall assess each director.
topic
Board of Directors
Sub-committees
1.Assess the efficiency
1.1 board of director

1.2 sub-committees

2.Individual assessment


3.Cross assessment

NRCC shall report the result from the assessment and propose to Board of Director for acknowledgment and
report result of Sub-Committee to the Chairman of Sub-Committees to review and adjust the relevant process for the
efficient meeting.
Enhancement of Directors’ Training and Performance
The Bank encourage the directors to participate in training courses to expand their knowledge at least one
course related to their directorship, which are provided by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) such as Director
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Accreditation Program (DAP), Director Certification Program (DCP) or other programs which are relevant to good
corporate governance, Anti-Corruption, director’s roles and responsibilities under the laws and relevant government
regulations or the bank’s business operations. This aims at enhancing directors’ skills and competency, and the
Bank shall be responsible for all expenses.
In addition, the training course for directors shall be arranged with the alignment with the bank’s strategy and
directors such as Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A Hight – Frequency Data Perspective, Personal Data Protection
Act, Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD.
The Bank encourage foreign directors who do not reside in Thailand to participate in professional director
training courses from aboard which is equivalent to the programs provided by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD) as well
as support them to take Thai Institute of Directors training course.
Whenever there is an appointment of new director, If the new director did not have the director’s training
record, the Bank shall provide the IOD training course for receiving the information with respect to the directors’ role
and the responsibility according to the legal, as well as the guideline for director’s duties according to SET, SEC rules
and guidelines including the good corporate governance. The Bank also provide the internal training courses for
directors for improvement in term of the bank’s business operation and director’s responsibility.
Currently, 4 of the existing directors had joined DCP program, 1 director joined DAP program and 4 directors
joined both DCP and DAP. Furthermore, the Bank also provides internal training for directors to enhance knowledge
about to the Bank’s business and director’s responsibilities.
New Director Orientation
The Bank provides an orientation for new directors whenever there is a change of director. Director’s manual,
documents and useful information are provided to support the important information and prepare the new directors in
performing his/her duty through electronic media. In this regard, the Company Secretary an Corporate Counselor
shall have the following responsibilities:
• To provide the Bank’s Information such as the Bank’s history, important official documents, major
shareholders, vision and mission, financial statements, business structure, management structure,
term of directorship, directors’ remuneration, etc.
• To provide information on the regulations and best practices for directors, e.g. rules and regulations
for directors of related regulatory agencies, the Bank’s policies and practices for directors, do’s and
don’ts for Bank directors, director fiduciary duty checklist, directors & officers liability & corporate
reimbursement insurance.
• To arrange meeting with the Bank’s executives to enquire in-depth information about business
operation of the Bank. Bank also inform the new regulations rule and laws for the directors
acknowledgement.
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Executive Succession Plan
The executive succession plan is prepared by the Bank as it is a key composition of the personnel strategic
planning. The Bank has policy, work plans, and procedures in connection with its vision, mission and business goal
as well as organizational culture to ensure that the executive succession is carried out smoothly and the succession
personnel shall be prepared to ensure continuous operations of the Bank.
Board of Directors
Board of Directors regularly monitors the management’s implementation to ensure that the Bank’s vision &
mission and strategies is effectively, efficiently and sustainably achieved.
Principles of Corporate Governance of the Bank
1. The Bank shall operate business with care, efficiency, and effectiveness for stability and sustainable
growth in accordance with its organization culture, WE CARE: We care about customers’ financial well-being enough
that we dare to do things differently. We are customer-centric in everything we do to truly improve their financial wellbeing.
2. The Bank shall operate business in compliance with good corporate governance principles without fraud
and corruption, and based on key fundamentals of accountability, responsibility, equitable treatment, loyalty, and
transparency.
3. The directors and employees shall protect the Bank’s benefits, whilst taking into account the benefits, rights
and equality of stakeholders. This will enhance the confidence of both domestic and foreign investors and contribute
to an increase of the Bank’s share value.
4. The Bank shall operate business in compliance with laws, rules and regulations, and relevant regulatory
requirements.
5. The Bank shall determine guideline to treat the stakeholders with fairness and transparency.
6. The Bank shall prevent any conflict of interest among the Bank, directors, employees and stakeholders, and
to determine scope of responsibilities of the Board and executives to stakeholders.
7. The Bank shall determine comprehensive operational procedures, efficient internal control, as well as risk
management system at international standard.
8. The Bank shall accurate, complete and timely disclosure of the Bank’s financial report and information
affecting the decision-making.
9.2 Board Committees
To achieve effective and efficient performance, the Board has appointed board committees to relieve its
burden in monitoring or consideration of important businesses of the Bank. The board committees have the authority
to make decision on behalf of the Board subject to the Board’s delegation of authority.
The Board has determined the scope of duties and responsibilities of the board committees in accordance
with their missions. The segregation of duty is clearly defined without duplication of work, as well as in compliance

Part 2 Page 110

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

with the regulatory requirements. In addition, the board committees’ meetings must be held on a regular basis to
report their performance for the Board’ acknowledgement.
The board committees comprise of :
1. The Board of Executive Directors
2. Audit Committee
3. Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
4. Risk Oversight Committee
5. Credit Committee
6. IT Oversight Committee
(1) Board of Executive Directors
As of December 31, 2020, the Board of Executive Directors was composed of 6 members as below, the Board of
Executive Directors’ meeting is usually held twice a month or as deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman
of the Board of Executive Directors:
Name
Position
Note
1. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
Chairman
Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
Vice chairman
Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
Committee Member Non-Executive Director
4. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
Committee Member Non-Executive Director
5. Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
Committee Member Non-Executive Director
6. Mr. Piti Tantakasem
Committee Member Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kriangkrai Phurivitvattana is Secretary to the Board of Executive Directors.
The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
1. To review business performance of the Bank in details on behalf of the Board.
1.1 Review and recommend annual budget and business plan of the Bank including capital planning.
1.2 Conduct tracking of financial result and performance by business segment of the Bank.
1.3 Oversee performance of subsidiaries.
2. To review and recommend or approve large capital expenditure in relation to plan and strategy according to
delegation of authority.
3. To review and recommend new business models that are strategic for the Bank including equity participation.
4. To monitor progress of transformation that build capabilities of the Bank for the future.
5. To monitor progress of the branding and corporate communications programs.
6. To review the overall performance of the Chief Executive Committee and provide advice to management as
appropriate on urgent or important issues and review the critical issues raised by the management and propose
to the Board.
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7. Oversee the Bank’s digital transformation and IT investment plans to ensure sufficient investment in IT
architecture, infrastructure and supporting systems to effectively support the digital transformation that covers
digital business, security, and risk.
8. Ensure appropriate governance on customer data management, data quality, and information security.
9. Review control, implementation and monitor IT security and cybersecurity controls (threats and vulnerabilities) to
ensure reliability, accessibility, security, and stability in accordance with policy and risk appetite, including
regular disclosure of IT and cyber security reports to BoD.
10. Appoint any sub-committees to assist the BoED and oversee the clear role and responsibility of such
sub-committees
11. Undertake such additional tasks as are related to and considered by the BoED to be necessary to achievement
of the foregoing responsibilities or as may be assigned to it by the Board.
(2) Audit Committee
As of December 31, 2020, the Audit Committee comprised of 3 members whose qualifications must conform to
the Securities and Exchange Commission’s requirements as below, the Audit Committee’s meeting is usually held
once a month or as deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman of the Audit Committee.:
Name
Position
1. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
Chairman
2. Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat Committee Member
3. Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
Committee Member

Note
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Mr. Praisun Wongsmith is Member of the Audit Committee with well experienced and reviewing financial statement.
Ms. Pittimart Sanguansook is Secretary to the Audit Committee.
The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
1. To review the Bank’s financial statements to ensure accuracy and adequacy.
2. To review and ensure that the Bank has suitable and efficient internal control system and internal audit, and
reviewing to ascertain that internal audit function is independent. Hiring, transferring, removal of Head of Audit
shall be concurred by Audit Committee before submission to Nomination Remuneration and Corporate
Governance (NRCC) for endorsement and Board of Directors for approval respectively.
3. To evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the performance of Head of Audit.
4. To evaluate the efficiency and effectiveness of the performance of Head of Compliance
5. To review and approve the Annual Audit Plan of Internal Audit.
6. To review to ensure compliance with the laws and regulations imposed by the BoT, SEC, SET and other relevant
regulators including compliance report prepared by the Bank’s Compliance unit.
7. To review and approve the Compliance Policy, Annual Compliance Plan and Annual Compliance Report
prepared by Bank’s Compliance unit.
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To select, nominate and recommend remuneration of the Bank’s external auditor by taking into account
credibility, adequacy of resources, experience and independence including recommend dismissal of the
external auditor. The Audit Committee shall meet with the external auditor without the members of executive
management being present as often as it determines but at least once a year.
9. To approve audit-related and other services engagements with the Bank’s external auditor.
10. To review connected transaction or transaction that may lead to conflict of interest to ensure transactions are
conducted and disclosed in compliance with the law and regulation and that transactions are entered with
reasonableness for the benefit to the Bank.
11. To prepare audit committee report, signed by the chairman of the Audit Committee, and disclose it in an annual
report of the Bank. The report should at least contain the following information;
(1) The Audit Committee’s opinion regarding the accuracy, completeness and integrity of the Bank’s financial
statements.
(2) The Audit Committee’s opinion regarding adequacy of the Bank’s internal controls.
(3) The Audit Committee’s opinion regarding compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
(4) The Audit Committee’s opinion regarding suitability of the Bank’s external auditor.
(5) The Audit Committee’s opinion regarding transaction that may lead to conflict of interest.
(6) The number of the meeting held during the year and number of each member’s attendance.
(7) Overall opinion on the discharge of Audit Committee’s duties according to its charter.
(8) Other information, within the scope of the roles and responsibilities of Audit Committee, which is deemed to
be necessary for shareholders and general investors.
12. To commence investigation without delay upon being informed by external auditor of suspicious circumstance
and report to SEC and external auditor the preliminary result within 30 days. The committee also is to report to
the Board of Directors so that the Board can rectify the issues within the timeline specified by Audit Committee
on the following findings or suspected transactions or actions:
(1) Conflict of interest;
(2) Fraud, possible fraud, or significant deficiency of internal control;
(3) Breaching of the applicable laws and regulations.
In case where the Board of Directors or executive management fail to rectify the issues within the specified timeline,
Audit Committee shall report to BOT, SEC and SET, and ensure disclosure in the Bank’s annual report.
13. To perform appropriate action upon being informed of suspicious circumstance by internal staff and/or external
parties including whistleblowers.
14. To review the appropriateness of corrective measures and actions taken by management in response to the
reports or instructions from BOT, SEC and SET and any other relevant regulators.
15. To review the accuracy and reliability of the financial statements of the Bank's subsidiaries, and to review
compliance with the policies, processes and standards set by the Bank for its subsidiaries, including those
related to internal controls and audit.
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16. To perform any other duties as delegated by the Board of Directors and agreed by the Audit Committee
17. To perform other duties as required by law.
(3) Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
As of December 31, 2020, the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee comprised of 5
directors not holding executive position as below, the meeting of this Committee is usually held once a month or as
deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman of the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee.:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Name
Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel

Position
Chairman
Committee Member

Note
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member

Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director

Ms. Vijitra Thumpothong is secretary to the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee.
The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
Nomination
1. Review and recommend to the Board policies, criteria and methods, including an appropriate skills matrix, for the
recruitment selection and nomination of
(a) Members of the Board
(b) Members and chairpersons of each Board Committee
(c) Representatives of the Bank as directors, chairpersons and chief executives of companies which are
subsidiaries or where the Bank is entitled to nominate one or more representatives as director
(d) Senior management
2. Screen, shortlist and propose to the Board for nomination or appointment qualified candidates for the positions
mentioned above.
3. Recommend to the Board appropriate succession plans for senior management.
4. Review and monitor the implementation and effectiveness of the policies, criteria, methods and plans referred to
above and report thereon to the Board at least once a year.
Remuneration
1. Review the overall remuneration structures policies and practices of the Bank as well as oversee the public
disclosure thereof, including those on benefits, performance evaluation, incentive awards and severance payments,
to ensure they are consistent with the decisions of the Board and the Bank's culture, objectives, strategy and control
environment, promote long term shareholder value, and take fair account of the roles, responsibilities, management
of risk and performance of the individuals concerned, and of market benchmarks for fairness of all parties; and make
recommendation to management and the Board as appropriate.
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2. Recommend to the Board (subject to further approval by the shareholders where required) the amount of actual
remuneration and benefits of members of the Board and of Board Committees.
3. Approve (or in the case of the CEO of the Bank recommend to the Board for approval) the actual remuneration
and benefits, including any incentive award or severance payment, of senior management.
Corporate Governance
1. Review and where appropriate recommend to the Board changes to applicable policies, codes, rules and
guidelines including those governance, sustainability and culture to ensure the highest standards of good corporate
governance and ethics in line with best international practice, and supervise, monitor and report to the Board at least
annually on the implementation and effectiveness thereof.
2. Recommend to the Board the appropriate size and composition of the Board and Board Committees, and the
mandates of each Board Committee.
3. Recommend to the Board policies criteria and methods for the periodic evaluation of the performance of the Board
and Board Committees, implement the same and report the results to the Board.
Other Responsibilities
1. Undertake such additional tasks as are related to and considered by the NRCC to be necessary to achievement of
the foregoing responsibilities or as may be assigned to it by the Board
2. Make such reports and disclosures on its work to the Board, regulators, shareholders and the public as are
required by applicable regulations or deemed appropriate in the interests of good governance.
(4) Risk Oversight Committee
As of December 31, 2020, the Risk Oversight Committee comprised of 6 members, the meeting of this Committee is
usually held monthly or as deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman of the Risk Oversight Committee.
as follows:
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Name
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel
Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
Mr. Piti Tantakasem

Position
Chairman
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member

6.

Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel

Committee Member

Note
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer)
Management
(Chief Risk Officer)

Ms. Chaowanat Kitpracha is Secretary to Secretary to the Risk Oversight Committee.
The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
1. To propose to the Board a framework and policies for risk governance and overall risk management,
including major risks such as credit risks, market risks, liquidity risks, operational risks, strategic and
reputational risks, etc.
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1.1 To advise the Board on appropriate risk related policies, appetite, tolerance and strategy for the Bank
and its business units including authority or the delegation of authority to approve credit.
1.2 To recommend the risk and concentration levels for approval by the Board, in alignment with the Board’s
risk appetite.
1.3 To approve significant policies and framework that govern the management of risks, including risk
governance matters, and which have been delegated to ROC by the Board.
1.4 Ensure and regularly review appropriate Technology, Information and cyber risk governance, policy, and
appetite that meet international standards
1.5 Regularly monitor Technology, Information and cyber risk governance, policy, and appetite that meet
international standard.
1.6 Regular monitor Technology, Information and cyber risk against appetite as a part of overall risk
oversight
2. To formulate strategies that are consistent with the risk management policy and which can assess, monitor,
and ensure that the financial institution’s risks are at appropriate levels.
2.1 To approve the supplemental risk limits as defined in the relevant policies and frameworks.
2.2 To review the adequacy of the Bank’s risk management policy and systems, and the effectiveness of
policy and systems implementation in terms of identifying, measuring, aggregating, controlling and
reporting these risks by top management and Chief Risk Officer.
2.3 To review and monitor all risks and risk management practices, including internal control and
compliance processes and systems.
3. To approve the appointment, review of committee structure and composition, and roles and duties of the
management – level risk management committees.
4. To report the risk management performance and all risk management matters and measures to the

Board, and to consult and exchange views with the Audit Committee in order to assess if the risk
management policies and strategies cover all existing and new types of risk facing the financial
institution and if the implementation of such policies and strategies are effective and efficient.
5. To advise on the development and maintenance of a supportive culture, in relation to the management of
risk, appropriately embedded through procedures, training and leadership actions so that all employees are
alert to the wider impact of their actions on the Bank and its business units.
6. To advise on the alignment of compensation structures in relation to the management of risk, within the
Board’s risk appetite.
7. Appointment, transfer, removal of CRO and performance appraisal of CRO’s performance shall be concurred
by Risk Oversight Committee and acknowledge CRO’s KPIs.
8. To perform other duties as delegated by the Board of Directors or regulatory requirements.
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(5) Credit Committee
As of December 31, 2020, the Credit Committee composed of 4 members. The Credit Committee’s meeting is usually
held twice a month or as deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman of the Credit Committee.
Name
Position
Note
1. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
Chairman
Non-Executive Director
2. Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
Committee Member Non-Executive Director
3. Mr. Piti Tantakasem
Committee Member Executive Director
(Chief Executive Officer)
4. Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel
Committee Member Management (Chief Risk Officer)
Mr. Ekanat Kieatinapasin is Secretary to the Credit Committee.
The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
1. To approve followings:
1.1 Credits
1.2 Credit restructuring
1.3 NPL write-off
1.4 NPA acquisition, NPA sales and NPA write-off which exceed the management’s approval authority, and are
NOT related parties or group limits NOT exceeding the Single Lending Limit (SLL).
2. To review specific credit proposals for related parties or in which group limits exceed the SLL prior to submission
to the Board for approval.
3. To review the credit decisions of the most senior executive credit committees.
4. To approve credit and related risks for transactional investments or underwriting commitments which exceed the
management’s approval authority.
5. To perform other duties as delegated by the Board of Directors or regulatory requirements.
(6) IT Oversight Committee
As of December 31, 2020 the IT Oversight Committee comprised of 6 members, the meeting of this
Committee is scheduled 6 times per year or as deemed necessary and instructed by the Chairman of the IT Oversight
Committee.
Note
Name
Position
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
Ms. Chananyarak Phetcharat
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel
Mr. Piti Tantakasem

Chairman
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member
Committee Member

Independent Director
Independent Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Executive Director (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sutthikan Rungsrithong is Secretary to IT Oversight Committee.
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The scope of responsibilities is as follows:
1. Oversight IT Strategy, IT Management and IT Operations by
• Review IT strategy at least annually to ensure:
- The alignment of IT strategy and Bank’s strategic direction
- IT infrastructure is flexible, reliable, and scalable to support the business changes including new
technology adoptions
- The readiness or maturity level of Information Technology including capabilities to manage and
mitigate IT and cybersecurity risks
• Monitor the progress of strategic and high-risk IT-related projects
2. Oversight IT Risk Management of both normal and crisis situation by
•
•
•

Review IT Risk Management Policy at least annually
Oversight operating model and organization structure according to three lines of defense principle
Monitor risk levels, effectiveness of IT risk management and significant factors/ issues as well as
rectification actions

3. Oversight IT investment and expenditures to ensure the alignment with Bank’s strategy
4. Oversight development programs for staffs to have sufficient knowledge on Information Technology and IT
Risk awareness
5. Perform other duties as regulatory requirements
(7) Other committees of Management Level
The Board or the Board Committees will appoint committees in management level for supporting the Board or
Board Committee to perform duty under scope and responsibility approved by the Board or Board Committee.
Committees in executive level which there are Chief Executive Officer and Chiefs as chairman are as follows:
1. Chief Executive Committee (CEC)
The CEC is to operate long term strategy of the Bank and conduct regular review of progress in achieving its
goals. To propose the Annual Business Plan, Annual Budget, Capital Budget, Headcount Plan to the Board for
consideration and approval and control headcount against headcount plan, to consider and approve investment,
main projects of the Bank, branding, advertising, corporate communication, and measures to deal with crisis
situations. In addition, the CEC is to consider strategic plan of subsidiaries and review their performance.
2. Risk Policy Committee (RPC)
The RPC is to assess the integrity and adequacy of the credit management of the Bank, to review and endorse
or approve the Bank’s credit risk policies, framework, guidelines, credit underwriting guidelines and standards, and
credit criteria of products within the delegated authority.
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3. Bank Non – Financial Risk Committee (BNFRC)
Non-Financial Risk Committee (NFRC) is to identify, measure and monitor the Operational, Compliance and
Legal risks of the Business Units/ Support Units with appropriate quality of coverage (granularity) and to ensure that
appropriate management action is taken by the responsible (business) managers at the appropriate level of
granularity.
4. Credit Underwriting Committee (CUC)
The CUC is to consider, recommend, and approve for all matters relating to credit risk and issuer risk and
approve credit within delegated authority, to endorses credit that exceed approval authority to the Credit Committee
for consideration. In addition, the CUC is able to sub-delegation and power to sign to related person.
5. Credit Restructuring Committee (CRC)
The CRC is to approve credit restructuring in management level, to consider and approve for all matters
relating to credit risk, investment risk, The CRC is to review status and plan for all matters relating to credit
restructuring, nursing period and write off.
6. Asset and Liability Management Committee (ALCO)
The ALCO is to define and decide on the formulation and execution of asset and liability management policies
and to endorse/approve for all matters relating to the asset and liability management of the Bank. In addition, The
ALCO is to define the policies regarding liquidity risk management, market risk management, balance sheet
management, and market risk economic capital management.
7. Project Investment Committee, Digital Strategy Committee
The Committee entitled to endorse IT Strategic Plan and Blueprint to ensure proper alignment with corporate
plan, to be informed and updated of the Bank and Market crucial banking technology.
8. Human Resource Committee (HRC)
The HRC is to consider and approve the framework governing the Bank’s human resources management
policy, compensation standards, rules and regulations, succession plan, performance review, salary adjustment,
bonus and incentive award of employees at below Group Head. The HRC is to approve the governance structure of
job grading and function title or any issues under HR transformation and also to approve the Bank’s human resource
development structure and corporate culture.
9. The Disciplinary Action Committee (DAC)
The DAC entitled to decide the disciplinary penalty for guilty employees and the indemnification for the Bank.
10. Customer Management Committee (CMC)
The CMC is in charge of customer experience and ensure that customers’ complaints are properly managed.
9.3 Recruitment of directors and top executive officers
For recruitment of directors, the Bank considers Board diversity including professional skills, expertise,
experiences, and gender. The Bank required qualification of directors align with the Bank’s strategy which prepare in
form of skill matrix. In some case, the Bank recruit directors form considering of Director Pool data base.
The Bank has the guideline in nominate the director as following:
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Independent director and director nomination criteria
1) Recruitment of Independent Director
The Bank has been aware that independent directors take a vital role in safeguarding the interests of the Bank
and the minor shareholders. To enhance independence of the Board of Directors and manage conflicts of interest
pursuant to the regulatory criteria and the corporate governance principles, the Board has formulated criteria for
nomination of independent directors from professionals of diversified fields with proper qualifications and experience
who can deliver independent opinions and have fairness in the performance of duty by applying skill matrix as the
tools for consideration. The Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee shall make preliminary
consideration of the nomination of independent directors before submission to the Board meeting or the
shareholders’ meeting (as the case may be) for appointment thereof. The basic qualifications of an independent
director shall be defined by the Bank which more stringent than that under the criteria set by the Capital Market
Supervisory Board.
Board of Director establish the independent director qualification that indicate the term of independent
director not longer than 9 years consecutively. Any independent director who has their term for 9 years, could be reelect for another term of independent director after their resignation for 2 years.
Qualification of Independent Directors
1. Not hold shares in excess of 0.5 percent of total voting shares of the Bank, or the Bank’s parent company,
subsidiary, associated company, major shareholder, or any person with controlling power over the Bank, whilst the
number of shares held by any related person of that independent director must also be counted.
2. Not be and have not been a director participating in management role, an employee, an officer, an advisor
who receives regular salary, or a person having controlling power over the Bank, the Bank’s parent company,
subsidiary, associated company, subsidiary at the same level, or major shareholder, unless such independent
director has not been a person referred to above for at least two years prior to the date of his/her appointment.
3. Not be a person who having relationship either through bloodline or legal registration as the father, mother,
spouse, sibling and child, as well as the spouse of a child of other directors, executives, major shareholders, a
person having controlling power, or a person to be nominated as the director and executive or that who has
controlling power over the Bank or its subsidiary.
4. Have no or have had no any business relationship with the Bank or its parent company, subsidiary,
associated company, major shareholder, or person having controlling power over the Bank, in a manner that may
prevent his/her due and independent use of discretion. The independent director shall not be and have not been a
shareholder in material respect or a person who has controlling power over the person with business relationship with
the Bank, its parent company, subsidiary, associated company, major shareholder, or a person having controlling
power over the Bank, unless such independent director has not been a person referred to above for at least two
years prior to the date of his/her appointment.
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Business relationship in the above paragraph shall cover any ordinary course of business or trade for business
engagement purpose, property rent, transaction relevant to asset or service, giving or receiving financial assistance
in form of loan or guarantee, offering assets as collateral, and any other similar conduct, which causes the Bank or its
counterparty to be liable for debt settlement to another party in an amount equivalent to 3 percent or more of the net
tangible assets of the Bank or twenty million baht or more, whichever is lower. The calculation of the said debt is
accordance with the calculation of a connected transaction prescribed in the Capital Market Supervisory Board’s
notification regarding criteria on connected transactions mutatis mutandis. However, consideration of the said debt
shall include the debt incurred during the one-year period prior to the date on which such business relationship takes
place.
5. Not be and have not been an auditor of the Bank, its parent company, subsidiary, associated company,
major shareholder, or a person having controlling power. The independent director shall not be and have not been a
shareholder in material respect, a person having controlling power, a partner of an auditing firm for which the auditor
of the Bank, or that of its parent company, subsidiary, major shareholder, or a person with controlling power over the
Bank has been working, unless such independent director has not been a person referred to above for at least two
years prior to the date of his/her appointment.
6. Not be and have not been a professional advisor, including legal or financial advisor, who obtains fee more
than two million baht a year from the Bank, its parent company, subsidiary, associated company, major shareholder,
or a person having controlling power. The independent director shall not be and have not been a shareholder in
material respect, a person with controlling power, or a partner of such professional service provider, unless the
independent director has not been a person referred to above for at least two years prior to the date of his/her
appointment.
7. Not be a director who has been appointed as a representative of the Bank’s director, the major shareholder,
or the shareholder related to the Bank’s major shareholder.
8. Not engage in the business of the same nature as or competing with that of the Bank or its subsidiary. The
independent director shall not be a partner in material respect in a partnership, or director participating in
management role, an employee, officer, or advisor obtaining regular salary, or a shareholder holding more than one
percent of total voting shares of any other company which engages in the business of the same nature as or
competing with that of the Bank or its subsidiary.
9. Not maintain in the independent director position longer than 9 years, unless they have been discharged from
such positions or status for no less than 2 years prior to the day the appointment
10. Not have any characteristics that prevent the director from giving independent opinions on the Bank’s
operations.
In this regard, any revision/amendment/relaxation of the criteria or qualifications of the independent directors
to be announced later on by the Capital Market Supervisory Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Stock Exchange of Thailand or the Bank of Thailand shall be applied accordingly.
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2) Recruitment of Non-Executive Directors
The Board of Directors has put in place a definite and transparent director nomination policy and process. the
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for the selection, screening, and
nomination of qualified persons to the Board of Directors for consideration before proposing to the shareholders’
meeting for further election as directors of the Bank. Apart from the qualifications prescribed in the Bank’s Articles of
Association and the appropriate personal qualifications, the persons nominated must be competent, knowledgeable
and experienced in bank and relevant business operations with the possession of leadership skills, visionary and
strategic ideas that can lead the Bank to a strong and long-term sustainable growth and must be able to dedicate
their time for the optimum benefits of the Bank.
In case of vacancy due to the resignation of a director before finishing the term, the Board of Directors shall
appoint a person to fill the vacant position through the nomination made by the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee. The said new director shall hold office only for the remaining term of office of the
director whom he/she has replaced, unless remaining duration of director’s term of office is less than two months.
The shareholders are allowed to vote for the election of directors by individual This voting use the majority
votes of the shareholders who attend the meeting and have voting rights.
3) Appointment of member of the Board Committees
For appointment of board committees’ members, the Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance
Committee shall consider and endorse the nominees before submission for approval and appointment by the Board
of Directors. The selection is based on the expertise specifically required for each particular board committee.
Members of the board committees shall have professional skills, specific experience, and free from conflict of
interest. In addition, each committee shall have the composition and qualifications as prescribed by the regulatory
criteria as well as Board Skills Matrix.
4) Recruitment of Executive
In the appointment process of the executive at “Head of” level and above, the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for consideration to acquire and screen the qualified persons from
both internal and external sources as defined by the Bank’s rules and regulations. Moreover, criminal and NCB
checked are required. Then the nominated persons will be proposed to the Board of Directors for approval as well
as other required functions to comply with laws and regulations of government authorities related to financial service
business.
Regarding the appointment process of the executive at “Team Head” level and below, the executive shall
consider, select and appoint qualified persons as deemed appropriate.
The succession plan for key positions has been established and reviewed annually. In this regard, the
recruitment process to fill the position of the executive who will soon complete a specific term shall be made by the
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee duly in advance.
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Performance Appraisal of the Chief Executive Officer
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee has been assigned to appraise the CEO’s
performance as well as year-end 2020 in area of profitability, cost efficiency, ability to generate future income, risk
management, digital transformation, people’s culture, and sustainability.
9.4 Subsidiaries Supervision
The Bank has determine the management and control structure of the subsidiaries in aspect of generating
strategic plan and nominating representative directors to jointly manage the subsidiaries and reorganize to take
responsibility of the subsidiaries as appropriate.
9.4.1 Mechanism for Supervision
The Bank has mechanism to supervise subsidiaries for controlling the operation of subsidiaries in which to
keep benefit covering investment, The Board of Directors has determined “Consolidated Supervision Policy”, which
includes policies as follows
1. Accounting Policy
To determine the accounting and financial report policy for the Bank to collect related information from the
subsidiaries for generating consolidated financial report correctly, in the same direction and in compliance with the
Bank of Thailand’s rule and regulation and analyzing performance and financial status of the subsidiaries correctly
and promptly for controlling and following.
2. Corporate Governance Policy and Policy on Confidential & Insider Information and Conflicts of Interest
Corporate Governance Policy determine the policy for the subsidiaries to conduct under business ethic and
the morality and the best practices are concerning in good corporate governance and best practices which should
be in line with Good Corporate Governance Policy.
Policy on Confidential & Inside Information and Conflicts of Interest is applied both the bank and the
subsidiary companies to prevent conflict of interest issue and misusing the internal information and aligned with the
bank’s policy.
3. Anti-Corruption Policy
Anti-Corruption Policy determine the policy for the subsidiaries to conduct in the same manner of the Bank,
as well as applying the relevant laws on such matter. This is to support the bank and subsidiaries’ intention in anticorruption, anti-bribery dealing with either government or private sector.
4. Risk Management Policy
To determine the risk management policy of the subsidiaries covering various aspects of risk relating to
companies’ performance and impacting the stability of the Group Companies including market risk management,
liquidity risk management, operational risk management, credit risk management, market conduct risk management,
and recovery plan.
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5. Compliance Policy
To determine the policy for the subsidiaries to conduct under Compliance Policy and relevant Regulatory
Policy such as Regulatory Compliance, Bank of Thailand’s Regulatory, Compliance and Know your Customer, AntiMoney Laundering Act, and Counter Terrorism Financing Act.
6. Corporate Communication Policy
To determine the policy for the subsidiaries to conduct in the same way and promote Bank image in aspect of
name and brand and disclose information of the subsidiaries.
7. Audit Policy
To determine the roles of Internal Audit (AUD) and the Audit Committee’s oversight role in conjunction with the
roles of the Bank management and external auditor on auditing, controlling and monitoring the Group Companies.
The ultimate objective is to ensure sound control culture and good governance throughout the Financial Business
Group.
9.4.2 Representative Director Appointment
The objective is to manage and control the subsidiaries carefully under consolidated supervision policy, the
Bank sets guideline of representative director appointment as follows:
1. The Bank nominates directors by proportion of the Bank’s shareholding.
2. Chairman of the Board must be appointed by the Bank’s Board of Directors.
3. Managing Director or Chief Executive Officer’s nomination must be endorsed by the Bank’s Board of
Directors. (The nomination of Managing Director of all companies in Solo Consolidation Group must be
approved by the Bank of Thailand).
4. Chief supervising the subsidiaries companies proposes the Bank’s executives as representative directors
by:
4.1 Propose to the Board of Directors (BoD) the appointment of new representative directors through Chief
Executive Committee (CEC), and Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee
(NRCC) respectively or other guidelines that will be set up by the Board of Directors in the future.
4.2 Review of existing representatives, propose to NRCC for approval with CEC endorsement and BoD
acknowledgment.
5. The Bank may consider appointing outside expert to be a director as appropriate.
6. Representatives core qualifications:
• The person with no conflict of interest with the company business (declared in CG 001-01 (1) form)
•

The person with no prohibited characters (referred to BOT requirements)

•

The person who in relevant function(s) or the company business is in areas of expert

•

The person who complied with specific authority requirement (if any) i.e. SEC and OIC
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7. The person who is appointed to be a representative director could be appointed as managing director or
authorized director or others. However, such person must not be appointed in aforementioned positions in
more than 3 business groups.
8. Bank’s representative director has no conflict of interest with the Company to which the Bank will send the
representative director.
9.4.3 Duty of Representative Directors
1. All representative directors shall not receive any remuneration in terms of cash and non-cash for being
representative directors.
2. Attend all Group Companies’ Board meetings to determine the Group Companies’ Policies and Strategies to
align with the Bank, which a lead director will work with
2.1 Strategy and Transformation to ensure timely communication of direction and strategy from the
Bank to representative Directors regarding business matters.
2.2 Related Chief/BU regarding oversight in TMB risk management area shall regularly report the
summary of risk issues of the group companies to ROC of the bank every 6 months or as deem
appropriate.
3. Supervise the operation of the subsidiaries to be compliance with Bank’s policies, plans, rule and regulation
efficiently and effectively, as well as ensure no Conflict of Interest issue.
4. Propose policy, strategy, performance and opinion to the Bank.
5. Report performance of the subsidiaries or any material change that may have an impact on the Bank such
as capital increase/decrease of the subsidiaries, business sale and purchase/merging, change in financial
status, change in business group or change in rules/regulatory bodies/specific laws of each business.
6. Monitor and protect all benefits of the Bank.
7. Other duty as specified by the Bank.
9.4.4 Transactions that requires approval by the Bank before Voting in the subsidiaries’ Board Meetings
1. Policy and strategy that will significantly impact on going business operation or nature of business.
2. Increase or decrease of registered capital.
3. Approvals of dividend payout.
4. Investment or divestiture of other business which subsidiary holds more than 10% of paid-up capital.
5. Selling of core asset.
6. Entering into business contract/agreement that is worth more than 15% of net tangible asset (NTA).
7. Liquidation/ Debt Moratorium /Bankruptcy.
8. Transactions related to the Bank and connected persons to the company following Compliance Policy.
9. Borrowing transaction over 15% of NTA and Letter of Guarantee to third party with transaction over 15% of
NTA.
10. Change of image, business format or brand.
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11. Other matters that have significant impacts on the Bank’s business and the liability for representative
directors.
9.5

Control on use of inside information
The bank has the procedure with respect to the non-compliance issue against the Financial Business Act B.E.
2551 and the related notifications according to Securities and Exchange Act B.E. 2535 (as amended) and relevant
notifications, anti-corruption and anti-bribery law when doing any activities with private or government entities, insider
trading according to Securities and Exchange Act B.E.2535 (as amended), intellectual property law.
In addition, the Bank established Policy on Confidential & Insider Information and Conflict of Interest, and
code of conduct for both executives and employee. This is to operate the bank business according to the banking
industry code of conduct and transparency as well as equal treatment of all stakeholder.
9.5.1 Policy and procedure on insider information
The Bank has issued Regulations and guidelines in written in Code of Conduct, TMB Policy on confidential &
Inside information and Conflicts of Interest including operating manual regarding Conflicts of Interest, Trading &
Investment of TMB’s Financial Instrument as operating guideline of director, executive, and employee.
Directors and executives are required to sign for acknowledgement and compliance with the practice on
reporting the change in the directors and executives securities holding to the Office of Securities and Exchange
Commission within 3 days from the date of securities holding change in response to Section 59, Securities and
Exchange Act, B.E. 2535(as amended), In addition, they are responsible for reporting such change to the Company
Secretary to record the matter and summarize the shareholding portion of the directors and executives and their
spouses and children before submission to the Board of Directors for acknowledgement monthly. The Bank also
informs them of the penalties given the failure to comply with such requirement.
The Bank is aware of the importance of monitoring the use of inside information, especially non-public
information that may impact its share price. As such, The Bank has assigned Financial Regulatory Management to
be the only unit responsible for submitting the financial statements and all financial reports to the SET and the SEC
after undergoing a correctness and completeness review by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors
respectively to make sure The Bank’s inside information is not prematurely disclosed to the public.
Guidelines to prevent inside information the Bank imposed punishment for employees’ disciplinary misconduct
regarding business code of conduct and ethics to ensure the management and the staff perform duties with
transparency and based on professional code of conduct and treat all stakeholders fairly, which is in line with the
Securities and Exchange Commission Act regarding the use of inside information. The Bank prohibited the
executives and staffs who have permanent or occasionally potential access to the Bank’s inside information to trading
securities until 24 hours after disclosure information to public. The executives and staffs shall not disclose the Bank’s
inside information to any of their family members and/or other persons even though the staffs and/or their family
members do not sell/buy the securities and/or do not gain any benefit in any form and to prevent for personal benefits
and whatsoever or the others’ benefits. Moreover, if there is any event that may have an effect to The Bank’s
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securities price. Bank will set the additional period to prohibit relevant covered person regarding to trading The Bank
securities.
Compliance is responsible for supporting Management with the implementation, enforcement and updating of
the aforementioned policy and procedure and also provides for appropriate monitoring mechanism to ensure
compliance with the policy, operations procedure as well as relevant laws and regulations.
9.5.2 Penalty measures
The Bank’s punishment for the violating of Financial Institution Business Act, using of inside information
accords with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Act, violating of Non-Violation Against Intellectual
Property Rights or Copyrights, Anti-Corruption, Anti-bribery for the Bank’s benefit or Anti-bribery in business dealing
with government and private organization and all other relevant rules and regulations of the authorities. It has also
imposed punishment for employees’ disciplinary misconduct regarding business code of conduct and ethics to
ensure the management and the staff perform duties with transparency and based on professional code of conduct
and treat all stakeholders fairly.
9.6

Auditor’s remuneration
9.6.1 Audit fees
The Bank and its subsidiaries paid audit fees to:
- The Bank and its subsidiaries’ auditor in the previous accounting year amounting to THB 26,150,000.
- The respective audit company including individuals or entities related to the Bank’s auditor and the respective
audit company in the previous accounting year amounting to THB 421,006.
9.6.2 Non-audit fees
The Bank and its subsidiaries paid fees for non-audit services i.e. special purpose audit and engagements to
perform agreed-upon procedures to:
- No the Bank and its subsidiaries’ auditor in the previous accounting year totaling together with no future
payment due to incomplete work in the previous accounting year
- No payment to the respective audit company including individuals or entities related to the Bank’s auditor and
the respective audit company in the previous accounting year THB together with no future payment due to
incomplete work in the previous accounting year.

9.7

Other Corporate Governance Practices
The Bank continuously adheres to the Corporate Governance Policy to ensure that the Bank’s management
system is efficient, free from corruption, transparent and accountable so as to build trust and confidence among its
shareholders, investors, stakeholders, society and all related parties. Regarding the above implementation, the bank
received the corporate governance rating for the listed company from IOD as “excellent”
The Bank implemented Corporate Governance guidelines in accordance with the good corporate governance
principles of listed companies prescribed by the Principles of Good Corporate Governance for Listed Companies by
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SEC’s Corporate Governance Code for Listed Company, Criteria of Corporate Governance Report of Thai Listed
Companies - CGR by IOD, and international standard such as ASEAN Corporate Governance Scorecard (ASEAN CG
Scorecard), Sustainability Disclosure Standard (GRI standard) and Sustainability Reporting Disclosure (SDG)
In 2020, Board of director and sub-committees considered their role and responsibility to align with the
regulations and the bank environment which the significant areas of implementation consist of:
Good corporate Governance
for listed company
Board of director’s role and responsibility
Principle 1: role of Board of director as
leadership including the customer
treatment according to market conduct
Principle 2: set up the organization
objective and target for sustainability
Principle 3: efficiency Board of Director
Principle 4: nominate and develop the
executive and human resource
Principle 5: support the innovation and
conduct responsible business
Principle 6: oversee for proper risk
management and internal control
Principle 7: soundness of financial
information disclosure
Principle 8: Support on the shareholder’s
communication and participation

The bank implementation
In 2020, The Bank incorporated principle 1 – 8 into the implementation,
The additional implementation in 2020 consist of:
1.Preparation of the 2019 sustainability report separately from the 2019
annual report and notification to the shareholders in the 2020 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders
2. Establishment of the IT Oversight Committee
3. Establishment of “Market Conduct” unit to ensure fair treatment to the
customers
4. Employee remuneration in the form of share bonus for 3 years during
2020 - 2022
However, the Bank was unable to observe some of the above practices
due to the following reasons:
1. Practice guideline which limited the number of directors to 12:
The Bank’s consideration: The Bank had 14 directors. The
increased number of directors was consistent with the structure
of the board of directors in the Integration Project as approved
by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders No. 2/2019
2. Practice guideline on complete disclosure of shareholders in
detail:
The Bank’s consideration: Regarding nominee shareholders, it
was a normal practice of foreign investors to have a custodian
to look after the shares. Therefore, the Bank was unable to
disclose their information according to the aforesaid rationale.
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In 2020, the directors have attended the additional training courses and seminar as follows:
Directors
1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas

•
•
•
•

2.Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat

•
•
•

3. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas

•
•
•

4. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith

•
•
•
•

5. Mr. Teeranun Srihong

•
•
•
•

6. Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel

•
•
•

7. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn

•
•
•
•

Courses
2020 Cyber Resilience Leadership: Tone from the Top, BoT
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
Boardroom Success Through Financing and Investment, IOD
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cyber Resilience Leadership: Tone from the Top, BoT
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
Risk Management Programe for Corporate Leaders, IOD
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
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8. Mr.Yokporn Tantisawetrat

•
•
•

9.Mr. Somjate Moosirilert

•
•
•

10.Mr. Prinya Hom-anek

•
•
•

11.Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek

•
•
•

12.Ms.Chananyarak Phetcharat

•
•
•

13. Mr. Piti Tantakasem

•
•
•

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, TMB
Personal Data Protection Act, TMB
Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A High-Frequency Data Perspective,
TMB
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Corporate Social Responsibility

10.1 Policy and Direction towards Social Responsibility
The Bank places importance on good corporate governance, code of conduct for directors, code of conduct
for employees, and business operations with responsibility to all stakeholders including shareholders, employees,
customers, business partners, creditors, competitors, investors, government agencies, as well as society and
environment. This is to ensure that they are treated well, leading in turn to sustainable development of the Bank,
society, and the country’s economy.
The Bank has policy to operate business for a sustainable growth by enhancing operating efficiency,
developing product and service and empowering employees. By adhering to corporate social and environmental
responsibility, the Bank aims to create value for all stakeholders. And the Bank did not violate relevant laws including
labor laws, employment, consumers, competition.
This policy is aligned with the 8 principles of Corporate Social Responsibility’s Guideline of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand. Details are as follows:
1. Fair Trade Practice
The Bank is fully aware that it is important to operate its business fairly as stated in the corporate governance
policy regarding Role of Stakeholders. The Bank gives priority to equal treatment to all stakeholders to ensure they
fully have their rights with fairness and appropriate treatment. The Bank puts in place the system to handle
customers’ complaints and resolve their problems with prudence and fairness. Customer information shall be kept
confidential and strictly complied with the condition on the counterparty’s agreement. The Bank’s business operations
are based on fair, corruption-free and ethical competition. All employees are treated fairly and equally. Training are
provided to enhance staff’s knowledge, skills and competency. The Bank increases employees’ job opportunity by
offering internal rotation which also help improve working efficiency. The Bank determines fair compensation scheme
which is in line with industry standard. The Bank also promotes corporate governance culture within the organization.
2. Anti-Corruption
The Bank realizes that corruption compromises the stakeholders’ confidence in the Bank’s operation and that
corruption could cause legal penalties, by both civil and criminal law. The Bank provides anti-corruption policy for
directors and employees to aware of the risk and corporate governance issue also comply with the appropriate
organization’s risk management mechanism and monitors them consistently. There are disciplinary measures and
penalties for those who fail to comply with the policy. The Bank shall also provide protection and fairness to
employees who deny an act constitutes corruption or report an incident of corruption. All of these will help increase
the employees’ awareness of the anti-corruption culture and ensure that the Bank operates with full transparency.
Both director and management are encouraged to aware of the governance risk and proper risk management
culture.
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3. Human Rights
Respecting human rights is an integral part of TMB’s responsibilities. The Bank acknowledges that our business as a
financial institution can potentially impact human rights. Thus, we strictly adhere and comply with all national laws
and international standards of best practices. TMB requires relevant parties to strictly adhere to the policy and
integrate into their business the principles set out in this policy and the approach to human rights issues and
stakeholders including directors, employees, customers, business partners, communities and vulnerable and
underserved groups such as people with disabilities, indigenous peoples, etc.
4. Fair Labor Treatment
The Bank is fully aware that employees play an important role in driving the Bank’s business and bringing
positive changes to society. The Bank, therefore, selects, develops, promotes, and retains high caliber staff so that
the Bank can achieve its target efficiently and effectively. The Bank ensures appropriate and fair compensation as
well as a transparent appointing, transferring, bonus and penalties. The Bank also encourages and supports
employees to improve their knowledge and skills. Lastly, the safety of working environment is also provided.
5. Responsibility to Customers
The Bank places importance on maximum customers’ satisfaction and confidence in the Bank. It thus aims to
genuinely offer quality products that suit for the customer and also disclose the product and service clearly and
completely and excellent services to customers by focusing on their needs and benefits. Furthermore, the Bank shall
not make unfair terms and conditions, and must follow the business agreement strictly, honestly, carefully and
consistently.
In 2020, the Bank set up measures to assist the customers impacted by COVID-19 by determining ways to
assist holders of products such as credit card, cash card, auto loan, housing loan, personal loan, and SME loan.
6. Environmental
The Bank places importance on environment preservation through its credit underwriting policy, by not
supporting the businesses that could cause both direct or indirect environmental impacts. The Bank also comply with
the United Nation Global Compact (UNGC) by providing an environment-friendly work place.
7. Social Development and Community Management
TMB values the importance of community & social development in the way that align with sustainability
principles for several ways. The Bank always encourages employee to participate in community improvement
projects through FAI-FAH programs by TMB Foundation in order to enhance opportunities and to drive the social
responsibility mindset for sustainable change.
Bank also set up the measure to provide communities that were impacted by COVID-19, the Bank held the
charity to raise the fund for setting the screening unit of COVID-19, and provide donation channel via application
PUNBOON.
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8. Innovations and Distribution of Innovations
The Bank encourages employees to creatively develop and improve working process for efficient and effective
operations. This results in cost-efficiency improvement, an efficient use of resources, a faster service which leads to
an increase in customers’ satisfaction.
Materiality
Materiality Assessment Process
1. Identification
2. Prioritization
3. Validation
4. Review
Identify and examine
Assess the significance Review and approve the Regularly review the
sustainability topics that of material
material topics by Top
relevance and
have potential impacts topics based on risk
Management and Board significance of material
on TMB
assessment
of Directors
issues by engaging with
criteria, and inputs from
internal and external
relevant functions, top
stakeholders
management and
stakeholders
Material topics that are important to TMB and stakeholders in 2019-2020 consist of 12 topic as follows
1 Customer experience
2 Digital transformation
3 Data privacy and protection
4 IT System and cybersecurity
5 Corporate governance
6 Market conduct
7 Risk management
8 Talent attraction and retention
9 Financial literacy and inclusion
10 Responsible lending
11 Climate change risk and opportunity
12 Our environmental impact
For more detail of projects, see Sustainability Report from www.tmbbank.com/sustainability or scan QR Code.
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Internal and Risk Management Control

11.1 Opinion of the Board of directors on Internal Control and Risk Management
Effective Internal control is an important cornerstone of the bank’s operating model and strategic direction, both at
management and operational levels. The Board of Directors (through the Audit Committee, Risk Oversight
Committee, and Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee), Credit Committee, and IT
Oversight Committee has been tasked with oversight of internal controls, risk management policies & processes and
good corporate governance.
Internal Audit carries out reviews over the Bank’s overall operations, related and connected transactions and reports
findings to the Audit Committee and the Audit Committee reports to the Board of Directors accordingly. The result of
audit report is also a tool for Management to develop process and improve internal controls as deemed appropriate.
The Board of Directors meeting no. 2/2021 held on 24 February 2021, attended by members represented in the Audit
Committee, has reviewed the report on the Bank’s internal control assessment proposed by Chief Audit Officer.
Internal auditors conducted the assessment based on the Internal Control Core Components; (1) Control Environment
(2) Risk Assessment (3) Control Activities (4) Information and Communication (5) Monitoring Activities.
The Board of Directors has acknowledged status of Bank’s internal control and risk management which are generally
at appropriate level by which continuous improvement and monitoring are required in order to cope with changing
business risk environment which is more volatile, uncertain, complex and ambiguous including risk factor from
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. In addition, the Board of Directors has monitored development of internal control
improvement by management appropriately; which Audit Committee has recommended management and monitored
actions in addressing identified deficiencies from the audit with reporting progress to the Audit committee and the
Board of Directors on a regular basis.
11.2 Statement of the Audit Committee
The Audit Committee of TMB Bank Public Company Limited (the “Bank”) consisted of three independent directors,
who were not the bank’s executives or employees of any kind, carried out its responsibilities. The Audit Committee
was responsible for carrying out the duties as assigned by bank’s Board of Directors in line with the regulations
imposed by the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”), notifications of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
(“SET”) and the Bank of Thailand (“BOT”) as stated in the Audit Committee charter stipulated by the Board of
Directors
In 2020, the Audit Committee convened 13 meetings in total with the management, top level executives of the related
business units and auditors to approve endorse acknowledge and consider numerous matters as of the following:
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•

Financial Statement
Reviewed the quarterly, year-end and consolidated financial statements of the Bank and its subsidiaries by
consulting with the external audits and Chief Financial Officer (CFO), as well as the
auditor reporting the findings from the audit to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is of the opinion in
agreement with external auditor that the Bank’s financial reports fairly presented accurate and reliable
information in material aspects in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles. In addition,
any transactions which may cause conflict of interest were reviewed to verify they were reasonable and
appropriate, most of them being found to be in the normal course of business or supporting normal course
of business conducted on an arm’s length basis.

•

Internal Control and Internal Audit
Reviewing the Bank’s internal control system and internal audit are suitable and efficient, as well as sufficient
anti-corruption measures, inclusive of whistle-blowing processes, independent scrutiny, and protection of
the whistle-blowers to ensure that the accused are treated fairly. Consulting with the internal auditors in
planning and approving the annual audit plan, considering the adequacy and appropriateness of personnel
in the performance and independence of internal audit by monitoring and evaluating the monthly
performance and considering examination report of the BOT’s and the auditor in order to assess the
adequacy of the internal control system.

•

Regulatory Compliance
Reviewed the performance of the Bank to comply with laws and regulations, such as the SEC, SET, IOC,
AMLO and BOT and acknowledged changes of any rules or regulations that affected operation and ensured
the adjustment of operations in response to those changes.

•

Independent Auditor
Consider and make recommendations on the appointment of the auditor of the Bank by considering
qualifications, capabilities, experiences, independence and quality of previous works and the remuneration
of the auditors in line with responsibility by the Board of Directors to propose to the shareholders for an
approval of the auditors and the remuneration of the auditors.

•

Related Transactions or Conflict of Interest
Related transactions or transactions which may have conflict of interest based on the principle of
accountability, transparency and adequate disclosure to the relevant authorities, as reported from business
units before proposing to the Board of Directors.

The Audit Committee performed its duties prudently and independently, and provided straightforward comments
based on transparency and good governance. The Audit Committee is of the opinion that financial statements have
been prepared accurately with adequate information disclosure in line with the financial standard. Independent
auditor was independent to perform duties. Transactions and transactions that may have potential conflicts of
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interests are reasonable and normal business activities, including adequate disclosure. The internal control and
internal audit have been appropriate, effective, and in compliance with laws and regulations. The Bank is generally at
appropriate level by which continuous improvement and monitoring are require in order to cope with changing
business risk environment which is more volatile, uncertain, complex and ambiguous including risk factor from
outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic. The bank continually pays high attention to the internal control execution and
enforcement, providing necessary training to the staff including follow up issues, investigation, root causes and
corrective measures, imposing of disciplinary action to assure internal control effectiveness. Moreover, Audit
Committee has emphasized the management to take remedy actions to address deficiencies identified and report
progress to the Audit Committee regularly.
11.3 Gate Keepers
11.3.1 Detail Heads of Internal Audit
The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Pitimart Saguansook to hold position of Chief Audit Officer. (see more
detail of education, work experience, and training in attachment 1).
11.3.2 Detail Heads of Internal Audit and Compliance
The Board of Directors has appointed Mr. Kittichai Singha to hold position of Head of Compliance. (see more detail of
education, work experience, and training in attachment 1).
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Related Transactions

12.1

Transactions with related parties which occurred during the year
Related party disclosures, which comprised of definitions and characteristics of relationship, pricing policy,
related parties transactions with key management and other related parties, outstanding balances with related
parties, senior management personnel compensation, other benefits payable to the senior management personnel,
were disclosed in notes to financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020.
12.2 Measures or procedures to approve the making of related transactions
In conducting its business, the Bank shall adhere to its principles, integrity, transparency and maximize its
interest by emphasizing the prevention of conflicts of interest and also to related party transactions and connected
transactions according to the regulatory requirements. To that effect, the Bank requires that its Directors and Senior
Management at Head of level and higher to disclose their relations or connections in any business with any conflicts
of interest on a quarterly basis. Moreover, the TMB Policy on Confidential & Insider Information and Conflicts of
Interest and a Procedure Manual have been issued and enforced in order to eradicate conflicts of interest.
Transactions with related parties or connected persons are carried out by the Bank on an arm’s length basis. In
addition, the Bank’s Directors and Executives who may have conflicts of interest in such transactions are neither
allowed to participate in the approval thereof, nor to vote in a meeting.
The Bank has no policy to grant any direct loan to Directors or Senior Management. Loans provided to or
investments in any entity in which the Bank, its Directors or Senior Management have conflict of interests are subject
to the consideration of the project’s viability, operational performance or feasibility analysis with terms, conditions and
prices to be the same as those approved for other clients in general. The loan or investment amount must be
controlled so that it will not exceed an appropriate limit and is subject to unanimous approval of TMB’ s Board of
Directors. The concerned Directors or Executives shall not participate in the approval of such transaction and the
approval must be consistent with the regulations of related authorities.
The Bank has assigned the Audit Committee to prevent and mitigate the conflicts of interest. Those
transactions that have potential conflicts of interest that exceed the set threshold values or limits must be submitted to
the Audit Committee for validation and/or approval prior to execution. Related and/or connected transactions will be
disclosed on a complete and transparent basis according to the criteria of the relevant regulators.
For future related party transactions, the Bank shall continue to adhere to its principles to maximize the interest
of the Bank and our shareholders, whereby at a minimum, pricing and terms and conditions will be on arm’s length
basis in accordance with the above mentioned Policy and Operational Guidelines. Also, the Policy and the
Operational Manual will be updated to be in line with the changes of the regulatory requirements and internal criteria.
12.3 Persons who may have conflicts of interest to hold more than a 5% of stake in subsidiary company or
associated company instead of direct shareholding by the Bank
The Bank has not allowed any person who may have a conflicts of interest to hold more than a 5% of stake in
subsidiary company or associated company on its behalf.
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Part 3: Financial Position and Operational Performance
13.

Key Financial Information

Investors are recommended to read the Management discussion and analysis together with the Bank’s financial
statements which contain a summary of the key accounting policy. In certain cases, the Management has to exercise
subjective judgments and estimates on the projected assumption of any such business items for the preparation of the
Bank’s financial statements in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.
13.1

Summary of financial statements
The financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2018-2020 were audited by Mr. Chanchai
Sakulkoedsin, CPA No. 6827, of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited.
13.2

Summary of audit report
Summary of audit report for the years ended December 31, 2018-2020

Mr. Chanchai Sakulkoedsin of KPMG Phoomchai Audit Limited audited the consolidated and bank only financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2018-2020 in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing and expressed
an unqualified opinion.
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13.3 Summary of consolidated financial statements over the past three years
Consolidated statements of financial position
Unit: THB million
Assets

2020

Assets
Cash
21,943
Interbank and money market items, net
211,185
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss
3,788
Derivative assets
11,959
Investments, net
134,351
Investments in subsidiaries and associate, net
8,599
Loans to customers
1,392,925
Add accrued interest receivables and undue interest
income
8,533
Less allowance for expected credit loss
(52,978)
Less allowance for doubtful accounts & revaluation
allowance for debt restructuring
Total loans to customers and accrued interest
receivables, net
1,348,480
Properties for sale, net
6,037
Premises and equipment, net
24,039
Goodwill and other intangible assets, net
22,546
Deferred tax assets
1,980
Other assets, net
13,425
Total assets
1,808,332
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As % of
total
Assets
1.2
11.7

As at December 31,
2019
As % of
total
assets

2018

As % of
total
assets

23,853
236,311

1.3
12.7

15,234
113,522

1.7
12.7

0.2
0.7
10,399
7.5 166,265
0.5
8,953
77.0 1,392,225

0.6
8.9
0.5
74.9

7,917
73,477
4,577
685,707

1.0
8.2
0.5
77.0

0.5
(2.9)

1,882
-

0.1
-

1,308
-

0.1
-

-

(45,477)

(2.5)

(32,975)

(3.7)

74.6 1,348,630
0.3
4,810
1.3
23,642
1.2
22,363
0.1
1,496
0.7
11,468
100.0 1,858,190

72.5
0.3
1.3
1.2
0.1
0.6
100.0

654,040
2,614
11,876
2,592
401
5,463
891,713

73.4
0.3
1.3
0.3
0.6
100.0

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of financial position (continued)

Liabilities and equity

2020

Liabilities
Deposits
1,373,408
Interbank and money market items
75,909
Liabilities payable on demand
3,895
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
432
Derivative liabilities
9,268
Debts issued and borrowings
88,965
Provisions for employee benefits
4,366
Provisions for other liabilities
2,820
Deferred tax liabilities
3,500
Deferred revenue
20,885
Other liabilities
20,134
Total liabilities
1,603,582
Equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
106,223,552,373 ordinary shares of Baht 0.95 each
100,912
(31 December 2018: 44,108,738,479 ordinary shares)
Issued and paid-up share capital
96,409,416,880 ordinary shares of Baht 0.95 each
91,589
(31 December 2019: 96,359,354,380 ordinary shares
and 31 December 2018: 43,851,893,110 ordinary
shares)
Premium on share capital
43,322
Other reserves
5,798
Retained earnings
Appropriated - legal reserve
10,091
Unappropriated
53,913
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank
204,713
Non-controlling interest
37
Total equity
204,750
Total liabilities and equity
1,808,332
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(Unit: THB million except percentages)
As at December 31,
As % of
2019
As % of 2018 As % of total
total
total
assets
assets
assets
76.0 1,398,112
4.2
86,626
0.2
3,382

75.2 649,568
4.7 64,267
0.2
3,505

72.9
7.2
0.4

418
0.5
9,719
4.9 108,835
0.2
5,150
0.2
1,855
0.2
4,730
1.2
18,186
1.1
26,366
88.7 1,663,379

396
0.5
7,328
5.9 35,124
0.3
1,221
0.1
630
0.3
1.0 17,594
1.4 13,301
89.6 792,934

0.8
4.0
0.1
0.1
2.0
1.5
89.0

5.6

100,912

5.4

41,903

4.7

5.1

91,541

4.9

41,659

4.7

2.4
0.3

43,217
6,042

2.3
0.3

404
4,811

0.5

0.2
3,000
2.7 48,905
10.4 98,779
10.4 98,779
100.0 891,713

0.3
5.5
11.0
11.0
100.0

0.6
3,360
2.9
50,617
11.3 194,777
34
11.3 194,811
100.0 1,858,190
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

Interest income
Interest expenses
Net interest income
Fees and service income
Fees and service expenses
Net fees and service income
Gains on trading and foreign exchange transactions, net
Losses on financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss, net
Gains on financial instruments measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Gains on investments, net
Share of profit from investment using equity method
Other operating income
Total operating income
Other operating expenses
Employee expenses
Directors' remuneration
Premises and equipment expenses
Taxes and duties
Others
Total other operating expenses
Profit from operations before expected credit loss,
impairment loss on loans and debt securities
and income tax
Impairment loss on loans and debt securities
Expected credit loss
Profit from operations before income tax
Income tax
Profit for the year

Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
2020 As % of 2019 As % of 2018 As % of
total
total
total
income
income
income
72,320
78.1 39,837
71.1 35,128
56.6
18,515
20.0 12,972
23.2 10,631
17.1
53,805
58.1 26,865
47.9 24,497
39.5
15,921
17.2 11,343
20.2 12,764
20.6
5,346
5.8
3,245
5.7
3,427
5.5
10,575
11.4
8,098
14.5
9,337
15.1
1,528
2.7
1,529
2.4
-

-

(22)

-

(11)

-

1,726
678
363
1,644
68,791

1.9
0.7
0.4
1.7
74.2

1,956
324
1,072
39,821

3.5
0.6
1.9
71.1

11,963
64
663
48,042

19.2
0.1
1.1
77.4

16,536
66
6,170
1,799
7,051
31,622

17.8
0.1
6.7
1.9
7.6
34.1

9,629
48
3,597
1,358
6,042
20,674

17.2
0.1
6.4
2.4
10.8
36.9

8,198
44
3,431
1,264
4,538
17,475

13.2
0.1
5.5
2.1
7.3
28.2

37,169
24,831
12,338
2,223
10,115

40.1
26.8
13.3
2.4
10.9

19,147
10,337
8,810
1,588
7,222

34.2
18.5
15.7
2.8
12.9

30,567
16,100
14,467
2,866
11,601

49.2
25.9
23.3
4.6
18.7
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (continued)
Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
As % of 2019 As % of 2018 As % of
total
total
total
income
income
income

2020
Other comprehensive income
Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Gains (losses) on remeasuring available-for-sale
investments
Gains on investments in debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income
Losses on cash flow hedges
Losses arising from translating the financial statements of
foreign operations
Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss
Change in revaluation surplus on assets
Losses on investments in equity instruments designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income
Actuarial gains (losses) on post-employment benefit plan
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Total other comprehensive income for the year, net of
income tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

423

0.7

(80)

(0.1)

114
(21)

0.1
-

-

-

-

-

(21)

-

(41)

(0.1)

(10)

-

(14)
58

0.1

(76)
306

(0.1)
0.5

18
(72)

(0.1)

(179)

(0.2)

1,338

2.4

(48)

(0.1)

(187)
680

(0.2)
0.7

(112)

(0.2)

79

0.1

(63)
251

(0.1)
0.2

(245)
981

(0.4)
1.8

(6)
25

-

309
10,424

0.3
11.2

1,287
8,509

2.3
15.2

(47)
11,554

(0.1)
18.6
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive income (continued)

2020

Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
As % of 2019 As % of 2018 As % of
total
total
total
income
income
income

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest
Profit for the year

10,112
3
10,115

10.9
10.9

7,222
7,222

12.9
12.9

11,601
11,601

18.7
18.7

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest
Total comprehensive income for the year

10,421
3
10,424

11.2
11.2

8,509
8,509

15.2
15.2

11,554
11,554

18.6
18.6

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share (in Baht)

0.1049

0.1485

0.2646

Diluted earnings per share (in Baht)

0.1047

0.1485

0.2646
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of cash flows
Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
Cash flows from operating activities
Profits from operations before income tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit from operations before income tax
to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortisation
Impairment loss on loans and debt securities
Expected credit loss
Impairment loss on premises and equipment (reversal of)
Impairment loss on properties for sale and other assets
Reversal of impairment loss on intangible assets
Provisions for liabilities
Impairment losses on investment
Gains on revaluation of investments measured at FVTPL
Losses (gains) on revaluation of investments
Losses on disposal of intangible assets
Losses (gains) on disposal of premises and equipment
Gains on disposal of investments
Profit on the loss of control of a subsidiary
Unrealised losses on remeasurement of financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss
Unrealised gains on exchange rate
Expenses in relation to share-based payments
Share of profit from investments accounted for using the equity method
Deferred revenue
Net interest income
Dividend income
Interest received
Interest paid
Income tax paid
Profits from operations before changes in operating assets and liabilities
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12,338

8,810

14,467

4,311
24,831
23
4
(30)
353
(29)
17
19
(678)
-

1,730
10,337
(68)
579
661
(5)
14
(80)
(1,956)
-

1,425
16,100
10
124
157
1
2
(17)
(113)
(11,851)

(289)
70
(363)
(2,831)
(53,805)
(84)
65,775
(19,955)
(8,341)
21,336

22
(289)
(324)
(1,940)
(26,865)
(261)
38,639
(11,078)
(2,792)
15,134

11
(545)
1
(64)
(1,310)
(24,497)
(19)
33,593
(9,339)
(1,288)
16,848
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of cash flows (continued)
Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
Decrease (increase) in operating assets
Interbank and money market items
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Trading investments
Loans to customers
Properties for sale
Other assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities
Deposits
Interbank and money market items
Liabilities payable on demand
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
Provisions for liabilities
Other accrued expenses
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
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25,540
3,505
(23,733)
4,699
1,549

42,464
(3,999)
(9,525)
778
(534)

(5,032)
(674)
(50,469)
(209)
293

(24,659)
(10,717)
513
12
(2,728)
109
1,962
(2,612)

5,193
(26,659)
(1,857)
(1)
(1,746)
(808)
1,069
19,509

38,073
3,917
(160)
(297)
(31)
(2,094)
165
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Consolidated statements of cash flows (continued)
Unit: THB million
For the year ended December 31,
2020
2019
2018
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received
Dividend received
Purchase of investments measured at FVOCI
Proceeds from investments measured at FVOCI
Purchase of available-for-sale investments
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investments
Purchase of held to maturity debt securities
Proceeds from redemption of matured held to maturity debt securities
Purchase of general investments
Proceeds from sales of general investments
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries
Proceeds from reduction and sales of investment in a subsidiary
Purchase of premises and equipment
Purchase of intangible assets
Proceeds from disposals of premises and equipment
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Repayments of long-term borrowings
Interest paid on long-term debts issued and borrowings
Cash receipts on debenture issued
Cash paid for redemption of debenture
Increase in issued and fully paid-up - ordinary shares
Expenses in relation to issuance of ordinary shares to employees
Dividend paid to equity holders of the Bank
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Change in translation adjustments of foreign operations
Net decrease in cash
Cash at 1 January / 4 December for a subsidiary acquisition through
business combination
Cash at 31 December
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2,048
801
(160,923)
186,172
(859)
(1,877)
(1,804)
1,917
25,475

1,229
405
(78,465)
111,714
(18,617)
7,716
(34)
79
(167,070)
(1,250)
(1,171)
207
(145,257)

1,373
19
(80,860)
76,805
(12,900)
5,286
102
11,438
(1,068)
(1,024)
141
(688)

13
(10)
(2,324)
14,945
(36,560)
152
(968)
(24,752)
(21)
(1,910)

20
(14)
(1,850)
59,661
(19,622)
92,549
(5,207)
125,537
(41)
(252)

(13)
(1,320)
4,868
(3,009)
(1)
(2,630)
(2,105)
(10)
(2,638)

23,853
21,943

24,105
23,853

17,872
15,234
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

13.4 Key financial ratios
For the year ended December 31,

Consolidated financial statements
Profitability ratio
Gross profit margin (%)(1)
Net profit margin (%)
Return on equity (%)
Interest income (%)(2)
Interest expenses (%)(3)
Interest margin (%)
Return on investment (%)
Efficiency ratio
Cost to income (%)(4)
Net interest income to assets (%)
Return on assets (%)
Asset turnover (time)
Financial policy ratio
Debt to equity ratio (time)
Loans to borrowings (%)
Loans to deposits (%)
Deposits to total liabilities (%)
Dividend payout ratio (%) (5)
Capital adequacy ratio (%) (6)
Asset quality ratio
Allowance for doubtful debts to total loans (%)
Bad debt to total loans (%)
NPLs coverage (%)(7)
NPLs to total loans (%)(8)
Accrued interest receivable to total loans (%)
(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)
(9)
(10)

2020

2019

2018

74.4
10.9
5.1
4.2
1.2
3.0
1.8

67.4
12.9
6.5
4.4
1.5
2.8
4.3

69.7
18.7
12.4
4.4
1.5
2.9
19.7

45.8
2.9
0.5
0.05

50.6
2.8
0.7
0.06

36.4
2.8
1.4
0.07

7.8
95.0
101.4
85.6
33.8
19.6

8.5
92.2
99.6
84.1
43.7
18.9

8.0
99.6
105.6
81.9
34.8
17.3

3.8
1.0
134
2.5
0.5

3.3
1.1
120
2.3
0.1

4.8
1.1
152
2.8
0.2

Gross profit margin = net interest income / interest income
Interest income = interest income / average earning assets(9)
Interest expenses = interest expenses / average interest-bearing liabilities(10)
% Cost to income = operating expenses (excluded extra-ordinary items and credit related items) / net interest income + net fee and service income + other operating
income(excluded extra-ordinary items and credit related items)
Dividend payout ratio = dividend paid / net profit (Bank only); Dividend payout ratio of 2020 is in accordance with the proposition to the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders in April 2021
Capital adequacy ratio used the guidelines specified in the BoT’s notification
% NPLs coverage = allowance for doubtful debts + revaluation allowance for debt restructuring / NPLs
% NPLs to total loans used the guidelines specified in the BoT’s notification
Average earning assets = average loans + average interest-bearing interbank and money market items (assets) + average investments in debt securities
Average interest-bearing liabilities = average deposits + average interest-bearing interbank and money market items (liabilities) + average debts issued and
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14.

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Management Discussion & Analysis

Economic conditions and outlook
Economic Outlook for 2021: A new round of domestic COVID-19 outbreak put pressure Thailand’s recovering path
In 2021, Thai economy is projected to continuously encounter uncertainty and challenges, particularly from the
potential new rounds of COVID-19 outbreaks both in Thailand and other countries. Thai economy will thus possess a
slower recovery path. Even though, with the positive factors of less restriction in outbreak controlling measures compared
to that in last year and inoculations already taking place in several nations leading to the new round outbreak become less
severe, there will be a further drag on already feeble economic recovering momentum and turn economy to a weaker
recovering path. TMB Analytics accordingly forecasts that Thai economy in 2021 will steadily expand by 2.4 percent, of
which its main driver would be government spending especially through continuously launched stimulus programs. This is
either by extending the executing periods of launched programs last year, namely second phase copayment scheme, we
travel together or by introducing new relief measures for broader range of impacted groups, amounting to more than 250
billion baht, such as those labors under 33 Article. It is estimated to sustain, but not accelerate, private consumption
growth due to prevailing drags from softer purchasing powers and fragile labor market. The Bank of Thailand thus
estimated that the new round of domestic outbreak would pose additional risk on more than 4.7 million labors, who are
mostly in hotel businesses, retailers, and restaurants. Furthermore, Public investment is expected to continuously
progress, mainly the EEC infrastructure projects which are about to begin the construction phase within this year. This
would yield further supports on private investment to move in line with gradual rebound of production capacity in several
industries with respect to higher demands in pandemic prevention products and working from home essentials. About
merchandise exports, it is projected to turn positive number due to better global trade and investment surroundings.
However, it will be with the limited extent of 3.4 percent growth figure owing to remaining uncertainty in global economic
recovery and Thai baht appreciation trend. On the contrary, tourism sector would still encounter the main challenges in
foreign tourist rebounds, which significantly depend on border openness in both Thailand and original countries, global
COVID-19 situation development as well as effectiveness and availability of vaccine. For Thailand, there is an inoculating
target of 50 percent population within 2021. Accordingly, inbound foreign tourists are projected to be only 3.5 million
persons for 2021, causing employment and tourism-related businesses to remain in fragile condition.
Regarding financial market, the Monetary policy committee would maintain the policy rate at 0.5% throughout the
year to provide supports for Thailand’s economic recovery under high uncertainty and deteriorating qualities in household
debts. For Thai baht, it is projected to continue in an appreciating trend due to US dollar’ depreciation, foreign capital
inflows and economic structural issues arising from persisting current account surplus partly due to low domestic
investment. TMB Analytics thus projected Thai baht to move between 29.5 to 30.5 baht per dollar in 2021.
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

The adoption of Thai Financial Reporting Standard (TFRS9) and the impact of COVID-19 pandemic
Since 1 Jan 2020, TMB has initially adopted Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS9). This new accounting standard
has significant implications on asset classification and impairment, income recognition, and hedge accounting. Key
changes are summarized as follows:
1. Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
• Financial assets are measured at amortized cost, fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) and fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). The classification is based on cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset and the business model in which they are managed.
• Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). A financial
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition.
2. Impairment model of financial assets and contract assets
• Impairment model applied to the financial instruments that are not measured at FVTPL which are financial
assets that are debt instruments, lease receivables and loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
issued.
• Loans are classified into 3 stages based on changes in credit quality since initial recognition.
▪ Stage 1 (performing): 12-month ECL (expected credit loss)
▪ Stage 2 (under-performing): Lifetime ECL not credit impaired
▪ Stage 3 (non-performing): Lifetime ECL credit impaired
3. Income recognition
• Step-up loans are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) which reflected the
recognition of interest income and interest expense.
•
Front end fee income is recognized as interest income on amortization basis.
4. Hedge accounting
• There are 3 hedge accounting models and the type of model applied depends on the hedged exposures
consisting of a fair value exposure, a cash flow exposure or a foreign currency exposure on a net investment
in a foreign operation.
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

The impact of COVID-19
At the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank has provided its relief measure for all customer segments in the form of
payment holiday for principal and interest, a reduction of interest payment, extension of installment period, and soft loan
facilities. At the end of December 2020, approximate 15% of total loan portfolio was under the relief program which
decreased from 20% as of Sep 20 and 40% as of Jun 20. For those customers remaining in the relief program, most of
them were in the 2nd phrase of relief measures. As of Dec 2020, commercial customer under forbearance accounted for
25% of total commercial loans and retail customers accounted for 9% of total retail loans respectively. According to the
new round of pandemic outbreak, TMB continues to be vigilant and keeps monitoring customers to ensure the Bank’s
asset quality as well as support customers through pre-emptive debt restructuring to ensure that customers can recover in
the long run.
In relation to financial reporting, the Bank and its subsidiaries have adopted accounting relief on the use of new effective
interest rate (EIR) at the time contracts are changed. This has been applied for all customers under relief program.
As of the COVID-19 pandemic is ongoing, management considered the impact of the COVID-19 impact to the financial
assets based on available information and the potential impact on the initial ECL estimates. As at 31 December 2020,
management provided additional ECL as management overlay especially for the customers under relief programs and
impact from economic condition. To maintain prudent management, The Bank’s provisioning level is kept at an elevated
level with sufficient capital cushion and is continuously adjusted to reflect changing environments. Given the second wave
of pandemic in Thailand, 2020 provision was set at THB24,831 million, or equivalent to a credit cost of 179 bps. The
higher provisioning also reflected weakening macroeconomic variable during the economic downturn. Moreover, capital
and liquidity positions were at strong level under COVID-19 situation and well above regulatory requirement.
In terms of employee, TMB managed our employees the protocol by at least 50% of total headcount to work from home
according to BCP plan and social distancing policy. Additionally, the Bank also provided COVID insurance to TMB and
Thanachart staffs and family. TMB donated 6 million Baht to the Office of Prime Minister aiding to support COVID-19 and
8,000 face shields are to be donated to hospitals. Fund Raising from the Merged Bank employees and public for COVID19 relief. All the donated money will be transferred to government hospitals under Punboon to help Thai people affected
from COVID-19.
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Discussion of operating performance
Thai economy for the year 2020 contracted drastically amid the spread of COVID-19. The pace of recovery remained sluggish. TMB
continued to grow loan and deposit very selectively to ensure on portfolio quality. Quality-hybrid deposit grew well. NII and NIM
improvement was in line with Bank’s direction to optimize its balance sheet synergy from post-merger. The operating efficiency and cost
synergy realization was reflected by higher PPOP. TMB remained prudence with elevated ECL for the uncertainties ahead while NPL
ratio was low at 2.50%.
Quality-hybrid deposit continued to grow, boosted by No-Fixed and Ultra Saving: TMB continued to focus on deposit-led strategy and
build strong deposit franchise as well as proactively optimize deposit mix by running high-cost deposit with CASA and quality-hybrid
deposits. As of December 2020, total deposit contracted by 1.8% YTD to THB1,373 billion. Retail flagship product continued its positive
momentum, led by No-Fixed, Ultra-saving and TMB All Free respectively while TD and Certificate Deposit significantly dropped, in line
with balance sheet optimization. As a result, retail deposit represented 76% from 66% of total deposit as of Dec 2019. With strong retail
franchise and the substantial growth in hybrid deposits reflected capability to retain and attract affluent segment thru our flagship
products.
Continued to focus on quality loan portfolio against economic headwinds: Amidst the slow economic activities recovering from the
COVID-19 pandemic and the new round of virus outbreak, TMB continued to grow loan very selectively. Total loan as of December 2020,
therefore, was stable YTD at THB1,393 billion, in line with Merged Bank’s B/S optimization strategy to run down low yield portfolio and
improve loan quality. Retail loans marginally declined, backed by unsecured loan and credit card while hire purchase was relatively
stable YTD. However, the Bank saw a recovery sign in new auto loan booking especially in new car segment in this quarter. Mortgage
continued its moderate growth pace. Corporate loans grew YTD primarily from government loan granted in 4Q20. Post-merger loan
portfolio was well-diversified and shifted to retail lending, given retail loans represented 56% of total portfolio and around 90% of retail
loans are secured lending.
Solid core operating profit, driven by top-line growth: Given the challenging economic environment from COVID-19, TMB reported
12M20 net interest income of THB53,805 million, significantly rose by 100.3% YoY, thanks to thanks to recognition of NII from TBANK
and balance sheet synergy realization while NIM improved to 3.00% in 2020, resulting from higher yield on earning assets from
consolidation with TBANK and optimize its balance sheet. Non-NII increased by 15.7% YoY to THB14,986 million mainly from the
consolidation with TBANK. Total operating income, therefore, rose by 72.8% YoY to THB68,791 million in 2020.
With operating efficiency and cost synergy realization, PPOP improved: With the significant progress in balance sheet optimization and
cost synergy realization, core operating profit remains a positive momentum amid the pressures on income generation from COVID-19
pandemic. Operating expenses were well-managed with the major cost saving in HR cost and branch rationalization after consolidation
with TBANK. Cost-to-income ratio excluded purchase price allocation (PPA) impact improved to 45% which achieved financial target in
2020. As a result, Pre-Provision Operating Profit (PPOP), improved by 89.6% YoY to THB37,266 million in 12M20.
Higher expected credit loss was for prudent management and uncertainty ahead: With higher PPOP, TMB continued its prudent
management and decided to add more ECL in preparation for the uncertainties arising from COVID-19 outbreak and pressure on asset
quality from the post financial relief program In total, TMB set aside expected credit loss of THB24,831 million in 2020. The Bank’s
provisioning is kept at an elevated level with sufficient capital cushion and is continuously adjusted to reflect changing environments.
Stage 3 loans, as a result, totaled THB 39,594 million, representing NPL ratio of 2.50%. TMB continued to de-risk loan portfolio to clear
up headroom ahead for economic uncertainties. After provision, TMB reported THB10,112 million of net profit in 2020. The figure
increased by 40.0% YoY and represented a return on equity (ROE) of 5.1%.
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TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Analysis of operating performance for the accounting year as of 31 December 2020, in comparison to 31 December 2019
is as follows;
Statement of comprehensive income

Note: Consolidated financial statements

14.1 Operating income
In 2020, TMB generated THB68,791 million of total operating income which increased 72.8% from last year because the
bank fully recognized TBANK’s operating income this year. Net interest income increased by 100.3% from the same
period last year, resulting from the recognition of interest on hire purchase and financial lease from TBANK while noninterest income increased YoY due to the consolidation with TBANK. Operating expense increased from the same period
last year. Details of the Bank’s operating performance was as follows.
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TMB Bank Public Company Limited

14.1.1 Net interest income

Note: Consolidated financial statements

➢ Interest income
As of 31 December 2020, total interest income of the Bank and its subsidiaries was THB72,321 million, rose by 81.5%
from 2019. Such increase was due largely to the recognition of interest on hire purchase and financial lease from TBANK
and higher interest income on loans. Key items are as follows.
• Interest on loans rose by 32.9% YoY to THB11,299 million from previous year
• Interest on hire purchase and financial lease rose by 1,147.4% YoY to THB22,734 million due mainly to the fully
consolidation of TBANK.
• Interest on interbank and money market items dropped by 2.2% YoY to THB1,922 million.
• Interest on investments in debt securities increased by 23.5% YoY to THB1,920 million.
➢ Interest expense
At the end of 2020, total interest expenses of the Bank and its subsidiaries was THB18,515 million, an increase of 42.7%
from last year, due mainly to the substantial inflow of retail hybrid deposit reflected the Bank’s strategy to acquire quality
deposits and build strong deposit franchise. Details are shown below.
• Interest expense on deposits increased by 67.5% YoY to THB11,553 million mainly from deposit expansion.
• Interest expense on interbank and money market items fell by 31.1% YoY to THB538 million.
• Interest on debt issued and borrowing rose by 54.1% YoY to THB2,928 million.
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Net interest income (NII)

Net interest margin (NIM)

Note: Consolidated financial statements

Note: Consolidated financial statements

Net interest income recorded at THB53,805 million, or
rose by 100.3% YoY, due mainly to recognition of TBANK
interest income for the whole year

Net interest margin (NIM) expanded by 19 bps to
3.00% contributed by higher yield on earning assets
from consolidation with TBANK and balance sheet
synergy realization despite the multiple rate cuts
during the year.

14.1.2 Non-interest income

Note: Consolidated financial statements

In 2020, total non-interest income of the Bank and its subsidiaries was THB14,986 million, an increase of 15.7% over-year,
driven mainly by the higher net fee and service income. Key items are as follows.
• Net fees and service income was reported at THB10,575 million, rose by 30.6% from last year, mainly attributed
to growth in bancassurance fees from auto businesses and non-auto business and mutual fund fees, outweighed
the lower fee income in loan related fee.
• Share of profit from investment using equity method was recorded at THB363 million.
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Net fees and service income

Note: Consolidated financial statements

14.1.3 Non-interest expenses

Note: Consolidated financial statement

At the end of 2020, total non-interest expenses of the Bank and its subsidiaries was THB31,623 million, a rise of 53.0%
from last year, due to;
• Employee expenses grew by 71.7% YoY to THB16,536 million which largely came from the recognition of
employee expenses of TBANK after the consolidation with TBANK.
• Premises and equipment expenses rose by 71.5% YoY to THB6,171 million.
• Other expenses rose by 16.7% YoY to THB7,051 million, due owing to the recognition of other expenses of
TBANK, offsetting lower marketing expense from a slowdown in business activities during COVID-19 outbreak.
14.1.4 Pre-provision operating profit (PPOP)
The pre-provision operating profit of the Bank
and subsidiaries was THB37,266 million,
increased by 89.6% YoY.

Note: Consolidated financial statements
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14.1.5 Expected credit loss (ECL)
TMB remained prudent in its operation and asset quality management. In 2020, impairment loss on loans and securities
was THB24,831 million, compared to THB10,337 million in the same period last year. The higher provision reflected the
stringent forward-looking Expected Credit Loss (ECL) models and Management Overlay to cover macro downside risks
and pressure on asset quality from the post financial relief program.
14.1.6 Profit before income tax
The Bank and its subsidiaries recorded profit before income tax at THB12,338 million, increased by 40.0% compared to
the previous year. Income tax expense in 2020 was THB 2,223 million, an increase of 40.0% YoY.
14.1.7 Net profit
After the provision and tax, net profit to equity holders of the Bank was THB10,112 million, grew by 40.0% from the same
period of last year. The Bank generated ROE of 5.1%.
Net profit and Return on equity (ROE)
Net profit to equity holder of the Bank

Return on equity

THB million
14,000

12.4%

12,000
10,000

15.0%

6.5%

5.1%

10.0%
5.0%

11,601

10,112

8,000

0.0%
-5.0%
-10.0%

7,222

6,000

-15.0%

4,000

-20.0%
2,000

-25.0%

-

-30.0%
FY2018

FY2019

FY2020

Note: Consolidated financial statements
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Financial Position
The Bank aims to maintain strong financial position as it is a foundation for quality and sustainable growth in the long run.
To achieve this, the Bank focuses on Balance Sheet Optimization in order to create the optimal financial structure for
sustainable returns of the merged bank. During the time of an economic downturn, the Bank carefully managed and
closely monitored asset quality by building an appropriate expected credit loss level (ECL) and accelerating NPL
resolution through proactive write-off and sales. This was to prepare headroom of the balance sheet to deal with
unforeseen future risks. Liquidity was also well-managed, and capital was ensured at the strong level. Key areas of 2020
financial position are as follows.
14.2 Selected financial position
Unit: THB million
Cash

Dec-20

Dec-19

%YTD

21,943

23,853

-8.0%

Interbank and money market items, net
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or
loss
Derivative assets

211,185

236,311

-10.6%

3,788

-

N/A

11,959

10,399

15.0%

Investments, net

134,351

166,265

-19.2%

8,599

8,953

-4.0%

1,392,925

1,392,225

0.1%

8,533

1,883

353.2%

52,978

-

N/A

-

45,477

-100.0%

1,348,480

1,348,630

0.0%

6,037

4,810

25.5%

Premises and equipment, net

24,039

23,642

1.7%

Goodwill and other intangible assets, net

22,546

22,363

0.8%

1,980

1,496

32.4%

13,425

11,468

17.1%

Investments in subsidiaries and associate, net
Total loans to customers

Add accrued interest receivables and undue interest
receivables

Less allowance for expected credit loss
Less allowance for doubtful accounts & revaluation
allowance for debt restructuring
Total loans to customers and accrued interest receivables,
net
Properties for sale, net

Deferred tax assets
Other assets, net
Total Assets
Deposits

1,808,332

1,858,190

-2.7%

1,373,408

1,398,112

-1.8%

75,909

86,626

-12.4%

432

418

3.4%

Debts issued and borrowings, net

88,965

108,835

-18.3%

Deferred revenue

20,885

18,186

14.8%

Other liabilities

43,984

51,201

-14.1%

1,603,582

1,663,379

-3.6%

204,713

194,777

5.1%

Interbank and money market items
Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss

Total Liabilities
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Bank
Non-controlling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity
Book value per share (Baht)

37

35

7.2%

204,750

194,811

5.1%

1,808,332

1,858,190

-2.7%

2.12

2.02

5.0%

Note: Consolidated financial statements
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14.2.1 Assets
As of 31 December 2020, total assets on consolidated basis amounted to THB1,808,332 million, a decrease of 2.7% from
31 December 2019 (YTD) mainly due to interbank and money market and investment. Details are as follows.
1) Total loans to customers
As of Dec-20, TMB recorded total loans to customers (less deferred revenue) on consolidated basis of THB1,392,925
million, stable YTD. With balance sheet synergy initiative, the Bank optimized loan mix by reducing low-yielding loans
and replacing with retail high-yielding loans. However, amid the situation of COVID-19 pandemic and sluggish economic
recovery, the Bank grew loans selectively resulting in relatively flat loan growth this year. Details are as follows.
•

•

Retail lending on consolidated basis contracted by 0.6% YTD. The YTD decline was mainly due to unsecured
loans and credit card while hire purchase remained flat. However, the Bank saw a recovery sign in new auto loan
booking especially in new car segment in the last quarter of 2020. Mortgage continued its moderate growth rate
of 0.4% YTD as property market continued to recover at a gradual pace.
Corporate lending on consolidated basis increased 2.2% YTD mainly from government loan granted in 4Q20
while small SME loans remained contraction against unfavorable business environment. However, the Bank
continued to optimize its balance sheet with an aim to run down low yield portfolio and improve loan quality of the
Merged Bank.

Total loan breakdown by segment

In terms of loan breakdown by customer segments, the
loan portfolio has diversified and shifted to retail segment
since the merger. As of 31 December 2020, retail loans
accounted for 56% while corporate loans were 37% and
small SMEs were 7% of total portfolio.

Note: Consolidated financial statements

In terms of key products, 29% of total loan was hire purchase; followed by mortgage of 22%, term loan of 18%, working
capital (OD) of 18%, trade finance of 5%, personal loan & credit card of 4% and others 3%.
For hire purchase loan as of 31 December 2020, the portfolio consisted of new car 68%, used car 18%, cash your car
(CYC) 14%, cash your book (CYB) of 0.2% respectively.
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Hire purchase portfolio breakdown

Note: Consolidated financial statements

Stage 3 loans/Non-performing loans (NPLs), excluded accrued interest receivables: According to the new accounting
standard under TFRS9 which implemented on 1 January 2020, non-performing loans is classified as stage 3 loans.
The Bank has put priority on asset quality monitoring and continued to manage NPLs with prudence. As of 31 December
2020, Stage 3 loans (NPLs), excluded accrued interest receivables on consolidated basis, was reported at THB39,594
million which increased from THB37,746 million as of 31 December 2019. Stage 3 loans (NPLs) on bank-only basis
amounted to THB22,005 million, increased from THB18,150 million at the end of 2019. However, the Bank will proactively
manage flow to stage 3 and continued to resolve stage 3 loans through sales, write-offs and the pre-emptive debt
restructuring to maintain NPL ratio at relatively low level in preparation for the unforeseen headwinds in the future. In 2020,
the Bank wrote off NPLs amounting to approximately THB14 billion and sold roughly THB7 billion of NPLs to prepare
headroom against uncertainty.
As of 31 December 2020, NPL ratio on consolidated basis was recorded at 2.50%, compared with 2.35% at the end of
2019. Meanwhile, NPL ratio on bank-only basis stood at 2.38% when compared with 2.33% as of 31 December 2019.
Non-performing loans and NPL ratio

Note: Consolidated financial statements

Part 3 Page 160

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

➢ Allowance for loan losses
As of 31 December 2020, the Bank and its subsidiaries reported the allowance for expected credit loss at THB52,978
million, which rose by 16.5% YoY due to the additional provision buffer set throughout the year to preemptively limit future
downside risks from COVID-19 outbreak and debt relief program.
Given the current unfavorable economic conditions and heightened uncertainty around COVID-19, the Bank has
proactively reviewed its loan portfolio and set aside management overlay to cover both Probability of default (PD) and
Loss given default (LGD) shift. Consequently, allowance for expected credit loss was set at the prudent level, preparing
for the future uncertainties. Moreover, the Bank closely monitors customers under debt relief program and offers further
assistance to those in need after the resurgence of COVID-19 cases.
Coverage ratio
16
0%

152%
15
0%

134%

14
0%

13
0%

120%
12
0%

11
0%

10
0%

90
%

80
%

FY2018

FY2019

FY2020

As a result of higher allowance for ECL,
coverage ratio on consolidated basis was
recorded at 134%, improving from 120% as of
Dec-19. TMB consistently maintained coverage
ratio at prudent level.

Note: Consolidated financial statements

2) Interbank and money market
As of 31 December 2020, Net interbank and money market item decreased by 10.6% YTD to THB211,185 million, due
mainly to liquidity management.
3) Investment
Under TFRS9, investment items are classified into 3 categories; fair value to profit and loss (FVTPL), fair value to other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and measured at amortized cost. As of 31 December 2020, investments were classified
as follows:
(THB million)
Financial assets measured at FVTPL
Investments in debt securities measured at amortized cost
Investments in debt securities measured at FVOCI
Investments in equity securities measured at FVOCI
Net Investment*
Total Investment

31 Dec 2020
3,788
621
132,213
1,517
134,351

31 Dec 2019
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.
N.A.

138,139

N.A.

 Net investments comprised of investments measured at amortised cost and measured at FVOCI
Note: Consolidated financial statements
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4) Properties for sales
As of 31 December 2020, net properties for sale increased to THB6,037 million, increasing by 25.5% YoY. The
change was still in line with the business plan.
14.2.2 Liabilities
As of 31 December 2020, total liabilities on consolidated basis was reported at THB1,808,332 million which declined by
2.7% YTD. Details are shown below;
1) Deposits
As of 31 December 2020, the Bank and its subsidiaries reported total deposits on consolidated basis of THB1,373,408
million which dropped 1.8% from the end of 2019, driven by reduction in TD & Deposit certificate, partly offsetting the
increase in hybrid deposits. This was in line with the Bank’s balance sheet synergy initiatives to optimize deposit mix.
TMB continued to focus on deposit-led strategy and build strong deposit franchise as well as proactively optimize deposit
mix. After the merger with TBANK, the Bank continued to run down high-cost deposit and replace with CASA and qualityhybrid deposits. Overall, the deposit was in line with such a direction. The Bank’s high-yield deposit products continued to
grow despite low interest rate environment and interest rate reduction. This was attributed to TMB No-Fixed which
expanded noticeably by 42.6% YTD while Ultra Saving also rose further by 24.0% YTD. The Bank’s flagship retail
transactional deposit, TMB All Free, also grew on track at 23.1% YTD. Nonetheless, Time Deposit and Certificate Deposit
significantly dropped by 55.4% YTD, in line with balance sheet optimization by replacing high cost deposit with hybrid
products. With strong retail franchise and the substantial growth in hybrid deposits reflected capability to retain and
attract affluent segment thru our flagship products.
Deposits breakdown by products

Note: Consolidated financial statements
Remark: Non-transactional deposit consists of “TMB No Fixed”, “ME” and “TBANK Ultra Saving”.
“TMB No Fixed”, “ME” and “TBANK Ultra Saving” are classified as savings account as they are not required to maintain minimum balance and have no
restriction to term of deposit
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2) Borrowings
As of 31 December 2020, total borrowings of the Bank and its subsidiaries recorded at THB88,965 million which
contracted by18.3% YTD. The YTD change was resulted from the redemption of TBANK’s bond, amounting to THB31
billion and TMB’s EUR bond, amounting to THB5 billion, offsetting the issuance of TMB’s EUR bond, amounting to THB15
billion.
3) Interbank and money market
Net interbank and money market item decreased by 12.4% YTD to THB75,909 million, mainly due to the Bank’s liquidity
management. The Bank strategically managed excess liquidity by shifting some of interbank to short-term government
loan in 4Q20.
14.2.3 Shareholder’s equity
As of 31 December 2020, the consolidated equity was THB204,750 million which rose by 5.1% YTD mainly due to the
accumulation of the net profit during the period.
14.3

Off-balance sheet items
• Commitments

The Bank and its subsidiaries’s commitments comprise aval to bills, guarantees of loans, liabilities under unmatured
import bills, letters of credit, other guarantees, unused bank overdrafts, committed line and other commitments. The Bank
and its subsidiaries’s commitments (excluding commitments from derivative contracts) decreased by 5.2% from THB
273,503 million as of December 31, 2019 to THB 259,309 million as of December 31, 2020.

Avals to bills
Guarantees of loans
Liability under unmatured import bills
Letters of credit
Other commitments
- Other guarantees
- Amount of unused bank overdrafts
- Committed line
(1)
- Others
Total
(1)

Consolidated
Bank only
2020
2019
2020
2019
(in million Baht)
240
336
159
243
2,382
2,386
38
38
1,935
2,392
1,878
2,226
13,358
13,720
13,042
12,789
63,324
105,942
42,892
29,236
259,309

63,368
104,962
44,371
41,968
273,503

63,324
86,104
78,239
17,029
259,813

63,368
83,245
4,844
23,028
189,781

As at 31 December 2020, this included the financial assets accepted as collateral that had been sold or pledged amounting to Baht 15,924 million
(2019: 22,463 million). The Bank is obliged to return those securities in equivalent amount.

14.4 Liquidity management
The objective of liquidity management is to keep the Bank’s financially capable of performing its financial obligations at
present and in future and generating benefits when the market condition serves. The financial obligations arise from
deposit withdrawal, repayment of debts, loan expansion, working capital requirement, and legally required provisioning.
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The Bank has adequate liquidity sources and can manage its liquidity through the domestic and foreign money market,
the exchange market, and the repurchase market.
The table below shows the Bank’s liquidity status for the periods indicated:

THB million

As of December 31
2020
2019
2018

(Consolidated)
Net Liquid Assets

291,570

339,803

137,967

101.4

99.6

105.6

16.1

18.3

15.5

2020

2019

2018

21,943

23,853

15,234

Interbank and Money Market Assets

211,185

236,311

113,522

Investment

134,351

166,265

73,477

75,909

86,626

64,267

Loan to Deposit (%)
Net Liquid Assets to Total Assets

Net Liquid Assets
Cash on Hand

Deduct interbank and Money Market Liabilities

Total

291,570 339,803 137,967

Liquidity (Consolidated)
As of December 31, 2020, TMB had net liquid assets of THB 291,570 million, dropped from THB 339,803 million as of
December 31, 2019 resulting from the proactive deposit cost management strategy by reducing high cost deposit to be in
line with post-merger plan to optimize balance sheet.
14.5 Capital adequacy
The Bank maintained high capital ratios under Basel III. As of 31 December 2020, Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) on
consolidated basis was at 19.5% while CET1 stayed at 14.4% and Tier 1 ratio was at 15.4%. Such levels were well above
the Bank of Thailand’s minimum requirement (including conservation buffer) of 11.0%, 7.0% and 8.5% of CAR, CET 1 and
Tier 1 capital ratio, respectively. (For the disclosure of full details of capital under BASEL III, please visit investor relations
webpage at www.tmbbank.com)
14.6 Factors impact to financial status and business operations
Success of TMB business depends on achieving the Bank’s 7 Strategic Intents including: customer centricity,
build deposit and transactional banking products excellence, continue leading in auto loan and lending products, build
sustainable and recurring non-interest income, optimize capital utilization and liquidity management, enhance digital
capability and solutions, and capture synergy realization. With respect to TMB’s 7 Strategic Intents, TMB may not achieve
expected returns and other benefits as a result of various factors, which may include increasing competition on deposit
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acquisitions, macroeconomic headwinds (e.g. COVID impact, trade war, geo-political uncertainty and strong THB), rapid
changes of technologies related to transactional banking and regulatory changes on fees and sales process.
TMB may face significant and increasing competition in the banking industry and may not be able to compete
in the acquisition of quality deposits which could adversely affect the Bank’s cost of deposits and the expected redeployment of quality deposits into profitable assets. TMB will continue to experience intensified competition as the
evolution of the banking industry may result in better capitalized and more diversification in offering a broader range of
financial products and services at more competitive prices. TMB may face competitors with more experience and more
established relationships with customers which could adversely affect TMB’s ability to attract quality deposits. Such
increased competition may negatively affect the Bank by creating pressure to lower margin on the products and services,
and failing to gain stable funding which thus increases cost of funds. Nonetheless, TMB has placed a strategic plan to
address this anticipated problem by continuing to develop and innovate quality saving products differentiating them from
other normal savings in the market while addressing customers’ needs. By designing the right saving products and
providing simple and easy transactional services as well as comprehensive investment products, TMB will be able to
successfully sustain bottom line even in the current highly competitive environment.
In the current economic downturn situation, the loan growth rate is expected to be lower than the past as it
seems to be a new normal, TMB will focus on acquiring good credit customer within targeted industries and tighten credit
controls which will put upward pressure on operating expenses resulting in greater challenges in generating maximum
returns for investors. However, TMB has been preparing itself for the case of weak economic situation. Since 2013, TMB
has tightened credit policies and implemented stricter annual credit monitoring and review. In addition, an “Early Warning”
system has been implemented which would help predict and detect customers’ credit status as well as establishing
advisory center to help proactively advise and resolve customers’ credit issues. TMB continued to develop and improve
asset management which will help maintain the Bank’s asset quality in an acceptable level. In long term, TMB has also
brought in data analytics to enhance banks’ lending capability for better understanding customer in order to offer right
products and services at the right time.
TMB, nonetheless, has prepared business plans both short-term and long-term goals with focus on increasing
portion of non-interest income (e.g. mutual fund and bancassurance), which will help TMB to sustainably generate profits
in a volatile economic environment. However, the competition in financial industry is not limited to banking players, but
also non-banking players (e.g. tel-co, tech giants) are also entering this market, pressuring on the bank’s ability to
generate income. To remain competitive status, TMB has expanded into an automotive lending business thru merger with
Thanachart Bank, a leading automotive lending bank in Thailand. This move has created more comprehensive and variety
of lending products to cover all customer’s needs.
TMB’s business model is primarily based on transactional banking that provides a broad range of financial
services to a diversified mix of customers, delivered through multiple channels, especially in a digital channel. TMB
places high emphasis on execution of digital transformation including technology implementation, organization structure,
IT infrastructure and Omni-channel experiences. Moreover, TMB is also gaining strong collaboration from ING who has the
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experience and expertise in digital banking to help develop and implement highest standard of cyber security and driving
stability in digital experience and services. The collaboration would benefit TMB in development and raising TMB’s
capability to effectively provide digital services and supports customers’ current and future needs.
Any unexpected change of banking regulations on fees by regulatory authorities may adversely affect the
Bank’s ability to achieve expected level of fee incomes. This could harm the Bank’s goal to ensure continued business
growth and sustainable profitability. TMB focuses on growing its businesses while optimizing capital utilization. A portion
of the Bank’s earnings partly depends on fee revenues taken into account-related charges to customers. In addition, the
advent of IFRS9 accounting standards in 2020 will impact loan-related fee from fee incomes, as well as calculation of
interest incomes and provisions. Implementation of key regulatory changes also has specific complications which may
present operational risks to the Bank. However, TMB’s earning capabilities are not dependent on such traditional fee
incomes (For example, the benefit of TMB All Free). Instead, TMB emphasizes on customer understanding and
transactional banking excellence to acquire important customer information. Thus, the Bank will be able to offer fee-based
products and services matched customer needs and behaviors (at both individual and organizational levels), and create
superior value propositions to customers, sustainable fee incomes and continuity of business growth.
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Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas
49
- Chairman of the Board Claremont
(appointed on Feb 13, 2020)

Education
- Ph.D. (Economics / Macroeconomics and International
-

-

-

-

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
-

Finance), Claremont Graduate University, USA
M.S. (Economics / Policy Economics), University of
Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, USA
Bachelor of Economics (Honors), Thammasat University
Year 2020, Cyber Resilience Leadership: Tone from the
Top, and Year 2019, Cyber Resilience, Bank of Thailand
Year 2019, Oxford Programme on Negotiation in
Bangkok, SAID Business School of Oxford University, UK
Role of Chairman Program (class 45/2019), Board Matters
and Trends (class 4/2017), Role of the Nomination and
Governance Committee Program (class 8/2016), Financial
Statements for Directors (class 29/2015), Corporate
Governance for Capital Market Intermediaries (class
4/2015), and Director Certification Program (class 93/2007),
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
The Program for Senior Executives on Justice
Administration (class 24/2019), Judicial Training Institute
Year 2011, The Cilvil Service Executive Development
Program, Office of the Civil Service Commission
Advanced Certificate Course in Public Administration and
Law for Executive (class 9/2010), The College of Politics
and Governance, King Prajadhipok's Institute
Year 2009, Financial Markets and New Financial
Instruments, International Monetary Fund Institute
2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, and Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A
High-Frequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.
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Feb 2020 2020 2018 2015 2018 2018 2015 2015 2015 -

Present Present Present Present Jan 2020 2019 2018 2018 2018 -

2014

- 2015

-

2014

- 2015

-

2013
2013

- 2015
- 2015

-

Chairman of the Board, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Governing Board of Tax Inspectors without Borders, OECD & UNCP
Director General, The Revenue Department
Director and Member of the Risk Management Committee, IRPC Pcl.
Chairman, Krung Thai Bank Pcl.
Chairman, Thai Airways International Pcl.
Director General, State Enterprise Policy Office (SEPO)
Chairman, National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd.
Director and Member of the Nomination, Compensation and Corporate
Governance Committee, The Siam Commercial Bank Pcl.
International Economic Policy Advisor, Fiscal Policy Office, Ministry of
Finance
Director and Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Krungthai
Asset Management Pcl.
Director, TSFC Securities Pcl.
Director and Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors, Export-Import
Bank of Thailand
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Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
2 Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
- Vice Chairman of the Board
- Vice Chairman of Board of
Executive Directors
(appointed on Dec 3, 2019)

Age

Education

70

- Master of Science, University of Wisconsin, USA
- Bachelor of Business Administration and Accounting,
Chulalongkorn University
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academe (CMA)
- Role of the Compensation Committee, Role of the Chairman
Program, Financial Institutions Governance Program, and
Director Accreditation Program, Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
- Thailand in the New Global Landscape, Thanachart
Training and Development Co., Ltd. collaboration with
Sasin Graduate Institute of Business Administration of
Chulalongkorn University
- Anti Corruption for Executives 1/2014, Development of
Anti-Corruption Standard of Thailand 2017, and Block
Chain Technology 2018, Thanachart Bank Plc.
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
-
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Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
Dec 2019- Present
2019 - Present
2018 - Present
2016 - Present

-

2015
2014
2012
2007
2006
2006
2006
2005
2005
2005
2003
2016
2015
2014
2005
2013
2010
2007
2007
2003
2002
2011
2011
2003

-

-

Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
2019
2019
2019
2019
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2015
2017
2015
2015

Vice Chairman of the Board Executive Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Vice Chairman, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Chairman of the Executive Committee, MBK Plc.
Chairman of the Good Corporate Governance Committee, Patum Rice Mill
and Granary Plc.
Chairman of the Compensation and Nomination Committee, MBK Plc.
Chairman, MBK Life Assurance Plc.
Chairman, Patum Rice Mill and Granary Plc.
Vice Chairman and Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Vice Chairman, MBK Plc.
Director, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Director, Siam Piwat Holding Co., Ltd.
Vice Chairman, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Director, MBK Resort Plc.
Director, Siam Piwat Co., Ltd.
Member of the Succession Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Chairman, DMS Property Investment Private Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Chief Executive Officer, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Director, Royal Orchid Hotel (Thailand) Plc.
Director, Thai Royal Orchid Real Estate Co., Ltd.
Vice Chairman, MBK Plc.
Member of the Compensation and Nomination Committee, MBK Plc.
Chairman of the Executive Committee, Patum Rice Mill and Granary Plc.
Director, DMS Property Investment Private Co., Ltd.
Director, Plan Estate Co., Ltd.

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Education

3 Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
- Director
- Chairman of the Board of
Executive Directors
- Chairman of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
(appointed on Dec 28, 2007)

70

4 Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
- Independent Director
- Chairman of the Audit Committee
(appointed on Feb 12, 2016)

61

- MBA (Accounting & International Finance), Columbia
University, New York, USA
- Advanced Automatics, Ecole Nationale de l'Aéronautique
et de l'Espace, Toulouse, France
- Ingénieur Civil Electricien Mécanicien, Université Libre
de Bruxelles, Brussels, Belgium
- Military Service, Belgian Army
- Directors Refresher Program, ING Vysya Bank Ltd. (India)
- Strategic Board Master Class, Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, Cyber Resilience Leadership
Seminar, Cyber Resilience Awareness, IFRS 9 Implication
and Readiness, Inside Information and Data Privacy,
Branding and NPS Update, and Sustainability Training,
TMB Bank Plc.
- Master of Science (Economics), Oklahoma State
University, USA
- Bachelor of Science in Business Administration
(Economics/Finance), Oklahoma State University, USA
- Advanced Security Management Program, National
Defence College
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academy (CMA)
- The Leadership Grid Appreciation Workshop, Grid
Teamwork Limited
- Boardroom Success Through Financing and Investment,
IT Governance and Cyber Resilience Program, Ethical
Leadership Program, Advanced Audit Committee

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
5,126,411

18,592

Attachment 1 Page 3

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
Dec 2019- Present - Director, Chairman of the Board of Executive Directors, and Chairman of the
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee,
Thanachart Bank Plc.
2019 - Present - Director, OBOR Capital Co., Ltd.
2018 - Present - Board member, Simba Estates Ltd.
2018 - Present - Chairman of the Board and director, Ecopol Pte. Ltd. (Singapore)
2014 - Present - Board member, Armstrong Asset Management (Singapore)
2014 - Present - Board member, The Blue Circle (Singapore)
2014 - Present - Board member, Sport Sevens (Singapore)
2013 - Present - Board member, PCMA Hodings Pte. Ltd.
2013 - Present - Board member, PCMI Insurance Brokers Pte. Ltd.
2011 - Present - Board member, Eurofin Asia (Singapore)
2011 - 2018 - Member of Advisory Board, Pacific Star (Singapore)
2010 - 2018 - Chairman of the Board, Prochem (Singapore)

Apr 2020 - Present - Chairman of the Audit Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Dec 2019- Present - Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2018 - Present - Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee, S Hotels and
Resorts Plc.
2018 - Present - Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Jakpaisan
Estate Plc.
2018 - Present - Director, P Advisory Co., Ltd.
2015 - Present - Chairman of the Board and Independent Director, Thantawan Industry Plc.
2012 - Present - Director, P.W. Consultants Co., Ltd.
2017 - 2019 - Director, Islamic Bank Asset Management Ltd. (IAM)
2017 - 2019 - Director, Industrial Estate Authority of Thailand (IEAT)
2016 - 2018 - Director, CAT Telecom Plc.
2016 - 2017 - Advisor to the Minister, Ministry of Industry

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

5 Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel
- Independent Director
- Chairman of the Risk
Oversight Committee
- Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
- Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
(appointed on April 23, 2020)

Age

64

Education
Program, Boards that Make a Difference, Role of the
Chairman Program, Director Certification Program, and
Director Associate Program, Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
- Business Sustainability in Digital Trend, EY Company Limited
- Bangkok Sustainable Banking Forum 2018, Bank of Thailand
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, Cyber Resilience Leadership
Seminar, Cyber Resilience Awareness, IFRS 9 Implication
and Readiness, Recovery Planning, Inside Information and
Data Privacy, Branding and NPS Update, and
SustainabilityTraining, TMB Bank Plc.
- Master of Economics, University of Amsterdam
- Bachelor of Economics, University of Amsterdam
- Corporate Governance, Indian Institute of Management
Centre for Corporate Governance & Citizenship
- Corporate governance in Banks, balance between
Supervisory and management boards
- Regulatory developments
- Changes in the legal environment
- Specific processes and checks regarding AML and FEC
- Performance measurement and remuneration policies
- Whistleblower procedures, confidentiality and protection
of individuals
- Audit methodologies
- IFRS9
- BCBS 239
- Hedge accounting, accounting versus economic impact,
asymmetries in bank balance sheets

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

-

Attachment 1 Page 4

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2014
2012
2015
2014

-

2016
2016
2016
2015

-

Managing Director, SCMB Co., Ltd.
Executive Chairman, SCMB Co., Ltd.
Advisor to the Minister, Ministry of Information and Communication Technology
Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Thantawan
Industry Plc.
2014 - 2015 - Chairman of Sub-Committee on Monitoring and Administration on NPL,
SME Bank

Apr 2020 - Present - Independent Director, Chairman Risk Oversight Committee, Member
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, and
Member IT Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2018 - Present - Member Supervisory Board TD Bank NV.
2017 - Present - Director Riverbank Management B.V.
2019 - Apr 2020 - Chairman Supervisory Board MUFG Bank Europe NV.
2017 - Apr 2020 - Member Supervisory Board and Chairman Audit & Risk Committee MUFG
Bank Europe NV.
2011 - 2017 - Member of Executive Board and CRO, ING Group
2011 - 2015 - Member Supervisory Board and Chairman of Risk Committee NN Insurance,
Netherlands

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel (Con’t)

6 Mr. Teeranun Srihong
- Independent Director
- Chairman of the IT Oversight
Committee
- Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
- Member of the Risk
Oversight Committee
(appointed on Dec 17, 2019)

55

Education
- Privacy, data protection
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.
- Master of Business Administration, University of
Michigan - Ann Arbor, USA
- Bachelor of Engineering (Computer), Chulalongkorn
University
- The Joint State - Private Sector Course, Thailand National
Defense College
- Advanced Management Program (AMP), Harvard
Business School, USA
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academe (CMA)
- The Executive Program in Energy Literacy for a
Sustainable Future, Thailand Energy Academy
- Director Accreditation Program and Director Certification
Program, Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- 2020 Cyber Resilience Leadership: Tone from the Top,
2018 Thailand Sustainable Banking, Bank of Thailand
- Thailand Insurance Leadership Program, Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC)
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

-

Attachment 1 Page 5

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years

Nov 2020 - Present - Advisor, REX Co., Ltd.
Nov 2020 - Present - Expert (an entrepreneur of the private business), Committee for the Protection
of Credit Information
Sep 2020 - Present - Qualified Director, Sub-Committee of the National Committee on Competitive
Advantage
Mar 2020 - Present - Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee, Chairman of the
Compensation Committee, and Chairman of the New Business Committee,
Thai Com Plc.
Mar 2020 - Present - The Qualified Expert Committee on Electronic Transactions Sector or
Computer Science Sector of Supervision Committee- Electronic Transactions
Development Agency, Ministry of Digital Economy and Society
Dec 2019 - Present - Independent Director, Chairman of the IT Oversight Committee, Member of the
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, Member of
the Risk Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2019 - Present - Independent Director, S&P Syndicate Plc.
2019 - Present - Startup Investment Committee, Bangchak Corporation Plc.
2019 - Present - Executive Director, Phuket Deep Sea Port Co., Ltd.
2019 - Present - Experts and Chairman of sub-committee of Risk Management, Pension Fund
2018 - Present - Chairman, Thailand Management Association
2018 - Present - Director, Arcel Capital Co., Ltd.
2017 - Present - Advisor, Sansiri Plc.
2017 - Present - Director and Managing Director, Celar Consulting Co., Ltd.
2017 - Present - Qualified Director of Economics, The National Digital Economy and Society
Commission
2017 - Present - Chairman, Digital Economy Promotion Agency, The Government Complex
2018 - 2020 - Director, Committee to Drive Policy Implementation to Use Big Data, Data
Center, and Cloud Computing
2018 - 2020 - Chairman, Thai Ackro Exchange Co., Ltd.

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Education

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Mr. Teeranun Srihong (Con’t)

7 Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
- Director
- Chairman of the Credit
Committee
- Member of the Board of
Executive Directors
- Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee,
(appointed on Apr 7, 2017)

60

- Master of Public and Private Management Program,
National Institute of Development Administration (NIDA)
- Bachelor of Law, Ramkhamhaeng University
- National Defence College Program, Thailand National
Defense College
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academe (CMA)
- The Executive Program in Energy Literacy for a
Sustainable Future, Thailand Energy Academy
- Inspector General Program, The Prime Minister’s Office
- Senior Executive Program, Office of the Civil Service
Commission

-

Attachment 1 Page 6

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2018
2018
2018
2018
2017
2019
2018
2018
2018

-

2020
2020
2020
2020
2020
2019
2019
2019
2019

-

2017 - 2019
2017 - 2519
2017 - 2018
2017 - 2018
2014 - 2018
2016 - 2017
2016 - 2017
2013 - 2017
2013 - 2017
2014 - 2016
2013 - 2016
Dec 2019- Present

-

2019
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

-

-

Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present
Present

Director, The Mall Group Co., Ltd.
Director, The Mall Shopping Complex Co., Ltd.
Director, BKT Holding Co., Ltd.
Director, Northern Railway Park Co. Ltd.
Director, The Committee of Mobilizing Reform according to the Thailand 4.0 Agenda
Chairman of the Risk Oversight Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Director and Member of the Risk Management Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Director, Advance Power Conversion Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Sub-committee on Digital Strategy for Capital Market, The
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Insurance
Advisor, The Securities and Exchange Commission, Thailand (SEC)
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Enter Solution Co., Ltd.
Advisor, Bangchak Corporation Plc.
Vice Chairman, Thailand Management Association
Chairman, Kasikorn Business - Technology Group Co., Ltd.
Director, Beacon Venture Capital Co., Ltd.
Director and Managing Director, Kasikornbank Plc.
Director, Muang Thai Group Holding Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Kasikorn Leasing Co., Ltd.
Chairman, Kasikorn Securities Plc.
Director, Chairman of the Credit Committee, Member of the Board of
Executive Directors, and Member of the Nomination, Remuneration and
Corporate Governance Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Member of the Enterprise Risk Management Committee, PTT Plc.
Director and Member of the Remuneration Committee, PTT Plc.
Director, Don Muang Tollway Plc.
Chairman, Vayupak 1 Mutual Fund Investment Committee
Chairman, the Queen Sirikit National Convention Center Supervisory Committee
Chairman, Public Service Obligation Committee
Chairman, Performance Assessment Committee
Board Member, Vayupak Mutual Fund Supervisory Committee

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

8 Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
- Director
- Member of the Credit
Committee
- Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
(appointed on Jun 1, 2015)

Age

65

Education
- Good Governance for Directors and Executives of State
Enterprises and Public Organization, King Prajadhipok’s
Institute
- Advance Master Management (AMM), National Institute
of Development Administration (NIDA)
- Risk Management Programe for Corporate Leaders, IT
Governance and Cyber Resilience Program, Director
Certification Program, Financial Statement for Directors,
Role of Chairman Program, and Advanced Audit Committee
Program, Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- Bangkok Sustainable Banking Forum 2018, Bank of Thailand
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, Cyber Resilience Leadership
Seminar, Cyber Resilience Awareness, IFRS 9 Implication
and Readiness, Inside Information and Data Privacy,
Branding and NPS Update, and Sustainability Training,
TMB Bank Plc.
- Master of Economics, Thammasat University
- Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University
- National Defence College Program, Thailand National
Defense College
- Advanced Management Program (AMP), Harvard
Business School, USA
- Advanced Bank Management Program, Wharton School of
the University of Pennsylvania, USA
- Advanced Bank Management Program, Asian Institute
of Management
- IT Governance and Cyber Resilience Program, Advanced
Audit Committee Program, Director Certification Program,
Risk Management Program for Corporate Leaders, and

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

-

Attachment 1 Page 7

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2018 - Present - Board Member, Thailand Future Fund Steering Committee
2015 - Present - Deputy Permanent Secretary, Ministry of Finance
2016 - 2018 - Director, Member of Audit Committee, and Member of the Law and Regulation
Compliance Committee, Electricity Generating Authority of Thailand
2014 - 2018 - Director, Thailand Tobacco Monopoly, Ministry of Finance
2017 - 2018 - Chairman, Public Debt Restructuring and Domestic Bond Market
Development Fund
2017 - 2018 - Board Member, National Health Security Committee
2017 - 2018 - Board Member, Emergency Medicine Committee
2017 - 2018 - Board Member, National Metrology Committee
2015 - 2017 - Director, Thailand Post Co., Ltd
2015 - 2015 - Director, Thailand Privilege Card Co., Ltd.
2014 - 2015 - Chief Information Officer (CIO), Ministry of Finance
2014 - 2015 - Inspector General, Ministry of Finance

Dec 2019- Present - Director, Member of the Credit Committee, and Member of the Risk
Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2017 - Present - Independent Director, AP (Thailand) Pcl.
2017 - Present - Director, Kirloskar Brothers (Thailand) Limited
2016 - Present - Experts and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Office of the Securities
Exchange Commission (SEC)
2015 - Present - Independent Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee, Banpu Power Pcl.
2015 - 2019 - Member of the Board of Executive Directors, TMB Bank Plc.
2016 - 2017 - Advisor, The Corporate Governance and Risk Management Committee,
AP (Thailand) Pcl.
2008 - 2015 - Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Risk Officer, Risk Management
Group, Siam Commercial Bank Pcl.
2014 - 2015 - Vice Chairman, Vina Siam Bank, Vietnam

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Education
Director Accreditation Program, Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
- Bangkok Sustainable Banking Forum 2018, Bank of Thailand
- Project to build good governance capital market in honor at
HM the King: SEC
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, Cyber Resilience
Leadership Seminar, Cyber Resilience Awareness, IFRS
9 Implication and Readiness, Recovery Planning, Inside
Information and Data Privacy, Branding and NPS Update,
and SustainabilityTraining, TMB Bank Plc.

65
9 Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
- Director
- Member of the Board of Executive
Directors
- Member of the Nomination,
Remuneration and Corporate
Governance Committee
(appointed on Dec 3, 2019)

- Master of Management, Sasin Graduate Institute of
Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Thammasat University
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academe (CMA)
- Role of the Chairman Program and Corporate Governance
for Capital Market Intermediaries, Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD)
- The Program for Senior Executives on Justice
Administration, Judicial Training Institute, Courts of Justice
- TLCA Leadership Development Program (LDP), Thai
Listed Company Association, The Stock Exchange of
Thailand
- Thailand Sustainable Banking 2018, Bank of Thailand
- Anti Corruption for Executives 1/2014 and Development
of Anti-Corruption Standard of Thailand 2017, Thanachart
Bank Public Company Limited

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

-
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-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2011 - 2015 - Director, SCB Securities Co., Ltd.

Jan 2020 - Present - Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Ratchathani Leasing Plc.
Dec 2019- Present - Chairman, TS Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Dec 2019- Present - Director, Member of the Board of Executive Directors, and Member of the
Nomination, Remuneration and Corporate Governance Committee, Thanachart
Bank Plc.
2019 - Present - Chief Executive Officer, Thanachart Capital Plc.
2013 - Present - Member of the Risk Oversight Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
2009 - Present - Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
2019 - Present - Director, Thanachart SPV 1 Co., Ltd.
2019 - Present - Director, Thanachart SPV 2 Co., Ltd.
2017 - Present - Vice Chairman, Thai Listed Company Association
2013 - Present - Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Securities Plc.
2009 - Present - Chairman, Thanachart Securities Plc.
2010 - Present - Board Advisor, Association of Thai Securities Companies
2013 - Jan 2020- Chairman, Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd.
2011 - Jan 2020- Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd.
2018 - 2018 - Director, The Thai Bankers’ Association
2016 - 2018 - Advisor, The Thai Bankers’ Association
2011 - 2016 - Director, The Thai Bankers’ Association

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Education
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2014
2013
2010
2012
2011
2009
2011

-

2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018
2018

-

2010 - 2018 2015 - 2017 2014 - 2016 -

10 Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
- Independent Director
- Member of the Audit Committee
- Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
- Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
(appointed on Dec 17, 2019)

51

- Honorary Doctorate Degree of Science, Rajamangala
University of Technology Suvarnabhumi
- Master of Business Administration, Assumption University
- Bachelor of Engineering (Electrical Engineering),
Chulalongkorn University
- Director Certification Program, Thai Institute of Directors
Association (IOD)
- Certified Information System Security Professional
(CISSP), International Information System Security
Certification Consortium
- Certified Information System Auditor (CISA) and
Certified in the Governance of Enterprise IT, ISACA
- Certified Fraud Examiner (CFE), Association of Certified
Fraud Examiners
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.

-

-

2011 - 2015 Dec 2019- Present -

2018 - Present 2017
2017
2015
2015
2003

-

Present
Present
Present
Present
Present

-

2019 - 2019 2018 - 2019 2015 - 2016 -

Attachment 1 Page 9

Vice Chairman, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Vice Chairman of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Insurance Plc.
Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Chief Executive Officer and President, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
Chairman and Chairman of the Executive Committee, TS Asset Management
Co., Ltd.
Senior Executive Vice President, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Vice Chairman Advisor, Thai Listed Company Association
Member of the Steering Committee, Sasin Graduate Institute of Business
Administration of Chulalongkorn University
Director and Vice Chairman, Thai Listed Company Association
Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee, Member of the Risk
Oversight Committee, Member of the IT Oversight Committee, Thanachart
Bank Plc.
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Intelligent Data Analytic
Co., Ltd.
Director and Secretary, Thailand Information Security Association (TISA)
Trainer, Thai Institute of Directors Association
Director and Member of the Executive Committee, Cybertron Co., Ltd.
Advisor, Boonrawd Trading Co., Ltd.
Chairman and Member of the Executive Committee, ACIS Professional
Center Co., Ltd.
Member of the Risk Oversight Committee, Thanachart Capital Plc.
Independent Director and Member of the Audit Committee, Thanachart Capital
Qualified Committee, Anti-Money Laundering Office (AMLO)
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
11 Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek

Age

Education

49

- Master of Economics, Warsaw University
- Bachelor of Economics, Columbia University
- General Management Programm (GMP), European Center
for Executive Development (CEDEP)
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.
- Master of Management Information System, University of
West Virginia, USA
- Bachelor of Business Management (Accounting),
Ramkhamhaeng University
- Special Management Program, Marshall University, USA
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academy (CMA)
- Director Accreditation Program and Director Certification
Program, Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- Enhancing the Competitiveness of Thai Companies,
Thailand Listed Company (TLCA) and International
Institute for Development Management (IMD) Switzerland
- Berkeley Executive Coaching Certification, Berkeley
Executive Coaching institute (BEIC)
- Leadership Succession Program (LSP1), Institute of
Research and Development for Public Enterprises
- Executive Development Program (EDP6), Thailand Listed
Company Association (TLCA)
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, TMB Bank Plc.

- Director
- Member of the Board of
Executive Directors
- Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
12 Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat
- Independent Director
- Member of the Audit Committee
- Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
(appointed on April 1, 2020)

57

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
-

-
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-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
Dec 2019- Present - Director, Member of the Board of Executive, and Member of the IT
Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2019 - Present - Head of Challengers and Growth Markets, Asia (Executive) ING Bank N.V.,
Hong Kong Branch
2017 - Present - Member of Supervisory Board, ING Bank Slaski S.A.
2012 - 2019 - Chief Executive Officer (Executive), ING Bank N.V., Bucharest Branch
Apr 2020- Present - Independent Director, Member of the Audit Committee, and Member of the IT
Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2019 - Present - Chief Executive Officer, Mc Group Plc.
2017 - Present - Member of the Corporate Governance Committee and Member of
Remuneration Committee, Total Access Communication Plc.
2015 - Present - Director and Member of Risk Management Committee, Mc Group Plc.
2015 - Present - Director, Thailand Listed Company Association
2014 - Present - Director, DTAC TriNet Co., Ltd.
2013 - Present - Chairman of the Corporate Governance Committee, Total Access
Communication Plc.
2011 - Present - Independent Director, Total Access Communication Plc.
2003 - Present - Director, Thaek International Co., Ltd.
2008 - 2019 - Managing Director, DHL Express International (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2008 - 2019 - Director, DHL Express (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Education

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
11,572,894
-

- Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.), Business Administration,
Bangkok University in Collaboration with The University
of Nebraska-Lincoln, USA
- Master of Business Administration, The University of North Carolina
at Chapel Hill, USA.
- Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering),
Chulalongkorn University
- Senior Executive Program Certificate, Capital Market
Academy (CMA)
- The Executive Program in Energy Literacy for a
Sustainable Future, Thailand Energy Academy
- Chartered Financial Analyst, CFA Institute
- Financial Derivatives, EuroMoney Training
- Executive Education: Building Leading Customer-Centric
Organization
- Director Certification Program, Boards that Make a
Difference, and Anti-Corruption for Executive Program,
Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)
- Bangkok Sustainable Banking Forum 2019, Bangkok
Sustainable Banking Forum 2018, Bank of Thailand
- 2020 Cybersecurity and Privacy for BoD, Personal Data
Protection Act, Economic and Sectoral Outlook: A HighFrequency Data Perspective, Cyber Resilience
Leadership
Seminar, Cyber Resilience Awareness, IFRS 9 Implication
and Readiness, Recovery Planning, Inside Information and
Data Privacy, Branding and NPS Update, and Sustainability
Training, TMB Bank Plc.
* Including shareholding of spouse and minor children
** Family relationship by blood, marriage or registration under the laws

13 Mr. Piti Tantakasem
- Director and Chief Executive
Officer
- Member of Board of
Executive Directors
- Member of the Risk Oversight
Committee
- Member of the Credit Committee
- Member of the IT Oversight
Committee
(appointed on Jan 1, 2018)

Remarks:

Age
50
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Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
Dec 2019- Present - Director, Member of Board of Executive Directors, Member of the Risk
Oversight Committee, Member of the Credit Committee, and Member of the
IT Oversight Committee, Thanachart Bank Plc.
2009 - Present - Director, National ITMX Co., Ltd.
1996 - Present - Director, Tiyana C., Ltd.
2017 - 2017 - Member of the Nomination Committee, PTT Exploration and Production Plc.
2015 - 2017 - Member of the Risk Management Committee, PTT Exploration and
Production Plc.
2014 - 2017 - Independent Director, PTT Exploration and Production Plc.
2016 - 2017 - Chairman of the Nomination Committee, PTT Exploration and Production Plc.
2014 - 2017 - Member of the Corporate Governance Committee, PTT Exploration and
Production Plc.
2017 - 2017 - Chief Financial Officer, TMB Bank Plc.
2008 - 2017 - Chief Wholesale Banking Officer, TMB Bank Plc.
2016 - 2017 - Sub-committee Member, Public Sector Development Commission
Sub-committee on Public Finance and Budgeting Development, Office of
the Public Sector Development Commission (OPDC)
2016 - 2017 - Senior Expert Committee, Senior Expert Committee in Organizational
Psychology on the Committee of the Public Sector Development
Commission, Office of the Public Sector Development Commission (OPDC)
2017 - 2017 - Chairman of Sub-committee, Financial and Accounting Sub-committee,
State Railway of Thailand (SRT)
2017 - 2017 - Director, State Railway of Thailand (SRT)
2016 - 2017 - Honorary Member, Office of the Energy Conservation Promotion Fund
Management Sub-committee
2014 - 2016 - Sub-Committee Member, Project Sub-Committee, Thailand Board of
Investment (BOI)
2011 - 2015 - Director, TRIS Corporation Limited and TRIS Rating Co., Ltd.
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TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
1. Mr. Piti Tantakasem
Chief Executive Officer

Age
50

Education
- Doctor of Philosophy (Ph.D.), Business Administration,
Bangkok University in Collaboration with The
University of Nebraska-Lincoln, USA

Shareholding
Family Relationship
in TMB
**
(no.of share)*
11,572,894
2018
2017
2008

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
-

Presen
t
2017
2017

-

Chief Executive Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Chief Financial officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Chief Wholesale Banking Officer, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited

2020
2019

-

Presen
t
2019

-

2014

-

President, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Chief Executive Officer & President, Thanachat Bank Public
Company Limited
Executive Vice President, Automotive Lending Thanachat Bank
Public Company Limited

- Master of Business Administration, The University of
North Carolina at Chapel Hill, USA
- Bachelor of Engineering (Industrial Engineering),
Chulalongkorn University
2. Mr. Praphan Anupongongarch
President
* (appointed on Jan 1, 2020)

57

- Master of Business Administration (MBA), National

1,875,000

-

Institute of Development Administration
- Bachelor of Business Administration (Marketing),
Sukhothai Thammathirat Open University

2018

- Bachelor of Science (Mathemetics), King Mongkut's
Institute of Technology Thonburi
3. Mr. Senathip Sripaipan
Chief Commercial Banking
Officer

49

- Master of Business Administration (MBA), The

1,125,000

-

2020

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill, USA
2017
2012
2007

- Master of Science, Computer Information Systems,
Assumption University
- Bachelor of Engineering (Engineering), Chulalongkorn
University
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- Presen
t
- 2019
- 2017
2017

-

Chief Commercial Banking Officer, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
Chief Wholesale Banking Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Managing Director, S Ventures Co., Ltd.
Managing Director, Business Navigator Consulting

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
4

Mr. Anuwat Luengtaweekul
Chief Retail Banking Officer
* (appointed on Jan 1, 2020)

5 Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel
Chief Risk Officer

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
1,590,000
-

Education

57 - Master of Business Administration, Rangsit University
Bachelor of Accounting, Kasetsart University
- Bachelor of Science (Accounting), Kasetsart University

61 - Master of Business Administration, Nyenrode University, The
Netherlands
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Hogeschool Nyenrode,
The Netherlands

-

-

6 Mrs. Prapasiri Kositthanakorn
Chief Financial Officer

56 - Master of Business Administration (MBA), Assumption
University
- Bachelor of Business Administration (Magna Cum Laude),
Assumption University

1,125,000

-

7 Mr. Markus Dolenga
Chief Technology and Operating
Officer

50 - Business Diploma, Industrie- und Handelskammer,
Germany

1,125,000

-

8 Mrs. Pittimart Sanguansook
Chief Audit Officer
* (appointed on May 1, 2020)

56 - Bahelor of Accounting, Thammasart University
- Graduate Diploma in Auditing, Thammasat University

500,000
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Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2020
2018

- Present
- 2019

2017

-

2018

2009

-

2017

2018
2017

- Present
- 2018

2015

-

2018

2016

-

2017

2011
2018
1998

- 2016
- Present
- 2018

2020
2019
2016
2013

- Present
- 2019
- 2019
2015

2020
2017
2016

- Present
- 2020
- 2017

2013

-

2016

- Chief Retail Banking Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Executive Vice President, Retail & Small Business Banking,
Thanachat Bank Public Company Limited
- Executive Vice President, Retail & Small Business Distribution,
Thanachat Bank Public Company Limited
- Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, Thanachat Bank
Public Company Limited
- Chief Risk Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Chief Operation Officer - Risk, ING Bank N.V., Amsterdam, The
Natherlands
- Director, Chairman of the Risk Management Committee, and
Member of Credit Committee, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Corporate Operational Risk Management, ING Bank N.V.,
Amsterdam, The Natherlands
- Global Head of Non-Financial Risk, ING Bank N.V.
- Chief Financial officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Partner, PricewaterhouseCoopers Legal and Tax Consultants Ltd.

- Chief Operating Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Chief Operation Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- COO Asia Middle East and India, Jardine Lloyd Thompson Asia
COO Asia Pacific Managing Director, Marsh (Singapore) Insurance
Brokers Pte. Ltd.
- Chief Audit Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Chief Finance Officer, Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- Senior Vice President (SVP), Finance, Thanachart Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Vice President (SVP), Accounting, Thanachart Bank PCL

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
9 Mrs. Kanchana Rojvatunyu
Chief Marketing Officer
* (appointed on Jan 1, 2020)

10 Mr. Pompet Rasanon
Chief Automotive Lending Officer
* (appointed on Jan 1, 2020)

11 Mrs.Vijitra Thumpothong
Chief People Officer
* (appointed on Jan 1, 2020)

12 Mr. Mate Kanokpibool
Financial Controller

13 Ms. Somkid Preechasammakul
Head of Finance Business Partner

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Education

55 - Master of Business Administration (MBA), Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn
University
- Master of Science, Asian Institute of Technology
- Bachelor of Science (Physics), Kasetsart University

8,628,788

56 - Mater of Business Administration, Phranakhon Rajabhat
University
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Ramkhamhaeng
University

1,125,000

58 - Master of Accountng, Thammasart Universit
- Bachelor of Accountng, Thammasart University

1,125,000

52 - Master of Accountancy Program, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Accountancy, University of the Thai Chamber
of Commerce

46 - Master of Business Administration (Finance), Sasin
Graduate Institute of Business Administration of
Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Business Administration (Finance),

1,400,700

2,654,100

-

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2020
2017

- Present
- 2019

2014

-

2020

- Present

2019

-

2019

2015

-

2018

2015

-

2015

2020
2018

- Present
- 2019

2011

-

2020
2018

- Present
- 2020

2017

-

2018

2010

-

2017

2017

2018 - Present
2018
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2016

-

2018

- Chief Marketing Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Corporate Branding and Communication, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Head of Branding and Marketing, Siam Commercial Bank Public
Company Limited
- Chief Automotive Lending Officer, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Executive Vice President, Automotive Lending, Thanachart Bank
Public Company Limited
- Executive Vice President, Sales Network - Automotive Lending,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- Senior Vice President, Sales Network - Automotive Lending,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- Chief People Officer, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Executive Vice President, Chief Human Resource Officer,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- Executive Vice President, Chief Auditor, Thanachart Bank Public
Company Limited
- Financial Controller, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Financial Payment and Control, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Head of Financial Governance and Policy, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior vice President, Financial Accounting and Tax, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner - CEO&CFO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Education
Assumption University

14 Ms. Pimolwan Puarattana-aroonkorn 41 - Master of Science in Finance, Thammasart University
Head of Finance Business Partner - Bachelor of Business Administration, Mahidol University
CCBO

15 Mr. Thawatchai Trongnamsukkij
Head of Finance Business Partner CRO

16 Ms. Jittrawadee Srivichit
Head of Finance Business Partner CRBO

308,610

39 - Master of Business Administration, Thammasat University
- Bachelor of Commerce and Accountancy, Thammasat
University

549,300

46 - Master of Business Administration, Sasin Graduate Institute
of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor of Economics, Thammasat University

125,000
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-

-

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2017

-

2018

2016

-

2017

2015

-

2016

2014

-

2015

2018

- Present

2017

-

2018

2015

-

2017

2018

- Present

2017

-

2018

2015

-

2017

2015

-

2015

2018

- Present

2017

-

2018

2011

-

2017

- Senior Executive - Investment Banking, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Team Head of Wholesale Banking Segment Strategy, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Head of Commercial Credit and Supply Chain Product, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Head of Commercial Credit Product, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner - CCBO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Finance Business Partner - Commercial, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Team Head of Commercial Banking Business Finance, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner - CRO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Finance Business Partner - CRO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Financial Analysis Executive, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Team Lead of Financial Statement TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Head of of Finance Business Partner - Retail, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Finance Business Partner - Retail, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Investor Relations, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
17 Ms. Preediorn Klungnark
Head of Finance Business Partner CFO and Corporate Function

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
125,000
-

Education

40 - Master of Financial Management, Thammasat University

18 Mr. Andrew Kent Jan
Head of Balance Sheet
Management
19 Mrs. Kwanhatai Sukhumtammarat
Head of Financial Data
Maintenance and Processing

42

20 Mr. Chalermchai Paisithmongkol
Head of Central Treasury

57 - Master of Business Administration Program, Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business Administration of Chulalongkorn
University
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Accounting &
Marketing, Assumption University
- Bachelor of Political Science, Chulalongkorn University
51 - Master of Business Administration in Finance,
University of Rochester, USA
- Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn Universiry

21 Mrs. Voraluck Chokchaitam
Head of Asset and Liability
Management

B.S. Economics, Wharton School of the University of
Pennsylvania

48 - Bachelor’s degree, Business Administration, Accounting,
Assumption University

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2020

- Present

2019

-

2020

2019

-

2019

2018

-

2018

450,000

-

2017

- Present -

-

-

2014
2017

- 2016 - Present

2010

-

2017

-

-

-

2018
2013

- Present
- 2018

-

-

2020

- Presnt

2018

-

2020

2017

-

2018

2016

-

2017

2015

-

2016
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- Head of Finance Business Partner - CFO and Corporate Function,
TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Executive Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Team Head of Wholesale Banking - Sale Management, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
Head of Balance Sheet Management, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
Group Head of Enterprise Risk, Burgan Bank, Kuwait
- Head of Financial Data Maintenance and Processing, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
Team Lead of Financial Application Analysis & Development, TMB
Bank Public Company Limited
Head of Central Treasury, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Team Head of Investment Management & Fund Transfer Pricing,
TMB Bank Public Company Limited

- Head of Asset and Liability Management, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Head of Asset Liability and Capital Management, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Asset and Liability Management, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Process Improvement Specialist, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Product Control Professional, TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
22 Ms. Waree Thanmongkolswad
Head of Financial Regulatory
Management

Age

Education

40 - Master of Arts (English), Thammasat University
- Bachelor of Accounting, Thammasat University

23 Mrs. Suphavadee Wuthithien
Head of Regulatory Analysis - BoT
Reporting

52 - Bachelor of Accountancy Program,
Dhurakijpundit University

24 Mrs. Kamolmarn Staworn
Head of Regulatory Analysis Financial Reporting

56 - Bachelor of Business Administration Program,
Assumption University

25 Ms. Veeraya Mahakhan
45 - Master of Science (Information Technology),
Executive Finance Business Partner
Naresuan University
- Bachelor of Business Administration,
Rajamangala Inst. of Tech.

26 Mr. Prayut Boonlerd
Head of Accounting Control

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
125,000

-

-

-

42 - Bachelor of Accountancy, Bangkok University
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-

-

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2018

- Present -

2017

-

2018

-

2015

-

2017

-

2012
2017

- 2015 - Present -

2013

-

2017

- Present -

2015

-

2020

- Present -

2017

-

2020

-

2017

-

2017

-

2015

-

2017

-

2019
2019
2018
2017
2016

- Present
- 2019
- 2019
- 2018
- 2017

2017

2017

-

-

-

Head of Financial Regulatory Management, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
Team Head of Financial Regulatory Management, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
Team Lead of Financial Statement, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
Executive Audit Manager, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Head of Regulatory Analysis - BoT Reporting, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
Team Lead of Regulatory Report Management, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
Head of Regulatory Analysis – Financial Reporting, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
Team Lead of Regulatory Analysis - Financial Reporting, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited
Executive Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
Head of Financial Reporting Services, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
Team Lead of Financial Reporting Services, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
Specialist - Financial Data Flow Design & Improvement,
TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Head of Accounting Control, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
VP Financial Project, CIMB Thai
VP Controller and Improvement, Nok Airline PLC.
Head of Accounting Operation, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Team Lead of Domestic Branches Accounts Controlling, TMB Bank
Public Company Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position

27 Ms. Rochana Ratana-Ubol
Head of Financial Payment and
Control

28 Ms. Siriphon Rattanaumphawan
Head of Financial Governance and
Policy

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Education

54 - Master of Business Administration (Accounting),
Kasetsart University
- Bachelor of Accountancy, Chulalongkorn University

-

45 - Master of Business Administration (Finance), Thammasat
University
- Bachelor’s degree of Accounting Info. Systems,
Mahachulalongkornrajacidyalaya University

-

29 Ms. Maline Laoitthi
40 - Master of Engineering Management, University of London
Head of Finance Business Intelligence
- Bachelor of Engineering, Thammasat University
and Data Management Centre

30 Mr. Jaraschai Boworntammarat
Head of Finance Business
Intelligence
* (appointed on Apr 1, 2020)

-

46 - Master of Economics Program (Business Economics),
National Institute of Development Administration
- Master of Engineering Program in Industrial Engineering,
Kasetsart University
- Bachelor of Engineering (Mechanical Engineering),
Kasetsart University
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-

-

-

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2014

-

2016

2020

- Present

2018
2017

-

2020
2018

2016

-

2017

2015

-

2016

2019

- Present

2019

-

2019

2016

-

2019

2015

-

2016

2020

- Present

2018

-

2020

2011

-

2018

2020

- Present

2007

-

2020

-

Assistant to Finance Manager, RHB Bank Berhad

- Head of Financial Payment and Control, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Head of Accounting Operations, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Senior Specialist - Financial Governance Control and Monitoring,
TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Team Lead of Financial Reporting Services, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Team Head of Management Accounting Application System
Support, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Financial Governance and Policy, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Vice President of Finance, Krung Thai Bank Public
Company Limited
- First Senior Vice President of International Accounting and
Finance, Muang Thai Life Assurance Public Company Limited
- Chief Financial Officer, Executive Vice President, Asia Wealth
Securities Co., Ltd.
- Head of Finance Business Intelligence and Data Management
Centre,
- TMB Bank Public Company Limited
Head of Financial Data Management Centre, TMB Bank Public
- Company Limited
Vice President, Bank of Ayudhya Public
- Head of Finance Business Intelligence, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Senior Vice President (SVP), Finance, Thanachart Bank Public
Company Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
31 Mr. Pakpoom Visawameteekul
Head of Capital and Balance Sheet
Strategy
* (appointed on Apr 16, 2020)
32 Mr. Surapong Chanthasittiporn
Head of Business Intelligence
* (appointed on Jul 1, 2020)

33 Ms. Tharinee Totab
Head of Finance Business PartnerCALO
* (appointed on Jul 1, 2020)

34 Mr. Charnwit Akkarapattanakoon
Head of Finance Business Partner Bankwide/Subsidiary and
Managerial Report
* (appointed on Jul 16, 2020)

Age

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*

Education

36 - Master of Business Administration, University of Japan

43 - Master Degree, Marketing, Kasetsart University
- Bachelor Degree, Finance, Thammasat University

45 - Master’s degree, Auditing, Bangkok University

41 - Master’s degree, Accounting, University of Illinois-Urbana
Champaign
- Bachelor’s degree, Accounting, Chulalongkorn University

35 Mrs. Pimchaya Thammasorn
38 - Bachelor’s degree, Commerce and Accountancy
Executive Finance Business Partner
Accounting, Thammasat University
* (appointed on Aug 1, 2020)
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Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2020

- Present

2017

-

2020
2019

- Present
- 2019

2017

-

2015
2020

- 2017
- Present

2018

-

2019

2016

-

2018

2020

- Present

2019

-

2019

2018

-

2019

2018

-

2018

2020

- Present

2019

-

2020

2019

2020

- Head of Capital and Balance Sheet Strategy, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Specialist - Asset Liability and Capital Management,
TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Business Intelligence, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Assistant Vice President, Financial Data Analytic & System,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- SM OFSAA & SHARE SERVICE, Thanachart Bank Public Company
Limited
- SM OFSAA, Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner- CALO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Vice President, FP & AAL & Retail Banking, Thanachart Bank
Public Company Limited
- Vice President, AUTOMOTIVE & RETAIL BANKING, Thanachart
Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner - Bankwide/Subsidiary and
Managerial Report, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- First Vice President (FVP), FP&A Consolidation&Subsidiarie,
Thanachart Bank Public Company Limited
- FVP Finacial Reporting-BNS, Thanachart Bank Public Company
Limited
- First Vice President (FVP), Chief Financial Officer, Thanachart Bank
Public Company Limited
- Executive Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Executive Finance Business Partner Pool Finance Business Partner
- CEO & CFO, TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
36 Miss Pinyada Yamsiri
Senior Finance Business Partner
* (appointed on Aug 1, 2020)

Age

Education

33 - Master’s degree, Commerce & Accountancy (Inter),
Business Administration, Chulalongkorn University
- Bachelor’s degree Commerce and Accountancy, Finance
and Banking, Chulalongkorn University

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
450,000

37 Mr. Pichan Ruechuzed
48 - Master’s degree Commerce and Accountancy, Business
Head of Tax Strategy & Compliance
Administration, Thammasat University
* (appointed on Sep 1, 2020)
- Bachelor’s degree Commerce and Accountancy,
Accounting, Thammasat University
38 Miss Krittiya Rirklaunrit
42 - Bachelor of Science, Accounting, Thammasat University
Professional - Finance Business
Partner
* (appointed on Sep 16, 2020)

39 Miss Somruetai Tantakitti
Head of Finance Business PartnerCIO
* (appointed on Oct 16, 2020)

34 - Master of Science, Science Strategic Management, HeriotWatt University
- Bachelor of Accountancy, Accounting, Singapore
Management University

50,000
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Work Experience in the Past 5 Years
2020

- Present

2018

-

2020

2017
2016

-

2018
2017

2014

-

2016

2020

- Present

2011

-

2020

- Present

2019

-

2019

2018

-

2018

2016

-

2018

2015
2020

- 2016
- Present

2019

-

2020

2017

-

2019

2016

-

2017

2020

- Senior Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Senior Finance Business Partner Pool, Finance Business Partner CEO & CFO, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Department Manager, Global Strategy, C.P. Merchandising Co., Ltd.
- Financial Service Analyst, Chevron Thailand Exploration &
Production, Ltd.
- Project Control Analyst, Chevron Thailand Exploration &
Production, Ltd.
- Head of Tax Strategy & Compliance, TMB Bank Public Company
- Limited
Manager of Corporate Tax Division, Global Power Synergy Pcl.
- Professional - Finance Business Partner, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Senior Specialist - Retail Omni Channel Incentive and Campaign
Management, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Team Head of Channel Operations Control, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Branch Transformation Specialist, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Executive Audit Manager, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
- Head of Finance Business Partner - CIO, TMB Bank Public
Company Limited
- Agile Specialist Pool, Agile Commercial Digital Innovation, TMB
Bank Public Company Limited
- Senior Financial Analysis Specialist, TMB Bank Public Company
Limited
- Financial Analysis Specialist, TMB Bank Public Company Limited
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Atachment 1: Details of TMB's Directors, Executive Officers, Controlling Power, Company Secretary as of December 31, 2020
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TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Attachment 2

Details of the Bank’s directors / executives who assume the positions in subsidiaries, associated companies, and related companies as of December 31, 2020
Subsidiaries
Associate
Companies
Companies
No.
List of the Bank’s executives
Positions
1
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas
Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel
Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat
Mr. Piti Tantakasem
Mr. Praphan Anupongongarch
Mr. Pompet Rasanon
Mr. Anuwat Luengtaweekul
Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel
Mrs. Suvannee Kam
Mrs. Chirdprapa Chaladsoontornvatee

Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Director
Chief Executive Officer
President
Chief Automotive Lending Officer
Chief Retail Banking Officer
Chief Risk Officer
Head of Legal
Head of Credit Restructuring Underwriting
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2

3

4

1

2

D

D

Y
//
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
D
W
W
D
X
W
W

Related
Companies
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No.

List of the Bank’s executives

Subsidiaries
Companies

Positions
1

20
21

Ms. Waree Thanmongkolswad
Mr. Suttichai Tiranuchit

22

Mrs. Salin Katinasmith

23
24
25
26
27
28

Mr. Songwut Chaowalit
Mr. Pirapong Nithikraiwut
Mr. Ekasith Saktanakorn
Mr. Varoon Kanjanapoo
Mr. Saranya Phuphatana
Mrs. Apiroomwadee Ranongthanee

Head of Financial Regulatory Management
Head of Special Advisory Banking Services -Corporate
Banking 1
Head of Special Advisory Banking Services - Corporate
Banking 2
Head of Branch Banking Distribution
Head of Commercial Credit Product
Head of Brokerage Business
Head of Market Conduct Risk Management
Head of Global Markets and Transaction Banking
Specialist – Central Treasury

Remark:
X
Y
W
D
L
//

Chairman and Authorized Person
Chairman and Non-authorized Person
Director and Authorized Person
Director
Liquidator
Vice Chairman
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2

3

Associate
Companies
4

1

2

D

D

Related
Companies

W
W
W
D
D
W
D
L
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Attachment 2

List of Subsidiaries Companies

List of Related Companies

1.
2.
3.
4.

TMB Property Development Co., Ltd.

Thanachart Bank Plc., Co., Ltd.
Thanachart Broker Co., Ltd.
Phahonyothin Asset Management Co., Ltd.
Phayathai Asset Management Co., Ltd.*

List of Associate Companies
1. TMB Asset Management Co., Ltd
2. Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd.
Remarks:

*The Company registered the completeness of liquidation with the Ministry of Commerce on 1 October 2020.
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Attachment 2

Details of the Subsidiaries Company Directors
1. Thanachart Bank Pcl., Co., Ltd.
1. Mr. Ekniti Nitithanprapas
2. Mr. Suphadej Poonpipat
3. Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O. Damas
4. Mr. Praisun Wongsmith
5. Mr. Willem Frederik Nagel
6. Mr. Chumpol Rimsakorn
7. Mr. Teeranun Srihong
8. Mr. Yokporn Tantisawetrat
9. Mr. Somjate Moosirilert
10. Mr. Prinya Hom-anek
11. Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
12. Mrs. Chananyarak Phetcharat
13. Mr. Piti Tantakasem
14. Mr. Praphan Anupongongarch
2. Thanachart Broker Co., Ltd.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Mr. Pompet Rasanon
Mr. Songwut Chaowalit
Mr. Pirapong Nithikraiwut
Mr. Ekasith Saktanakorn
Mr. Varoon Kanjanapoo

3. Phahonyothin Asset Management Co., Ltd.
1. Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel
2. Mrs. Suvannee Kam
3. Mrs. Chirdprapa Chaladsoontornvatee
4. Miss. Waree Thanmongkolswad
5. Mr. Suttichai Tiranuchit
6. Mrs. Salin Katinasmith
Details of the Associate company Directors
1. TMB Asset Management Co., Ltd
1. Mr. Anuwat Luengtaweekul
2. Mr. Saranya Phuphatana
2. Thanachart Fund Management Co., Ltd
1. Mr. Anuwat Luengtaweekul
2. Mr. Saranya Phuphatana
Attachment 2 Page 4

TMB Bank Public Company Limited
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(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Attachment 3 Details of TMB's Head of Audit and Head of Compliance
1)

Head of Audit as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
Age

Mr. Sunthorn Rukpanich
Head of Audit

Education

59 - MBA (Financial Management), University of Bridgeport,
Connecticut, USA
- Bachelor of Economics, Chulalongkorn University
- International Accounting Standards IAS 39/IAS
- Operational Risk Management Forum
- Financial Executive Development Program-FINEX

Shareholding
Family
in TMB
Relationship **
(no.of share)*
2018
2013

-

Present
2017

2011

-

2013

2006

-

2011

Attachment 3 Page 1

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years

Head of Audit, TMB Bank Plc.
Head of Corporate Credit Underwriting, TMB
Bank Plc.
Team Head of Corporate Credit Underwriting,
TMB Bank Plc.
Team Head of Corporate Credit Underwriting 1,
TMB Bank Plc.

Disclosure Report Form 2020 (Form 56-1)

(Translation)

TMB Bank Public Company Limited

Attachment 3 Details of TMB's Head of Audit and Head of Compliance
2)

Head of Compliance as of December 31, 2020
Name/Position
Age

Mr. Kittichai Singha *
50
Head of Compliance
(* resigned effective on Jan 1, 2021)

Education

- Master of Political Science, Thammasat University
- Bachelor of Arts, Srinakharinwirot University
- IT Governance & Cyber Resilience Program, Thai Institute of
Directors Association (IOD)

Shareholding
in TMB
(no.of share)*
-

Family
Relationship **

Work Experience in the Past 5 Years

-

2020 - Present - Head of Compliance, TMB Bank Plc.
2018 - Present - Executive Vice President, Head of Compliance Thanachart Bank Plc.
2018 - 2018
- Senior Vice President, Country Head of Compliance, Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation
2004 - 2018
- Senior Vice President, Regulatory Compliance Officer, Citibank
2003 - 2004
- Chief Compliance, Bank of China
1997 - 2002
- Assistant Vice President, Compliance Department, The Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ

- Legal Strategies for Personal Data Management
Chula Unisearch, Chulalongkorn Univesity
- APAC Country Compliance Officer Training, SMBC Singapore
- Securities Law for Head of Compliance and Securities Law
for Head of Compliance, Thai Bankers’ Association
- Digital Bank Compliance Head Workshop, Asia Pacific Head
of Compliance Workshop, Fraud Workshop, Talent
Identification and Retention, AML- Sanctions and Anti-Bribery
Corruption, and Regulatory Compliance Workshop, Citibank
Thailand
- LBDU Compliance Workshop, Securities and Exchange
Commission
- Bond Trading Compliance Training, Thai Bond Market
Association
- Risk Management and Anti-Money Laundering Training, Bank
of China, New York, USA
Remarks: * Including shareholding of spouse and minor children
** Family Relationship by blood, marriage or registration under the laws
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Attachment 4: Information of Appraised Value of Assets
N/A

Attachment 5: Change in TMB Shares held by Directors and Chiefs in 2020
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
•

15
16

17
18
19
20
21
•
•
•

22
23

Name
Mr. Mr. Ekniti
Nitithanprapas 1
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Suphadej
Poonpipat
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Philippe G.J.E.O.
Damas
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Praisun
Wongsmith
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Willem Frederik
Nagel 2
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Chumpol
Rimsakorn
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Teeranun Srihong
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Yokporn
Tantisawetrat
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Somjate
Moosirilert
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Prinya
Hom-anek
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Michal Jan Szczurek
Spouse and minor children
Mrs. Chananyarak
Phetcharat 3
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Piti
Tantakasem
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Praphan
Aunpongpongarch 4
Spouse and minor children
Sripaipan
Mr. Senathip
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Pompet
Rasanon 4
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Anuwat
Luengtaweekul 4
Spouse and minor children
Mrs. Prapasiri
Kositthanakorn
Spouse and minor children
Mrs. Kanchana
Rojvatunyu 4
Spouse and minor children
Mrs. Vijitra
Thumpothong 4
Spouse and minor children
Mrs. Pittimart
Sanguansook 5
Spouse and minor children
Mr. Johannes Franciscus Grisel
Spouse and minor children
Dolenga 9
Mr. Markus
Spouse and minor children

Position
Chairman
Vice Chairman
Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Director
Independent Director
Director
Director
Independent Director
Director
Independent Director
Director and Chief Executive Officer
President
Chief Commercial Banking Officer
Chief Automotive Lending Officer
Chief Retail Banking Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Chief Marketing Officer
Chief People Officer
Chief Audit Officer
Chief Risk Officer
Chief Technology and Operating Officer

TMB shares
held as of
31 Dec 2019
5,126,411
18,592
11,572,894
340,000
7,503,788
-

as of 31 December 2020
TMB shares
Change (net)
held as of
Increase/(Decrease)
31 Dec 2020
in TMB shares
5,126,411
18,592
11,572,894
1,875,000
1,875,000 6
1,125,000
1,125,000 6
1,125,000
1,125,000 6
1,590,000
1,250,000 6
1,125,000
1,125,000 6
8,628,788
1,125,000 6
1,125,000
1,125,000 6
500,000
500,000 6
1,125,000
1,125,000 6
-

Remark:

Appointment effective on February 13, 2020.
Appointment effective on April 23, 2020.
3
Appointment effective on April 1, 2020.
4
Appointment effective on January 1, 2020.
5
Appointment effective on May 1, 2020.
6
Share allocation according to TMB Stock Retention Program 2019 No.1
1
2

